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The Board of County Commissioners
Onsitow County, North Carolina

October 31, 2008

State law requires that all general-purpose local governments publish within six months of the close of each fiscal
year a complete set of financial statements presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP) and audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards by a firm of licensed certified public
accountants. Pursuant to that requirement, we. mmprehensnve annual financial report of Onslow
County for the fiscal year ended June 30,.2088 %]%2

This report consists of manage
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GAAP require that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basis
financial statements in the fomm of Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is
designed to complement MD&A and should he read in conjunction with it. Onsiow County's MD&A can be found
immediately folfowing the report of the independent auditors.

PROFILE OF THE COUNTY:

Onslow County was formed in 1734 from a part of New Hanover County. The county is located in southeastern North
Carolina and is bordered by Pender County fo the south, Duplin County to the west, Lenoir and Jones counties to the
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northwest and north, and the Atlantic Ocean to the east. The County has a fiat, gently rolling terrain which slopes
from an altitude of 63 feet at the town of Richlands to sea level and covers a total of 767 square .miles encompassing
approximately 484,000 acres, of which about 147,000 acres comprise the Camp Lejeune Manne_ Co_rps Base_z and
New River Marine Corps Air Station and are owned by the federal govermment. There are six municipalities tht-\m‘the
county, the largest being the City of Jacksonville, which serves as the county seat. The county has a commlssmr]-
ar/manager form of government. The five members of the Board of Commissioners are elected on a partisan bz-.15|s
and serve four-year terms. Commissioners hold policy-making and legislative authority. They are also _respon_s!ble
for adopting the budget and appeinting the county manager. The manager is responsible for implementing policies,
rmanaging daily operations, and appointing department heads.

The county provides its citizens with a wide range of services that includes public safety; sanitation; health, mental
health, and social services; cuitural and recreational activities; general administration; and others. This repo_l't
includes ail the county’s activities in maintaining these services. The county also extends financial support to certain
boards, agencies, and commissions to assist their efforts in serving citizens. Among these are the Onsfow County
Board of Education, Coastal Carolina Community College, and the East Carolina Council of Govemments.

The annual budget serves as the foundation for Onsiow County's financial planning and confrol. Ail agencies ?hf
Onslow County are required to submit requests for appropriation to Onslow County’s manager on or before April 15
of each year. Onslow County's manager uses these requests as the starting point for developing a proposed budget.
The County manager then presents this proposed budget to the Board of Commissioners for review prior to June 1.
The Commissioners are required to hold public hearings on the proposed budget and to adopt a finat budget no later
than June 30%. The appropriated budget s prepared by fund and depariment. Depariment heads may request
transfers of appropriations within a department, which are subject to approval of the County Manager and are
submitted to the Commissioners for acceptance. Transfers of appropriations between departments, however, require
the approval of the Commissioners. Budget-to-actual comparisons are provided in this report for each individual
governmental fund for which an appropriated annual budget has been adopted. For the general fund, this
comparison is presented on page 20 as part of the basic financial statements for governmental funds. For
governmental funds, other than the general fund, with appropriated annual budgets, this comparison is presented in
the governmental fund subsection of this report, which starts on page 77. Also included in the govemmental fund
subsection are project-length budget-to-actual comparisons for each governmental fund for which a project-length
budget has been adopted (i.e., the CDGB revitalization project special revenue fund and the capital projects funds).

FACTORS AFFECTING FINANCIAL CONDITION

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is considered from the
broader perspective of the specific environment within which Onslow County operates.

LOCAL ECONOMY:

Construction activity in Onslow County has remained steady as evidenced by the 3,082 new units of residential
construction and 154 new units of commercial construction totaling over $307 mitlion doflars in fiscal year 2008. This
compares to new development totaling $296 million in fiscal year 2007.

Agriculture remains a major economic factor in the County with gross agricultural income for 2006 estimated at
$106.4 million, 27th in the State of North Carolina for cash receipts. Tobacco remains the leading cash crop. Other
major crops include com, soybeans, cotton wheat and peanuts. The livestock industry continues to play a dominant
role in farm income with pouitry and pork production accounting for the majority of the industry. The County ranks fifth
out of the 100 counties in turkey production. Timber sales within the County are also a significant industry with the
County’s many acres of woodlands. There ara 326,100 acres of timberland in the County. The estimated income for
stumpage (price paid to the timber owner for standing timber) for 2007 was $9.40 million. For the same period, the
gstimated income for delivered timber (price paid to the timber buyer upon delivery of the timber to the mill) was
15.79 miflion.

The seafood industry has always been an integral part of the County's economy. In 2006, the dockside vaiue of
seafood was approximately $5.5 million.

Timber sales within the County are also a significant industry with the County's many acres of woodiands. There are
326,100 acres of timberland in the County. The estimated income for stumpage {price paid to the timber owner for

e e -
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standing timber) for 2007 was $9.40 million. For the same period, the estimated income for delivered timber (price
paid to the timber buyer upon delivery of the timber to the mill) was $15.79 million.

Camp Lejeune, the fargest Marine Corps installation on the East Coast, makes its home in the County. Camp
Lejeune occupies 246 square miles (153,439 acres) with 11 miles of beach. It is estimated that over 150,000 people,
including active and retired military personnel, dependents of active and retired military personnel, and civil service
employees benefit from Camp Lejeune. Of this number, approximately 48,000 are active duty Marines and sailors.

Camp Lejeune is the home of Marine Corps Installations East. Marine Corps Installations East is the regional
command for Marine bases located on the East Coast. This includes air stations and logistics bases.

Based at Camp Lejeune are the foliowing installations: 1l Marine Expeditionary Force, 2nd Marine Division, 2nd
Marine Logistics Group, Special Operations Command, 2nd Expeditionary Brigade, and [| Marine Expeditionary
Force Augmentation Command. Camp Lejeune is also the home of a Coast Guard Special Missions Training Center.
Its mission is to train Marine Safety and Security Teams, port security units and law enforcement detachments.
Marine Corps Air Station, New River is an integral part of the support of Camp Lejeune and is the home of the Marine
Tilt Rotor Test and Evaluation Squadron and Marine Tilt Rotor Training Squadron for the V-22 Osprey.

County population levels and economic activity have generally remained steady through the heavy military troop
deployments of the last several years. During deployments in the early 1990s, the County found that dependents of
military personnel on deployment often left the County, thereby aggravating the negative economic effects of the
population loss. Saveral programs to support military dependents have successfully encouraged more dependents to
remain in the community during deployments of family members. Changes in troop rotation schedules and practices
have also had the effect of reducing the negative effects of deployments on the County.

As the Marine Corps expands to a total strength of 202,000 by 2011, Major General Robert C. Dickerson,
Commander of Marine Corps Instailation East, announced recently that between 2008 and 2011 Camp Lejeune and
New River Air Station combined will see a growth in approximately 8,360 active duty Marines and sailors as the
Marine Corps expands its size. This growth is expected to bring 11,500 new jobs for active duty service members and
civiian employees over the next four years.

Tourism is one of the countys largest growing industries. If is estimated that the local tourism industry generates
more than $31.4 mitlion in wages for approxlmately 1,560 full time employees. Visitors to Onslow County spent and
estimated $159.5 miflion in 2007 for an increase of 7.4 percent form 2006. Onslow County is ranked 23" in travel
impact among North Carolinas 100 counties.

The County continues to promote tourism in the county through the support of various events and organizations. In
September 2007, a soccer complex was opened at a former school site through the joint efforts of the County and
Onslow County Soccer Association. This facility will be used to host soccer tourmaments.

The unemployment rate for Onslow County as of June 30, 2007, was 6.00 percent. Economic development recruiting
efforts are being focused on telecommunications “back office” type of companies, assembly-light manufacturing
industries, and industries that are suppliers to the military. With a large military depsndent population, these
industries are well suited for the existing work force.

The County is marketing its 730-acre Industrial Park located on U.5. Highway 258 and within a 10-minute drive of
Albert J. Ellis Airport, which serves the County. Cape Fear Precast, LLC (“Cape Fear™), the first tenant, has begun
construction on a piant in the Industrial Park. Cape Fear manufactures pre-cast concrete utility structures such as
sanitary sewer manholes, pump stations and storm water products, and serves a customer base along the eastem
seaboard east of Interstate 95 from Virginia to South Carolina. The County has also sold a site to a firm who will be
building a day care center and training center. Several others businesses have shown interest in lots in the industrial
Park. Consideration is aiso being given to the possibility of constructing a 50,000 square foot shell building on a site
that could be expanded in the future. The landscape of the Industrial Park ranges from flat plains to gently rolling
wooded hills and takes full aesthetic advantage of the New River and its creeks. The site offers office space, a
common green, a scenic bike path, daycare facilities, and recreational boat access to the river. The County is
currently in the final stages of registering the Industrial Park as a Certified Industrial Site with the North Carolina
Department of Commerce. It will play & critical role in the economic development of the County as the County works
to encourage different businesses to locate in eastern North Caralina.

The County-owned and operated Albert J. Elfis Airport has a 7,100-foot lighted runway with an instrument landing
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system. The airport is served by two airlines, US Airways Express and Delta Connection. US Airways provides seven
daily flights via Charlotte, North Carolina and Delta Connection provides four daily flights via Atianta. _Reglonal jet
aircraft (50 and 70 seat aircraft) are available on ten of the airports eleven daily flights. The other two daily flights are
on a 50-seat turboprop. Total traffic for fiscal year 2007-2008 was 256,426 which represented a 23.8% increase over
the previous fiscal year. Fixed based aviation services such as fuel sales, flight instruction and aircraft rentals are
provided under an airport lease with Jacksonville Flying Service.

LONG-TERM FINANCIAL PLAN

The county continued with its expansion of its Subtitle D landfill. The Phase [ll expansion construction began .in
January 2008. This project cost is estimate to cost $6.71 million and was financed by the issuance of special
obligation bonds. Phase IIl will be a 15-acre lateral expansion which will provide approximately 5 years of disposal

space.

Future expansions of our landfill include the Phase IV lateral expansion, which provides approximately 4 years of
landfill space and the final phase, the Phase V vertical expansion, which will account for approximately 2 years of
landfill space. Therefore, based on current waste disposal and population trends, we feel that we have 10.5 years of
life remaining at our current landfill. Steps are being taken to determine our options for future solid waste sites.

Coastal Enterprises (a private non-profit Jacksonville Corporation) operate the County’s Material Recovery Facility
{(MRF). This facility receives mixed clean recyciables such as newspaper, mixed paper, cardboard, glass, steel,
aluminum, and plastics #1 and #2. FY 2007-08 approximately 3,486 fons of recyclables from Onslow County were
processed at this facility and removed from our waste stream.

In addition, the Onslow County Solid Waste Department diverted approximately 213,800 tires and 805 tons of white
goods (appliances) from the waste stream.

The AIP Grants we received from the FAA have enabied the County to continue to make necessary upgrades to key
airport infrastructure such as a compiete repaving of the airport's 7,100-foct runway that was completed this year.
The airport has also continued to plan and design a new passenger terminal sanitary sewer system that is planned
for construction in 2009. Other projects the airport is planning this year include an upgrade of firefighter protective
equipment, purchase of a new Aircraft Rescue & Firefighting command vehicle, and an upgrade of emergency
communications equipment.

The county successfully concluded a project to recruit a new airline to the airport. Using a grant from the USDOT
under the Small Community Air Service Development Program, together with matching funds from the State and local
county funds, the airport was able to recruit Delta Airlines to the airport. Though the majority of the funds were
packaged as a revenue guaranty incentive package for Delta in order to mitigate their risks of starting new service,
the service was so successful that none of the grants funds associated with the revenue guaranty agreement was
expended.

Per the 2006 North Carolina Division of Aviations economic impact study (the most resent study available), the
estimated economic impact of Albert J. Ellis Airport is $44.3 million dollars. These impacts are of three types: direct
(activities from tenants and other business), indirect (activities that take place away from the airport but are
attributable to the airport), and induced (activities that result from spending and are the multiplier effects of direct and
indirect impacts).

One of the major areas of concemn of the County is the need for countywide sewer. This need is being addressed by
the Onslow Water and Sewer Authority (ONWASA) a partnership of the goveming bodies of Onslow County, City of
Jacksonville, Town of Holly Ridge, Town of North Topsail Beach, Town of Richlands, and the Town of Swansboro. In
February of 2004, a service agreement was signed between Marine Corps Base, Camp Lejeune and ONWASA for
the purchase of unused water and wastewater capacity currently available at the base system. ONWASA and Camp
Lejeune have also agreed to entertain a future partnership that would eventually transfer ownership, operation, and
control of the Camp Lejeune water and wastewater facilities and systems to ONWASA with the base as a limited
partner.  As ONWASA moves forward with the construction of a countywide sewer system we expect more
development to occur.

Tr}e Board of Educa!tion supplied the County with its ten-year capital needs assessment in the spring of 2005. Once
this was compieted it was reviewed by the Board of Education to determine what projects had the most urgent needs.

—_——
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The Board of Commissioners approved the issuance of $15.5 million in cerificates of participation to fund the
construction of a new elementary school. These certificates of participation were issued in June 2006 and the
construction of Meadow View Elementary School was begun in August 2008, This school opened in August 2008
and will ease the overcrowding at three other schools where students are housed in mobile classrooms.

Additionally the County issued $50.0 million in General Obligafion Bonds in June 2006 for school construction from
the $90.0 million authorized by the voters in November 2005. These funds will be also be used to expand facilities to
ease overcrowding at our current faciiities in accordance with the ten-year plan. In March 2008, we issued the $40.0
million balance to complete the projects

During the FY 07-08 budget deliberations, the Board of Commissioners took action to increase local funding for
education by $3,000,000. This was the final year of a three-year plan fo bring the county closer to the state average
per pupil expenditure. This action along with the sale of bonds for capital needs of the school system show the
commitment of the Board to education of the youth of the county.

The Board of Education also has notified us of the need for approximately $68 million more in capital needs. These
projects are to be more clearly defined and consideration will be given as to when we will seek the funding.

To meet the needs of our Public Library funds were appropriated to assist the County in determining our needs for
the future of our main library facility and its branches. This report provided a plan that showed our needs for the next
twenty-five years at an estimated cost of $20 million. These projects will be evaluated and included in future capital
outlay plans.

We have plans to begin construction of the County Justice Complex in November/December 2008. This facility will
be a 142,000 square foot facility that will house the administrative offices of the County's Sheriffs Office and a
detention center that wilt house 528 inmates. It will be located in an area near the current Jail and connect to the
District and Superior Courthouses. The current estimates are for this facility to cost approximataly $58 mitlion.
Financing of this will facifity be through the issuance of Certificates of Participation.

The county has a iong-term lease of property own by N.C. State for 373 acres of land in the Hofmann Forest. This
area will be used o create the Deppe Park in Hofmann Forest Nature Park. This park opened in April of 2008 and
provides tot-lot playground, picnic pavilion, grills, trails and restrooms. Additional areas of the park will be developed
for passive use in the future. We have received a Park and Recreation Trust Fund grant (PARTF) of $250,000 to
assist with the initial development of this district park, with the County is providing an additional $315,000 towards this
development.

Cash, which is temporarily idle during the year, is invested in demand deposits, certificates of deposits, commarcial
paper, and the North Carolina Cash Management Trust. The county's cash management policy is designed to (1)
assure the safety of principal, {2) provide for liquidity of funds, and (3) attain a market-average yield. Investments are
piaced on a competitive basis. Revenue generated from interest on investments of Govemment Fund types for fiscal
year 2008 totaled $3,286,406. Of this $1,923,527, which equates to approximately 1.80 cents on the tax rate, was
from the general fund.

RISK MANAGEMENT:

Onslow County participates in two self-funded insurance programs. Our Health Insurance program is administered by
Blue Cross / Blue Shieild and our Workers Compensation Fund is administered by Compensation Claims Solutions.
Dental insurance is provided for the county employees under a fully-insured plan. The County's insurance for
property and liability coverage is secured through a local insurance agent. In addition all county employees are
covered by professional liability insurance.

PENSION AND OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Onslow County sponsors a single-employer defined benefit pension plan for its public safety employees. Each year,
an independent actuary engaged by the pension plan calculates the amount of the annual contribution that Onglow
County must take to the pension plan to ensure that the plan will be able to fully meet its obligation to retired
employees on a timely basis. As a matter of policy, Onslow County fully funds each year's annual required
contribution to the pension plan as determined by the actuary. Due to Onslow County's conservative funding policy,
"~
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Onsiow County has succesded as of December 31, 2007, in funding 21.59% of the actuarial accrued liability of
pension benefit obligations. The remaining unfunded amount is being systematically funded over 24 years as part of

the annual required contribution caiculated by the actuary.

Onslow County alsc provides post-retirement health care benefits for retirees who participate in the North Carolina
Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System (System) and retire with full or reduced benefits from the County
with at least ten years of continuous service. The County pays the full cost of coverage for these benefits. In
addition, retirees can purchase coverage for thelr dependents at the County's group rates. This benefit ends at the
employees 65" birthday. As of June 30, 2008 there are B85 retirees are eligible for post-retirement health benefits.
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, the County made payments for post-retirement health benefit premiums of
$415,548.

To evaluate the impact of meeting the reporting requirements of GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial
Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, effective for the County for the fiscal
year ending June 30, 2009, the County cbtained an actuarial valuation of its OPEB liability based on data for
DPecember 31, 2007. The actuarial valuation quantified an unfunded liability of $18,103,508 to be amortized over 30
years, and an annual required contribution (“ARC") of $2,037,543, comprised of normal cost of $1,412,797 and
accrued fiability of $624,746. The valuation was completed using a 4.00% discount rate.

The County currently funds OPEB on an annual pay-as-you-go basis under a self-insured plan. The County will
confinue to evaluate its plan for adjustments, which may need to be made to meet future budget and other needs.

The County has elected fo provide death benefits to employees through the Death Benefit Plan for members of the
Local Governmental Employses Retirement System, a multiple-employer, State-administered, cost-sharing plan
funded on a one—year term cost basis. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 the County made contributions to the
State for death benefits of $38,592. :

Additional information on Onslow County's pension arrangements and post employment benefits can be found in
Note 1]l {B) (3) {g) in the notes to the financial statements.

AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Govemnment Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in
Financial Reporting to Onslow County for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report {CAFR) for the fiscal year
ended June 20, 2007. This was the seventeenth (17") consecutive year that Onslow County has received this
prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, Onslow County published an easily readabie
and efficiently organized financial report, whose contents conform to program standards. Such CAFR must satisfy
both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable lsgal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe our CAFR continues to conform to the
Certificate of Achievement program requirements and we will be submitting our 2008 CAFR to the GFOA.

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) has given an Award for Qutstanding Achievement in Popuiar
Annual Financial Reporting to Onslow County for its Popular Annual Financial report for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2007. This is the third (3™) consecutive year we have receive this award. The Award for Outstanding
Achievement in Popular Reporting is a prestigious national award, recognizing conformance with the highest
standards for preparation of state and local govemment popular reports. In order to receive an Award for
Outstanding Achievement in Popular Annual Financial Reporting, a government must publish a Popular Annual
Financial Report, whose contents conform to program standards of creativity, presentation, understandability, and
reader appeal.

An .Award for Outstanding Achievement in Poputar Annual Financial Reporting if valid for a one-year period only, we
believe our current report continues to conform to requirements of the Poputar Annual Financial Reporting and we will
be submitting our 2008 PAFR to the GFOA also.

The Govemment Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada {GFOA) presented a Distinguished
Budget Presentation Award to Onslow County, North Carolina for its annual budget for the fiscal year beginning July
1, 2007. This is the second (2™) consecutive year we have receive this award. In order to receive this award, a
governmental unit must publish a budget document that meets program criteria as a policy document, as an
e e ————— S
Onslow County Finance Office
615 Court Street » Jacksonville, North Carolina = 28540
Phone: 910.455.3404 = Fax: 910.455.3024
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operations guide, as a financial plan, and as a communications device.

This award is valid for a period of one year only. We believe our current budget continues to conform to program
requirements, and we are submitting it to GFOA to determine its eligibility for another award.

Preparation of this report would not have been possible without the efficient and dedicated efforts of the staff of the
Finance Office. | would like to express special appreciation to Ellen McMillan, deputy finance officer; Jessica Roberts
and Sandra Janssen, accountants; the rest of the Finance Office staff and Pittard, Perry & Crone, Inc. for their assis-
tance in the preparation of this report.

In closing, we would like to thank the members of the Onslow County Board of Commissioners for their continued
support throughout the past year. :

Sincerely,
Aivin W._ Barrett, Jr.
Deputy County Manager - Finance

]
Onslow County Finance Office
615 Court Street » Jacksonvilie, North Carolina = 28540
Phone: 910.455.3404 - Fax: 910.455.3024
Xvi
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Certified Public Accountants and Consultants Ideas...Strat ngC’S. .. RC‘SU”S

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of County Commissioners
Onslow County,
Jacksonville, North Carolina

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of Onslow County, North Carolina, as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2008, which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of
Onslow County’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these basic financial
statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the Onslow County
ABC Board or Onslow County Hospital Authority. Those financial statements were audited by
other auditors whose reports thereon have been fumished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it
relates to the amounts included for the Onslow County ABC Board and Onslow County Hospital
Authority is based on the reports of the other auditors. '

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptrolter General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
basic financial statements are free of material misstatement. The financial statements of the
Onslow County ABC Board and Onslow County Hospital Authority were not audited in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the basic financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audit and the report of the other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinions. '

In our apinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the
government activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented component units,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Onslow County, North
Carolina as of June 30, 2008, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows,
where applicable, thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund for the
year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
October 31, 2008 on our consideration of Onslow County's internal control over financial
reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grants. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the resuits of
our audit.

Member: North Carolina Association of Certified Public Accountants
and American institute of Certified Public Accountants
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Management's Discussion and Analysis and the Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation
Allowance Schedules of Funding Progress and Employer Contributions on pages 4 through 12
and pages 57 and 58 are not a required part of the basic financial statements but supplementary
information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain
limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the
methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However,
we did not audit this information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the basic financia! statements of Onslow County, North Carolina. The
introductory information, combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and
schedules and the statistical tables, as well as the accompanying schedule of expenditures of
federal and State awards as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations and the State Single Audit
Implementation Act, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part
of the basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial
statements and schedules and the accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and State
awards have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic
financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory information and the statistical tables
have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied by us and other auditors in the audit
of the basic financial statements, and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

/
La Grange, North Carolina
October 31, 2008
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Management'’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of Onslow County, we offer readers of Onslow County’s financial statements this narrative overview
and analysis of the financial activities of Onslow County for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. We encourage
readers to read the information presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in the
County's financial statements, which follow this narrative.

Financial Highlights

» The assets of Onslow County exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal year by $15,650,134. (net

assets).

The government's total net assets decreased by $37,409,584. (See Exhibit 2)

As of the close of the current fiscal year, Onslow County's govemmental funds reported combined ending
fund balances of $87,778,85t a net decrease of $10,851,448 in comparison with the prior year. This
decrease is mainly due to use of bond proceeds, from the previous year, for the construction of new school
facilities. In North Carolina the county issues the debt and constructs the schools which are then assets of
the Board of Education. This accounts for $11,700,000 of the decrease in the fund balance. The general
fund showed an increase of $3,528,739 in fund balance. Approximately 70.5% of this total amount or
$60,493,547 is available for spending at the government's discretion (unreserved fund balance}.

» At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the General Fund was $28,215,626 or
21.4% of total general fund expenditures for the fiscal year.

« Onslow County's governmental funds total debt had a net increase of $37.6 million during the current fiscal
year. New debt was issued during FY 2008 for schools ($40.0 miliion) and site improvements and parking
lots for future administration building and justice complex ($3.8 million).

¢ Onslow County held the following bond ratings:

Moody's Al
Standard & Poor's AA-

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to Onslow County’s basic financial statements.
The County's basic financial statements consist of three components; 1) government-wide financial statements, 2)
fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financlal statements (see Figure 1). The basic financlal statements
present two different views of the County through the use of government-wide statements and fund financial
statemnents. In addition to the basic financial statements, this report contains other supplemental information that will
enhance the reader's understanding of the financial condition of Onslow County.

Basic Financlal Statements

The first two statements (Exhibits 1 and 2) in the basic financial statements are the Government-wide Financlal
Statements. They provide both short and long-term information about the County’s financial status.

The next statements (Exhibits 3 through 10) are Fund Financial Statements. These statements focus on the
activities of the individual parts of the County’s government. These statements provide more detail than the
govemment-wide statements. There are four parts to the Fund Financial Statements: 1) the governmental funds
statements, 2) the budgetary comparison statements, 3) the proprietary fund statements and 4} the fiduciary and
agency fund statements.

The next section of the basic financial statements are the notes. The notes to the financial statements explain in
detail some of the data contained in those statements. After the notes, supplemental information is provided to
show details about the County’s non-major governmental funds and internal service funds, all of which are added
together in one column on the basic financial statements. Budgetary information required by the General Statutes
also can be found in this part of the statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The govermment-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad overview of the County's
finances, similar in format to a financial statement of a private-sector business. The government-wide statements
provide short and long-term information about the Gounty’s financial status as a whole.
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The two government-wide statements report the County’s net assets and how they have changed. Net assets are the
difference between the County's total assets and total liabilities. Measuring net assets is one way to gauge the
County's financial condition.

The government-wide statements are divided into three categories: 1} governmental activities, 2) business-type
activities, and 3) component units. The governmental activities include most of the County’s basic services such as
general government, public safety, human services, parks and recreation, and general administration. Property taxes
and state and federal grant funds finance most of these activities. The business-type activities are those that the
County charges customers to provide. These include the water and sewer and landfill services offered by Onslow
County. The final category is the component units. Cnslow County Hospital is a public hospital operated by a not-
for-profit corporation that has leased the hospital from the County for a period of 89 years. The County appoints the
board of trustees for the hospital and has previously issued debt on its bebalf. Although legally separate from the
County, the ABC Board is important to the County because the County exercises control over the Board by
appointing its members and because the Beard is required to distribute its profits to the County.

The government-wide financial statements are on Exhibits 1 and 2 of this report.
Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide a more detailed look at the County’s most significant activities. A fund is a
grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific
activities or objectives. Onslow County, like all other governmental entities in North Carolina, uses fund aceounting to
ensure and reflect compliance {or non-compliance) with finance-related legal requirements, such as the General
Statutes or the County's budget ordinance. All of the funds of Onslow County can be divided into two categories:;
governmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental Funds — Governmental funds are used to account for those functions reported as governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements. Most of the County’s basic services are accounted for in
governmental funds. These funds focus on how assets can readily be converted into cash flow in and out, and what
monies are left at year-end that will be available for spending in the next year. Governmental funds are reported
using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting which provides a current financial resources focus.
As a result, the governmental fund financial statements give the reader a detailed short-term view that helps him or
her determine if there are more or less financiai resources available to finance the County's programs. The
relationship between government activities {reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities)
and governmental funds is described in a reconciliation that is a part of the fund financial statements.

Onsiow County adopts an annual budget for its General Fund, as required by the North Carolina General Statutes.
The budget is a legally adopted document that incorporates input from the citizens of the County, the managemant of
the County, and the decisions of the Board about which services to provide and how to pay for them. It also
authorizes the County to obtain funds from identified sources to finance these current period activities. The
budgetary statement provided for the General Fund demonstrates how well the County complied with the budget
ordinance and whether or not the County succeeded in providing the services as planned when the budget was
adopted. The budgetary comparison statement uses the budgetary basis of accounting and is presented using the
same format, language, and classifications as the legal budget document. The statement shows four columns: 1)
the original budget as adopted by the board; 2) the final budget as amended by the board; 3) the actual resources,
charges to appropriations, and ending balances in the General Fund; and 4) the difference or variance between the
final budget and the actual resources and charges. To account for the difference between the budgetary basis of
accounting and the modified accrual basis, a reconcitiation showing the differences in the reported activities is shown
at the end of the budgsetary statement.

Proprietary Funds - Onslow County has one kind of proprietary funds. Enterprise Funds are used to report the
same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. Onslow County
usas enterprise funds to account for its Water and Sewer activity and for its Solid Waste operations. These funds are
the same as those functions shown in the business-type activities in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement
of Activities.

Fiduclary Funds — Fiduclary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
government. Onslow County has one fiduciary fund.

Agency Funds — Agency funds are used to account for assets the County holds on behalf of others. The County has
three agency funds.
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Notes to the Financial Statements — The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the
financial statements are on pages 27 - 57 of this report.

Other Information — {n addition to the basic financial statements and accampanying notes, this report
includes certain required supplementary information concerning Onslow County’s progress in funding its
obligation to provide pension benefits to its employees. Required supplementary information can be found
beginning on pages 80 - 61 of this report. '

Government-Wide Financial Analysis

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad overview of the County’s
finances, similar in format to a financial statement of a private-sector business. The government-wide statements '
provide short and long-term information about the County's financial status as a whole.

The two government-wide statements report the County's net assets and how they have changed. Net asseis are the
difference between the County's lotal assets and total liabilites. Measuring net assets is one way fo gage the
County's financlal condition.

The govemnment-wide statements are divided into three categories: 1) governmental activities; 2} business-type
activities: and 3) component units. The governmental activities include most of the County's basic services such as
public safety, parks and recreation, and general administration. Property taxes and state and federal grant funds
finance most of these activities. The business-type activities are those that the County charges customers to provide.
Our business-type activities consist of our solid waste operation. The final category is the component units. Onslow
County Mospital is a public hospital operated by a not-for-profit corporation that has leased the hospital from the
County. The County appoints the board of trustees for the Hospital. Although legally separate from the County, the
ABC Board is important to the County because the County is financially accountable for the Board by appeinting its
members and because the Board is required to distribute its profits to the County. '

The government-wide financial statements are on Exhibits 1 and 2 of this report.

ONSLOW COUNTY'S NET ASSETS

Governmental aclivilies Buslness-typs acfivilies Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Currant Assets [ 100,304,376. § 143,324,269 $ 24,393,930 § 18,020,353 H 124,698,306. § 134,344 622
Land, Impravements and
Construclion in progress 27,360,559, 17,181,708 6,524,965 1,494,287 33,885,524, 18,675,995
Capital assets net if 23,017,237, 22,403,218 8,391,859 10,028,511 31,409,186. 32431727
depreciation
Total asseis 150,682,172, 152,909,193 39,310,854 29,543,151 180,993,026, 482,452,344
Long-term liabilllies 142,816,135, 102,786,018 19,211,245 13,729,606 162,027,280, 116,515,624
Other liabilities 10,753,518, 12,865,798 1,661,994 111,202 12,415,512, 12,977,000
Total liabillties - 153,568,663, 115,651,816 20,873,239 13,640,808 174,442,892, 129,492,624
Net assets
Invastment in capital assets
et of refated debt 38,329,708 30,332,129 { 629,939) 4,339,757 37,699,767 34,671,686
Restrcted 2,035,393, 1,569,093 - . . 2,035,393 1,569,093
Unrestricted {43,252,5680) 5,356,154 19,067,554 11,362,586 {24,185026) 16,718,740
Tolal nel assets 3 { 2,887,481) $ 37,267,376 $ 18,437,615 § 15702343 $ 15,550,134 52,059,719

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as one useful indicator of a government's financial condition. The
assets of Onslow County exceeded liabilities by $15,550,134 as of June 30, 2008. This amount may seem small to
some however In North Carolina the County issues and carries the debt for school construction while the assets of
supported by these debts are recorded as assets of the Board of Education. The larger portion of Onslow County’s
net assets reflect the County’s investment in capital assets (e.g. land, buildings, machinery, and equipment), less any
related debt still outstanding that was issued to acquire those items. Onslow County uses these capital assets to
provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets ate not available for future spending. Although Onslow
County's investment in its capital assets is reported net of the outstanding related debt, the resources needed to
repay that debt must be provided by other sources, since the capital assets cannot be used to liquidate these
liabilities.

Several particular aspects of the County's financial operations positively influenced the total unrestricted
governmental net assets:
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Property taxes are a major source of revenus for the County. The overall collection rate for the current year taxes
was 96.5 percent. The fiscal year 2008 tax rate was $0.503 cents per $100 valuation, which is well below the state
legal limit of $1.50.

Sales taxes are one of our major revenue sources. For FY 08, sales taxes receipts were $786,774 over our
budgsted estimate of $34.29 million.

Additionally, our bonded debt per capita increased $438.00 to $629.00 with the issuance of debt for schools and site
improvements for our future administration building and the justice complex parking fot.

ONSLOW COUNTY'S CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

Govemmental activities Business-type activities Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Revenues: .
Program revenues:
Charges for service $ 13615711 & B046730 § 6530492 § 6,088,872 $ 20146203 $ 14,136,602
Operating grants & contributions 24,176,499 29,499 349 28,768 - 24,205,267 29,499,349
Capital grants and contributions 7,088,616 2,401,155 - - 7,008,616 2,401,155
General revenues: ’ - -

Praperty taxes 56,504,728 53,669,841 - - 56,594,728 53,659,841
Other taxes 34,988,753 33,378,048 - - 34,988,753 33,378,046
Grants and contributions not ‘ - -

restricted to specific programs 1,571,574 2,762,022 - - 1,571,574 2,762,022
Other 6,344,694 5,668,225 873,813 879,928 7,218,507 6,548,153

Total assets TS 15415568 . 1433013 6000800 b1 B13B4R 142385168
Expenses:

General govemment 12,864,872 12,909,363 12,864,872 12,909,363
Public safety 24191728 19,577,706 24,191,728 19,577,706
Transportation 2,156,825 2,053,678 2,156,825 2,053,678
Economic development 2,932,659 2,501,171 2,932,659 2591171
Human services 43,677,025 42,412,075 43,677,025 42,412,075
Environmental protection 550,949 457,485 550,949 457,485
Cultural and recreational 4,463,909 3,800,632 4,463,909 . 3,800,632
Education 89,228,693 52,651,280 89,228,693 52,651,290
Interest on long term debt 4,458,772 4,593,063 4,458,772 4,593,063
Solid Waste 4,697,800 4,384,331 4,697,800 4,384,331

Total liabilities T TREm, A5 141 046,463 4,597,500 4.384,997 189,203,002 145,440,794

Change in net assels

before transfers (40,144,857} (5,631,095) 2,735,273 2,586,469 (37,409,564) (3,045,626)
Transfers - - - - - R
Change in net assets T {40,144,857) {5,631,095) 2,735,273 2,585,469 (37,409,584) (3,045,626)
Nets assets July 1, 2007 37,257,376 42,688,471 15,702,342 13,116,873 52,959,718 56,005,344
Net assets June 30, 2008 $ (2887481) § 37257376 § 18437615 § 15702342 § 15550134 § 52959718

Governmental actlvities. Governmental activities decreased the County's net assets by $40.1 million. This
decrease is due to school construction activities. In North Carolina the county finances the construction of school
facilities but the asset is recorded on the records of the Board of Education. As the County issues general obligation
debt which is reflected its books without the asset for which the debt was issued we wilf continue to show decreases
once the construction is complete and the bond funds expended. This impacts both the general fund which reflects
the debt liability but also the school ¢construction fund which accounts for the bond proceeds and expenditure of the
school facilities.
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Sales tax revenues funded $34.98 million of the Onstow County government activities. Only property taxes provided
a higher source of revenue at $56.5 million, while operating grants provided $24.1 miltion in revenues.

Business-type activities: Business-type activities increased Onslow County’s net assets by $2.7 miillion. Of this
increase in net assets from the Solid Waste Fund, $1.8 million was from operating revenues.

Charges for services showed an increase of $500,000 over the prior year at $6.5 million while operating cost
increased only $313,000.

Financial Analysis of the County’'s Funds

As noted earlier, Onstow County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legal requirements.

Governmental Funds. The focus of Onslow County's governmental funds is to provide Information on near-term
inflows, outflows, and balances of usable resources. Such information is useful in assessing Onslow County's
financing requirements. Specifically, unreserved fund balance can be a useful measure of a government's net
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscai year.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of Onslow County. At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund
balance of the General Fund was $28.2 million, while total fund balance reached $51.8 million. As a measure of the
general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unreserved fund balance and total fund balance to total fund
expenditures. Unreserved fund balance represents 21.4 percent of fotal General Fund expenditures, while total
general fund fund balance represents 39.4 percent of that same amount,

At June 30, 2008, the governmental funds of Onslow County reported a combined fund balance of $85.7 million, for a
$10.8 million decrease over last year. This large decrease is due to the use of school construction bond funds for
the construction of facilities. If you remove the school construction fund from the combined fund balance the total
combined fund balance would be $52.8 miltion or a 1.83 percent increase over FY 07. This increase is mainly due to
property tax collections, increases in sales tax revenuss, increased revenue from fees.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights: During the fiscal year, the County revised the budget on several occasions.
Generally, budget amendments fall into one of three categories: 1) amendments made to adjust the estimates that
are used to prepare the original budget ordinance once exact information is available; 2) amendments made to
recognize new funding amounts from external sources, such as Federal and State grants; and 3} increases in
appropriations that become nacessary to maintain services.

Total amendments to the General Fund decreased the budget by approximately $688,000. These were mostly the
result of increases in programs related to Human Services (especially in the area public assistance where we
reduced the budget by $1.09 miltion). This was mainly from reductions in Medicaid cost which are being transitioned
to the state There was a corresponding increase in the restricted intergovernmental revenues to cover these
increases.

For the FY the General Fund fund batance had a net gain of $3.5 million for a 7.2% increase. The county is
conservative in its budget estimates. This can be seen as our revenues exceeded our budget estimate by $3.5
million. Our expenditures and transfers were less then budgeted by approximately $11.0 million.

A review of actual revenues verses expenditures shows that the revenues exceeded expenditures by slightly less
than $4.8 million. After fransfers the net revenues over expenditures was $3.5 million.

The actual operating revenues for the General Fund were more than the budgeted amount by $3.5 million. This was
mainly due to the receipt of funds from sales and service in excess of estimates by $1.3 million ad valorem taxes
received in excess of estimates by $973,000, sales and use tax in excess of estimate by $768,000. As Onslow
County has become a regional shopping area as well an economic stability in the area we have seen continued
growth in retail sales.

The restricted intergovernmental revenues were also less than expected by approximately $525,000. The majority of
these funds would relate directly to Human Service programs.
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The major variance from our budgeted expenditures was in the Human Services area where our expenditures were
$4.5 million less than estimated. Expenditures for health programs were $1.4 million under budget, social service
programs $2.7 million under budget and aging programs $268,000 under budget. These three account for $4.3
million of this variance from budgst.

General governmental expenditures were $3.4 million under budget. The majority of this, $2.2 miliion, is in non-
departmental expenditures. The county is seif insured for employee hospitalization. We were able to spend $1.2
million less than anticipated for this coverage. We also saw savings of $500,000 that occurred with our merit pay
contingency due to the ability of departments to cover the merit pay increases from lapse salaries to a greater degree
than anticipated. Additionally, funds planned to be used for courthouse security measures did not occur and will roll
over to FY 2009 for approximately $400,000. OQur expenditures for ITS were $299,000 under budget as well due to
delays in some of our plans to upgrade equipment and software. We also continue to see improvement through
reduced workers compensation cost which were $166,000 under budget.

Proprietary Funds. Onslow County's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the
govemment-wide statements but in more detail. Unrestricted net assets of the Solid Waste Fund at the end of the
fiscal year amounted to $15.9 million. The total growth in net assets for the Solid Waste Fund was $2.7 million.

Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds of the County cover such items as Emergency 911 fees, Register of Deeds Automation
funds, CDBG projects and grant projects. These activities showed fotal revenues for FY 08 of $925,000 and total
expenditures of $487,000. This represented a 6.8% decrease in revenues and a 44.9% decrease in expenditures
from FY (7. The Emergency 911 fund, CDBG and Project Grant fund accounted for 92.7% of the revenues and
87.2% of the expenditures.

The fund balance for the special revenue funds is $1,063,132. This is a $34,780 decrease from the prior year. This is
as a result changes within the emergency 911 fund.

School Construction Fund

The School Construction Fund is used to account for the construction of school facilities. The school projects funded
in this fund are financed by the issuance of debt. The revenues of this fund for the fiscal year were $1.1 million in
interest eamed. Qur expenditures totaled $54.2 million as the school projects maove forward. During FY 2008 we
issued $40 million in general abligation bonds. This will complete those projects that were planned as a part of the
$90 million general obligation bond issue approved the voters in FY 20086.

The fund balance for the school construction fund is $32.8 million. Over the next 12 months these funds will be used
for the construction of classroom additions and the construction of a new elementary school. As these bond
proceeds are used, the fund balance will continue to decrease until the projects are completed.

Non-major Capital Projects Funds

The county maintains several project funds for capital projects. These are the Capital Improvement Fund, Airport
Fund, and Capital Projects. The capital improvement fund accounts for improvements made to facilities on an
annual basis. The Airport Fund is used to account for funds received for airport improvements from federal and state
grants and passenger facility fees. The Capital Project fund accounts for those projects that will extended over more
than one fiscal year. For FY 08 the total revenues of these funds were $5.3 million while expenditures were $13.8
million. The Airport fund accounts for 88.3% of the revenues.  Expenditures on our Detention/Sheriff Office facility
and administrative office complex accounted for $4.8 million or 34.8% of the expenditures of this fund. The county
issued $3.8 million in debt to reimburse itself for land purchases and site improvements for the future Administrative
Office Complex and the construction of the parking lot for the Justice Complex. Additional funds expended for these
projects in advance of the issuance of debt will be reimbursed at the time the debt is issued.

The negative fund balance will be resolved with the issuance of the debt to reimburse funds advanced on projects.
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Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. Onslow County's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type activities as of

June 30, 2008, totals $60.5 million (net of accumulated depreciation).

machinery and equipment, park facilities, and vehicles.

Major capital asset fransactions during the year include:

Energy savings improvements to facilities
Health Department Elevator replacement
Purchase of property for water access

Deppe Park project

Completion of AIP 25 and 26 projects

These assets include buildings, land,

At the current time the following projects are included and make up the majority of the construction in progress.

Land

Buildings and systems
Improvements
Equipment

Vehicles

Heavy equipment

Construction in pregress

Subtotal

Less accumulated depreciation

Total

Justice complex
Administrative office complex

Tax office, planning, and finance software packages

Radio tower
Airport Runway improvements

ONSLOW COUNTY'S CAPITAL ASSETS

Governmental activities Business-type activities Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
$ 10,940,519 $ 10604601 & 1,284,081 $ 1,283,967 § 12224600 § 11,888,568
30,328,867 30,418,830 2,127,482 2,127,482 32,456,349 32,546,312
29,543,222 28,482,663 15,576,425 15,576,425 45,119,647 44,059,088
11,873,320 10,584,725 327,552 36,221 12,200,872 10,200,946
9,208,951 8,693,165 494,853 506,553 9,703,804 9,199,718
353,081 358,501 1,734,564 1,933,548 2,087,645 2,292,049
16,420,040 6,577,107 5,240,884 210,320 21,660,924 6,787,427
108,668,000 95,719,592 26,785,841 21,954,516 135,453,841 117,674,108
58,290,204 56,134,668 11,868,917 10,431,717 70,159,121 66,566,385
$ 50377796 § 39,584,924 § 14916924 § 11,522,799 § 65284720 § 51,107,723

Additional information on the County's capital assets can be found in Note Iif, 5 of the Basic Financial Statements,

beginning on page 38

Long-term Debt. As of June 30, 2008 Onslow County had total general obligation bonded debt outstanding of
$106.6 million all of which is debt backed by the full faith and credit of the County.

10
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ONSLOW COUNTY'S OUTSTANDING DEBT
General Obligation, Certificates of Participation, Special Obligation Bonds and Instaliment Purchases

Governmental activities Business-type activities Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
General obligation bonds $ 106,665,000 $ 70555000 $ - $ - $ 106,665,000 § 70,555,000
Certificates of Participation 13,950,000 14,725,000 - - 13,950,000 14,725,000
instaliment purchase 17,541,845 15,353,643 - - 17,541,845 15,353,643
Special obligation bonds - - 12,462,726 7,183,041 12,462,726 7,183,041
Total _$ 138,156,845 § 100,633,643 § 12,462,726 $ 7,183,041 § 1506195571 § 107,816,684

Onslow County’s total debt had a net increase of $42.9 million during the current fiscal year. The major portion of this
amount is in our general obligation debt where we issued $40.0 million in school bonds. We also had an increase in
our installment purchase debt for site improvements for future administration building site and a parking lot for our
justice complex.

An additional we issued $8.0 million in special obligation bonds for the refunding of earlier special obligation bonds
and new debt for the expansion of our landfill. All of the principal and interest due on these special obligation bonds
will be paid from our landfill operations.

As mentioned in the financial highlights section of this document, Onslow County maintains an A1bond rating from
Maoody’s Investor Service and AA- rating from Standard and Poor's Corporation. This bond rating is a clear indication
of the sound financial condition of Onslow County.

The State of North Carolina limits the amount of general obligation debt that a unit of government can issue to 8% of
the total assessed value of taxable property located within that government's boundaries. The legal debt margin for
Onslow County is $759,164,830.

Additional information regarding Onslow County’s long-term debt can be found in note 7 on page 49 of this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates
The following key economic indicators reflect the growth and prosperity of the County.

- The unemployment rate (seasonally adjusted) for the county as of June 30, 2008 is 6.0%, which is on
par with the state average of 5.9%.

- For FY 2007-08 the assessed value of real and personal property is increased to $11.2 billion from
$10.5 billion. This reflects the steady growth we have seen in construction and development.

- Our population has continued to increase as it has over the past few years with estimated growth of
approximately 4.0% for FY 08. This is due in part to the expansion of the Marine Corps through its 202
Growth Initiative. By the end of 2011 we expect a total increase of approximately 8,000 new troops to
our county.

- The County continues to become a retail center with taxable sales of $1.2 billion in FY 2007, the last
year for which data is available. This is a 9.7% increase over the previous year.

Budget Highlights for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2009
Governmental Activities: The County approved a $151.7 million general fund budget. This represents a 4.81%
increase from the amended budget for FY 2008. For fiscal year the increase is due to increased funding for current

expense for schools, capital outlay for schools, increases in human services programs, and increases to the benefit
plan for employees.

1
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Our ad valorem tax rate for FY 08-09 was held constant at $0.503 per $100 vajuation. !t is estimated that property
tax revenue for FY 07-08 will be $56.0 million or 38.07% of the general fund budget.

Education is one of the Board of Commissioners top priorities. Expenditures for education current expense have
been increased by 10.25% or $3.2 million. This is the third year of a three-year commitment to increase the “per
pupil” iocal funding. Additionally in FY 2009, we will be incurring new debt payments from the issuance of $40 million
in general obligation bonds for school facilities in the spring of 2008.

We continue with the process of construction of a new 528-bed detention facility and Sheniff Office. This project will
be bid in early FY 2009. This project will be funded by the issuance of debt in the form of certificates of participation.

FY 2009 will show a change in the funding for Medicaid. There wili be a reduction in our sales tax revenues as a
trade with the State of North Carolina to assume the cost of Medicaid expenses. This is the second year of a three-
year phase out of the Medicaid cost.

To balance the budget the county appropriated $16.7million in fund balance for FY 2009. This practice, of
appropriating fund balance, is common. For the past few years, we have not used any of the funds appropriated. [t
is anticipated however that this will not be case in FY 09,

The Board of Commissioners will also be evaluating programs to determine if they should be continued, modified or
ended. This will call for some hard decisions for all but should create saving of tax funds that could be used for other
programs and needs.

The County facilities are in need of major renovation or replacement. We are continuing to refine our capital
improvement program to provide for orderly construction and funding of these projects

Business — type Activities: The County operates one business type activity, which is our Solid Waste Enterprise
fund. For FY 08-09 the solid waste fund budget is $8.02 million for & 7.22% increase over 2008. This fund is fully
funded through revenues and reserves of the fund and is not dependent on the General Fund for support.

In FY 2009, we will complete the construction of the next cell of our landfill. This was funded by the issuance of $8.5
million in special obligation bonds.

At the same time we issued this new debt, we refunded our outstanding Special Obiigation Bond to secure the
savings due to lower interest rates over the remaining life of the debt.

Requests for Information
This report is designed to provide an overview of the County's finances for those with an interest in this area.

Questions conceming any of the information found in this report or requests for additional information should be
" directed to the Onslow County Finance Office, 615 Court Strest, Jacksonville, N.C. 28540,

12
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Onslow County, North Carolina
Statement of Net Assets

June 30, 2008

EXHIBIT 1

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables, net
Due from other governments
Due from component unit
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other
Restricted assets
Cash and investments
Assats limited by board
Other Investments
Other assets
Capital assets:
Land, improvements, and
construction in progress
Other capital asssets, net of
depreclation
Total capital assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued

liabilities
Due to primary government
Unearned revenues
Noncurrent Habilities:
Due within one year
Due in more than one year
Total liabilities

NET ASSETS
Investment in capital assets,
net of related debt
Restricted for:
Human services
Reqgister of deeds
Workers' compensation
Drug enforcement .
Capital improvements
Unrestricted
Total net assets

’

Primary Government

Compaonent Units

Onslow County

Governmental Business-type Hospital Onslow County
Activities _ Activities Total Authority ABC Board
$ 80,395912 $ 20,563,584 $ 100,959,496 § 3,434,814 $ 1,892,882
17,630,924 666,498 18,297,423 16,931,768 -
1,388,332 65,623 1,453,955 - -
185,682 : - 185,682 - -
122,521 6,035 128,556 1,595,360 927,173
581,005 8,052 559,058 732,047 20,037
- 3,084,137 3,084,137 - -
65,427,216

- - - 108,573 -

- - - 2,971,109 -
27,360,559 6,524,965 33,885,524 22,692,120 -
23,017,237 8,391,959 . 31,409,196 18,123,583 2,493,527
50,377,796 14,916,924 65,294,720 40,815,703 2,493,627

150,682,172 39,310,854 189,993,026 132,016,691 5,333,619
10,423 987 1,661,994 12,085,982 . 17,586,657 841,219
- - - - 185,682
329,531 - 329,531 - -
6,947,199 2,730,051 9,677,250 32,164 -
135,868,936 16,481,194 152,350,130 60,307,165 -
153,569,653 20,873,239 174,442,892 77,925,986 1,026,901
38,329,706, (629,939) 37,699,767 15,210,819 2,493,527
- - - 4,404,873 -
102,565 - 102,565 - - -
1,837,366 - 1,837,366 - -
95,462 - 895,462 . - -
- - - - 793,717
{43,252,580) 19,067,554 (24,185,026) 34,474,813 1,019,474
$ (2887481) § 18437615 § 15550,134 § 54,000,605 § 4,306,718

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Onslow County, North Carolina
Statement of Activities
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Program Revenues

Charges for Operating Grants Capital Grants
Functions Expenses Services and Contributions  and Confributions
Primary government:
Governmental activities:

General government $ 12,864,872 L 2,203,932 $ 1,336,683 5 - 24,545

Public safety 24,191,728 4,835,674 794,784 -

Transportation . 2,156,825 1,346,409 380,211 4,576,696

Economic and physical development 2,932,659 233,910 122,398 -

Human services 43,677,025 4,705,082 20,894,074 -

Environmental protection 550,949 - 154,763 -

Culture and recreation 4,463,908 190,704 493,586 288,804

Education 89,228,602 - - - 2,198,571
interest on debt ' 4,458,772 - - -

Total governmental activities 184,525,432 13,615,711 24,176,499 7,088,616
Business-type activities:

Solid waste 4,697,800 6,530,492 28,768 -
Total primary government $ 189,223 232 $ 20,146,203 $ 242057267 $ 7,088,616
Component units:

Onslow County Hospital Authority : $ 94159346 $ 96,551,895 & - $ -
Onslow County ABC Board 8,558,474 8,854,891 - -
Total component units $ 102,717,820 $ 105,506,786 $ - $ -

General revenues:
Property taxes, levied for general purposes
Local option sales taxes
Other taxes and licenses:

Investment earnings, unrestricted
Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs
Miscellaneous, unrestricted
Total general revenues and special items
Change in net assets
Net assets - beginning
Net assets - ending
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EXHIBIT 2

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets

Primary Government : Component Units
Governmental Business-type Onslow County Onslow County
Activities Activities Total Hospital Authority ABC Board
$  (8.209712) § - $ (9,299,712)
(18,461,270) - (18,481,270)
4,146,491 - 4,146,491
(2,576,351) - {(2,576,351)
(18,077,869) - {(18,077,869)
(396,186) - . {396,186)
(3,490,815) - (3,480,B15)
(87,030,121) - (87.030,121)
{4,458,772) - {4,458,772)
{139,644,608) - {139,644,606)
- 1,861,460 1,861,460
(139,644,606) 1,861,450 (137,783,1486)

$ 2,392,549 $ -

- 396,417
2,302,549 306,417
56,594,728 - " 56,594,728 - -
34,088,753 - 34,988,753 - -
1,761,763 - 1,761,763 - -
3,286,406 918,563 4,204,969 - 58,762
1,571,574 - 1,571,574 173,008 -
1,206,526 (44,750) 1,251,776 2,190,673 244
09,499,749 873,813 100,373,562 2,363,681 59,006
(40,144 857) 3.735,273 (37,409,584) #,756,230 455423
37,257,376 15,702,342 52,959,718 49,334,375 3,851,295

5 (2,887,481) $ 18437615 $ 15,650,134 $ 54,090,605 $ 4,306,718

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Onslow County, North Carolina

Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds

June 30, 2008

EXHIBIT 3

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables, net
Due from other funds
DPue from other governments
Due from component unit
Inventories
Prepaid expenditures

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Due to other funds '
Deferred revenue
Total liabilities

Fund balances:
Reserved for encumbrances
Reserved for register of deeds
Reserved for workers' compensation
Reserved by state statute
Reserved for prepaid expenditures
Reserved for drug enforcement
Unreserved, designated
Designated for subsequent years'
expenditures
Reported in nonmajor:
Special revenue funds
Capital project funds
Designated for special children adoptions
Designated for health insurance
Designated for health
Unreserved, undesignated
Unreserved, reported in nonmajor:
Special revenue funds
Capital project funds
Total fund balances
Total liabilities and fund balances

Amounts reported for governméntal activities in the statement of net assets (Exhibit 1) are different

because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore are not

reported in the funds.
Postemployment benefit obligation

Prepaid pension obligation

Liabilities for earned but deferred revenues in fund statements

Some liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period and therefore

are not reported in the funds (Note 4).

Net assets of governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

Other Total
School Governmental Governmental

General Fund Construction Funds Funds
$ 356,656,404 $ 36,105,897 $ 7.633,511 $ 80,395,912
17,395,872 - 235,052 17,630,924
6,226,027 - - 6,226,027
362,986 1,023,287 2,059 1,388,332
185,682 - - " 185,682
122,521 - - 122,521
471,732 - - 471,732
$ 61421224 $ 37,129,284 $ 7,870,622 $ 106,421,130
$ 5,562,366 $ 4,232,071 $ 629,550 $ 10,423,987
- - 6,226,027 6,226,027
3,892,285 - - 3,992,265
9,554,631 4,232,071 6,855,577 20,642,279
615,653 - 324,386 940,038
- - 102,565 102,565
1,837,366 - - 1,837,366
20,630,753 1,023,287 184,099 21,838,139
471,732 - - 471,732
95,462 - - 95,462
17,143,971 31,873,926 - 49,017,897
- - 9,500 9,500
- - 314,000 314,000
211,334 - - 211,334
454,000 - - 454,000
2,857,813 - - 2,857,813
7,548,508 - - 7,548,508
- - 762,438 762,436
- - (681,841) {681,941)
51,866,593 32,897,213 1,015,045 85,778,851

$ 61421224 % 37129284 $ 7,870,622

50,377,796
(1,087,582)
109,273
3,662,734
(141,748,553)
$ {2,887,481)
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Onslow County, North Carolina

EXHIBIT 4

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Governmental Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

School Other Total
Construction Governmental Governmental
General Fund Fund Funds Funds
REVENUES
Ad valorem faxes § 56,367,265 $ - $ - 3 56,367,265
Local option sales taxes 35,058,774 - - 35,058,774
Other taxes and licenses 2,808,433 - - 2,808,433
Unrestricied intergovernmental 552 505 - 362,985 915,488
Restricted intergovernmental 26,177,782 - 4,954 796 31,132,578
Permits and fees 2,689,603 - 592,836 3,282,439
Sales and services 10,228,791 - - 10,228,731
Investment earnings 1,923,527 1,174,845 188,034 3,286,408
-Miscellaneous 676,517 700 128,024 805,241
Total revenues 136,483,197 1,175,545 6,226,674 143,885,416
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 11,678,761 - - 11,678,761
Public safety 21,599,618 - 30,494 21,630,113
Transportation 1,493,708 - - 1,493,708
Economic and physical development 2,758,700 - 172,865 2,932,565
Human services 43,738,986 - - 43,738,986
Environmental protection 550,949 - - 550,040
Cultural and recreational 4,074,930 - - 4,074,930
E-911 - ] - 283,959 283,959
Intergovernmental
Education 35,029,481 - - 35,029,481
Capital projects - 54,199,211 13,835,552 68,034,763
Debt service:
Principal 6,301,797 - - 6,301,797
Interest and other charges 4,458,774 - - 4,458,774
Total expenditures 131,686,704 54,189,211 14,322,870 200,208,785
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expendiiures 4,796,493 (53,023,666} (8,096,196) (56,323,369)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers from other funds 948,071 - 2,065,580 3,013,651
Transfers to other funds (2,540,486) - {473,165) {(3,013,851)
Issuance of debt - 41,322,260 3,825,000 45,147,260
Sale of capital assets 324,662 - - 324,662

Total other financing sources (uses) (1,267,754) 41 322 260 5,417 415 45,471,921
Net change in fund balance 3,528,729 (11,701,408} {2,678,781) (10,851,448)
Fund balances-beginning 48,337,854 44,508,619 3,693,826 96,630,299
Fund balances-ending $ 51866593 $§ 32,807,213 ] 1,015,045 $ 85778851
18
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EXHIBIT 4

Amounts reported for governmental activities In the statement of activities are
different because:

Net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the Statement
of Aclivities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives

and reported as depreciation expense, This is the amount by which capital cutiays
exceeded depreciation in the current period.

Basis in capital assets that were retired

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources
are not reporied as revenues in the funds

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to governmental
funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current
financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction has any effect on net
assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums,
discounts and similar items when debt is first issues, whereas these amounts are
deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. This amount is the net effect of
thesa differences in the treatment of long-term debt and refated items.

Total changes in net assets of governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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$ (10,851.448)

10,849,837

{56,965)
227,463

(1,468,281}

(38,845 463)
$ (40,144,857)
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Onslow County, North Carolina

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -

Budget and Actual - General Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

EXHIBIT &

REVENUES
Ad valorem taxes
Local option sales taxes
Other taxes and licenses
Unrestricted intergovernmental
Restricted intergovernmentai
Permits and fees
Sales and services
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General govermment
Public safety
Transportation
Economic and physical development
Human services
Environmental protection
Cultural and recreational
Intergovernmental:
Education
Debt service:
Principal
Interest and other charges
Total expenditures
Revenues over {under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Total other financing scources and uses
Revenues and other financing sources over
(under) expenditures and other financing uses

Appropriated fund balance
Net change in fund balance
Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances-ending

Thg accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

General Fund

20

Variance With
Final - Positive
Original Budget Final Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 55,353,700 55,383,700 56,367,265 $ 973,565
34,290,000 34,290,000 35,058,774 768,774
2,659,800 2,659,800 2,808,433 148,633
340,000 340,000 552,505 212,505
26,994,013 26,703,533 26,177,782 (525,751)
2,572,745 2,545,745 2,689,603 143,858
8,760,742 8,829,697 10,228,791 1,399,094
1,705,000 1,705,000 1,823,527 218,527
548,750 436,181 676,517 240,336
133,222,750 132,903,656 136,483,197 3,579,541
18,614,778 15,098,611 11,678,761 3,419,850
23,205,899 23,534,193 21,599,618 1,934,575
1,496,795 1,535,734 1,493,708 42,026
3,814,484 3,411,216 2,759,700 651,516
47,851,703 48,305,220 43,738,386 4,566,234
497,004 677,085 560,949 126,136
4,276,686 4,370,050 4,074,930 295,120
35,104,931 35,029,481 35,029,481 “
6,157,138 6,301,797 6,301,797 -
4,403,376 4 472 272 4,458,774 13,498
145,432,734 142,735,659 131,686,704 11,048,955
(12,210,044} (9,832,003) 4 796,493 14,628,496
1,029,000 419,032 948,071 529,039
(1,772,023) (2,845,204) (2,540,486) 304,718
332,500 332,500 324,662 (7,838)
(410,523) (2,003,672) (1,267,754) 825,918
(12,620,567} (11 ,925,675) 3,528,739 15,454 414
12,620,567 11,925,675 - (11,825,675}
$ - - 3,528,739 $ 3,528,738

48,337,854

51,866,503

Return to Table of Contents



Onslow County, North Carelina
Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Funds - Sofid Waste Fund
June 30, 2008

EXHIBIT &

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Recaivables, net
Inventories
Prepaids
Total current assets

Nancurrent assets:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Capital assets:
Land and impravements
Construction in progress
Buildings, improvements, and equipment
Vehicles and motorized equipment
L.ess accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Accrued landfill closure and
postclosure care costs
Compensated abserices
Special obligation bonds payable
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Accrued landfill closure and
postclosure care costs
Compensated absences
Special obligation bonds payable
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total labilities

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

Unresfricted
Total net assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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20,563,584
732,121
6,035
8,052

21,309,792

3,084,137

1,284,081
5,240,885
198,766,023
494,853
(11,868,918)

14,916,924

18,001,061

39,310,854

1,661,994

668,554
15,744
2,045,753

4,392,045

6,016,990
47,231
10,416,973

16,481,194

20,873,239

(629,939)
19,067,554

$

18,437,615
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Onsfow County, North Carolina
Statemant of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Propristary Funds - Solid Waste Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

EXHIBIT 7

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services
Other operating revenues

Total aperating revenies

OPERATING EXPENSES
Administration
Recycling
Landfiil operations
Refuse site
Keep Onslow Beaufiful
White goods
Depreclation
Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest and investment revenue
Loss on disposal of assets
Interest and fees .
Total nonoperating revenue {expenses)
Income (loss) before capital contributions
Capital contributions
Change in net assets

Total net assets - beginning

Total net assets - ending

The accompanying notes are an iatfgral part of this statement.

5,973,000
557,492

6,630,452

231,449
287,984
1,470,435
479,351
153,873
37,493
1,666,475

4,327,060

2,203432

918,563
(44,750)
{370,740)

503,073

2,706,505

28,768

2,735,273

15,702,342

$

18,437,615
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For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Onslow County, North Carolina
Enterprise Fund
Combining Statement of Cash Flows

EXHIBIT 8

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers
Cash paid for goods and services
Cash paid to employees for services
Other operating revenue
Net cash provided by (used in) operating
activities

Cash flows from capital and related
financing activities:
Capital contributions
Proceeds from issuance of debt
Principal paid on bond maturities and
equipment contracts
Interest paid on borid maturities and
equipment contracts
Acquisition of capital assets
Net cash provided by capital and
related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest on investments

Net increase (decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, July 1
Cash and cash equivalents, June 30

23

5,967,421
(881,158)
(1,106,033)
557,492

4,537,722

28,768
8,022,838

{2,743,126)

(370,740}
{4,023,444)

914,296

918,563

6,370,581

17,277,140

$

23,647,721
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EXHIBIT 8

Reconciliation of operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by {used in) operating
activities:

Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating
income to net cash provided by
(used In) operating activities:
Depreciation
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounis receivable
(Increase) decrease in inventory
(Increase) decrease in prepaid items
Increase {decrease) in accounts
payable and accrued liabilities
Increase in accrued landfill costs
Increase (decrease) in accrued vacation pay
Total adjustments
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

24

2,203,432

1,666,475

(5,579)
2,696
(112)

468,856
200,832
1,122

2,334,290

$

4,537,722
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EXHIBIT 9
Onslow County, North Carofina
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2008

Pension

Trust Agency
Fund Fund
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3 257,106 $ 316,553
Accounts receivable - ) -
Total assets $ 257,108 $ 316,553
Liahilities and Net Assets
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities . $ - $ 266,117
Intergovernmental payable - 50,436
Total liabilities -, 316,553
Net assets:
Held in trust for pension benefits 3 257,106 $ -

The accompartying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Cnslow County, North Carolina
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

EXHIBIT 10

Additions:
Employer contributions
Investment income:
Total additions

Deductions:
Benefits paid

Change in net assets

Net assets - beginning of year
Net assets - end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
28

k3 114,391
10,773

125,164

115,032

10,132

246,974

$ 257,106
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Onslow County, North Carolina
Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Note . Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of Onslow County, North Carolina and its discretely presented component units conform to
generally accepted accounting principles as applicable to governments. The following is a summary of the more
significant accounting policies.

A. Reporting Entity

The County, which is governed by a five-member board of commissioners, is one of the 100 counties established in
North Carolina under North Carolina General Statute 153A-10. As required by generally accepted accounting
principles, these financial statements present the County and its component units; legally separate entities for which
the County is financially accountable. Onslow County iIndustrial Facility and Pollution Control Financing Authority
(the Authority} exists to issue and service revenue bond debt of private businesses for economic development
purposes. The Authority has no financial fransactions or account balances; therefore, it is not presented in the
combined financial statements. The Onslow County Hospital Authority (the Hospital), which has a September 30
year-end, is presented as If it were a proprietary fund. The Onslow County ABC Board {the Board), which has a
June 30 year-end, is presented as if it were a proprietary fund.

Reporting For Separate Financial
Component Unit Method Criteria for Inclusion Statements

Onslow County Industrial Discrete The Autharity is governed by a seven-member None Issued
Facility and Pollution Controt board of commissioners that is appointed by
Financing Authority the County commissioners. The County can

remove any commissicner of the Authority with

or without cause.
Onslow County  Hospital Discrete ‘The Hospital is a public hospital operated by a | Onslow County Hospital
Authority not-for-profit corporafion, which has leased the | Authority

hospital facilities from the County until | 317 Western Boulevard
September 30, 2030. The County appoints the | Jacksonville, NC 28540
board of trustees for the Hospital. The County
has also issued general obligation debt on
hehalf of the hospital.

Onslow County ABC Board Discrele The members of the ABC Board’s governing | Onslow County ABC Board
board are appointed by the County, The ABC | 409 Center Street

Board Is required by State statute to distribute | Jacksonville, NC 28540
its surpluses to the General Fund of the
County.

B. Basis of Presentation, Basis of Accounting
Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Statements: The statemant of net assets and the statement of activities display information about
the primary govemment (the County} and its component units. Thase statements include the financial activities of the
overall government, except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting of
internal activities. These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-fype activities of the
County. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other non-
exchange transactions. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for the different
business-type activities of the County and for each function of the County's governmental activities. Direct expenses
are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefors, are clearly identifiable to a
particular function. Indirect expense allocations that have been made in the funds have been reversed for the
statement of activities. Program revenues include (a) fees and charges paid by the recipients of goods or services
offered by the programs and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are
presented as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements; The fund financial statements provide information about the County’s funds, including its
fiduciary funds and blended component units. Separate statements for each fund category — governmental,
proprietary, and fiduciary — are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major govemmental and
enterprise funds, each displayed In a separate column. All remaining governmental and enterprise funds are
aggregated and reported as non-major funds.
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Onslow County, North Carolina
Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions ass_ociated
with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives and gives up
essentially equal values., Nonoperating revanues, such as subsidies and investment eamings, result from non-
exchange transactions or ancillary activities.

The County reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund. This is the County’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the general
government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.,

School Construction Fund. This fund accounts for the financial resources relating o school building construction and
improvements.

The County reports the following major enterprise funds:
Solid Waste Fund. This fund is used to account for the operations of the County landfill.
The County reports the following fund types:

Pension Trust Fund. The County has a Pension Trust Fund, the Special Separation Allowance Fund that accounts
for the Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance, a single-employer, public employee retirement
system,

Agency Funds. Agency funds are custodial in nature and do not involve the measurement of operating results.
Agency funds are used to account for assets the County holds on behalf of others. The County maintains seven
agency funds: the Social Services Fund, which accounts for moneys deposited with the Social Services Department
for the benefit of certain individuals; the Fines and Forfeitures Fund, which accounts for various legal fines and
forfeitures that the County is required to remit to Onslow County Board of Education; the DMV Interest Fund which
accounts for the three percent interest on the first month of delinquent motor vehicle taxes that the County is
required to remit o the North Carclina Department of Motor Vehicles; the Agricutture Fund that accounts for moneys
deposited with the Agriculture Depariment for the benefit of certain groups; the Sheriffs Department Fund that
accounts for moneys collected by the Sheriffs Department on judgments and executions, and the Municipal Tax
Fund, which accounts for registered motor vehicle property taxes that are billed and collected by the County for
various municipalities within the County, and the Library Trust Fund, which accounts for funds collected on behalf of
the County Library.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting

In accordance with North Carolina General Statutes, al! funds of the County are maintained during the year using the
modified accruat basis of accounting. :

Government-wide, Proprietary, and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements. The government-wide, proprietary, and
pension trust fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus. The
govemment-wide, proprietary fund, and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recorded when eamed and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are Incurred,
regardless of when the related cash fiows take place. Non-exchange transactions, in which the County gives (or
receives) value without directly receiving {or giving) equal value in exchange, include property taxes, grants,
entitlements, and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for
which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in
which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. :

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or
privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions, including special
assessments. Intemally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues.
Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating #tems. Cperating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a
proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the County enterprise funds are
cha(ges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and
services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.
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Onslow County, Nerth Carolina
Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Governmental Fund Financial Statements. Gavernmental funds are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized
when measurable and available. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for
principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences, which are
recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as
expenditures in governmentat funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are
reported as other financing sources.

The County considers all revenues available if they are collected within 90 days after year-end, except for property
taxes. Ad valorem property taxes are not accrued as a revenue because the amount is not susceptible to accrual.
At June 30, taxes receivable are materially past due and are not considered to be an available resource to finance
the operations of the current year. Also, as of January 1, 1993, State law altered the procedures for the
assessment and collection of property taxes on registered motor vehicles in North Carolina. Effective with this
change in the law, Onslow County is responsible for billing and collecting the property taxes on all registered motor
vehicles on behalf of all municipalities and special tax districts in the County. For registered motor vehicles,
property taxes are due the first day of the fourth month after the vehicles are registered. The billed taxes are
applicable to the fiscal year in which they become due. Therefore, taxes for vehicles registered from March 2007
through February 2008 apply to the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. Uncollected taxes that were billed during this
period are shown as a receivable on these financial statements

Sales taxes and certain intergovernmental revenues, such as the utilities franchise tax, collected and held by the
State at year-end on behalf of the County are recognized as revenue. Intergovernmental revenues and sales and
services are not susceptible to accrual because generally they are not measurable until received in cash.
Expenditure driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have been Incurred and all
other grant requirements have been satisfied.

Under the terms of grant agreements, the County funds certain programs by a combination of specific cost-
reimbursement grants, categorical block grants, and general revenues. Thus when program expenses are incurred,
there are both restricted and unrestricted net assets available to finance the program. !t is the County's policy to
first apply cost-reimbursement grant resources to such programs, followed by categorical block grants, and then by

general revenues.

All governmental and business-type activities and enterprise funds of the County follow FASB Statements and
Interpretations issued on or before November 30, 1989, Accounting Principles Board Opinions, and Accounting
Research Bulletins, unless those pronouncements conflict with GASB pronouncements.

C. Budgetary Data

The County's budgets are adopted as required by the North Carolina General Statutes. An annual budget is adopted
for the general, special revenue, capital project (excluding Airport Fund, Community Development Fund, Capital
Project Fund, School Construction Fund, and Grant Project Fund), and enterprise fund. All annual appropriations
lapse at the fiscal year end. Ali budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting, which is
consistent with the accounting system used to recorded transactions. :

All budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Expenditures may not legally exceed
appropriations at the departmental level (the legal level of budgetary control) for the general fund, special revenus,
enterprise, and the capital project funds. Any revisions that alter total expenditures of any fund must be approved
by the governing board. All revisions to the budget and transfer appropriations must be approved by the governing
board. The County manager is authorized by the governing board to make transfers within a department, but must
notify the board at the next scheduled meeting of all such transfers. During the year, several immaterial
amendments to the original budget were necessary. The budget ordinance must be adopted by July 1 of the fiscal
year or the governing board must adopt an interim budget that covers that time until the annual ordinance can be

adopted.

A budget calendar is included in the North Carolina General Statutes, which prescribes the last day on which certain
steps of the budget procedure are to be performed. The following schedule lists the tasks to be performed and the
date by which each is required to be completed.

April 30 Each department head will transmit to the budget officer the budget requests and revenue
estimates for their department for the budget year.

June 1 The budget and the budget message shall be submitted to the governing board. The public
hearing on the budget should be scheduled at this time.

July 1 The hudget ordinance shall be adopted by the governing board.
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Onslow County, North Carolina
Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

As required by State law [G.S. 158-26(d)], the County maintains encumbrance accounts, which are considered to
be "hudgetary accounts. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end represent the estimated amounts of the
expenditures ultimately to result if unperformed contracts in progress at year-end are completed. Encumbrances
outstanding at year-end do not consiitute expenditures or liabilities. These encumbrances outstanding are reported
as "reserved for encumbrances” in the fund balance section of the governmental funds balance shest and will be

charged against the subsequent year's budget.

D, Assets, Liabilities, and Fund Equity

1. Deposits and Investments

All deposits of the County, the ABC Board, and Onslow County Hospital Authority are made in board-designated
official depositories and are secured as required by G.S. 159-31. The County, the Hospital, and the ABC Board
may designate, as an official depository, any bank or savings association whose principal office is located in North
Carolina. Also, the County, the Hospital, and the ABC Board may establish time deposit accounts such as NOW
and SuperNOW aceounts, money market accounts, and certificates of deposit.

State law [G.S. 158-30{c)] authorizes the County, the Hospital, and the ABC Board to invest in obligations of the
United States or obligations fully guaranteed both as to principal and interest by the United States; obligations of
the State of North Carolina; bends and notes of any North Carelina local government or public authority; obligations
of certain non-guaranteed federal agencies; certain high quality Issues of commercial paper and bankers'
acceptances and the North Carolina Capital Management Trust {NCCMT).

The County, the Hospital, and the ABC Board's investments with a maturity of more than one year at acquisition
and non-money market investments are carried at fair value as determined by quoted market prices. The securities
of the NCCMT Cash Portfolio, an SEC-registered (2a-7) money market mutual fund, are valued at fair valus, which
is the NCCMT's share price. The NCCMT Term Portfolio’s securities are valued at fair value.

2. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The County poals monies from several funds to facilitate disbursement and investment and maximize investment
income. Investment earnings are allocated to all funds based on the cash balance outstanding at the end of each
month. The ABC Board considers all highly liquid investments (including restricted assets) with an original maturity
of three months or less to be cash and cash equivalents, and records them at cost. For the Hospital Authority, cash
and cash equivalents include investments in highly liquid debt instruments with an originai maturity of three months
or less.

3. Restricted Asseis

Unexpended bond proceeds are classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet because their use is completely
restricted to the purpose for which the bonds were originally issued. Customer deposits held by the County before
any services are supplied are restricted to the service for which the deposit was collected.

Restricted funds of the hospital are used to differentiate resources, the use of which is restricted by donors, or
grantors, from resources of general funds on which donors or grantors place no restriction or that arise as a result
of the operations of the Hospital for its stated purposes. Funds restricted by donors for plant replacement and
expansion are reclassified to the unrestricted fund balance to the extent expended within the period. Funds
restricted by donors for specific operating purposes are reported in other revenue to the extent used within the
period for the designated purpose. Restricted cash and investments include assets set aside by the Hospital's
Board for future capital improvements, over which the Board retains control and may at Its discretion subsequently
use for other purposes, therefore these assets are not considered to be cash equivalents,

4. Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable

In accordance with State law [G.S. 105-347 and G.S. 158-13(a)], the County levies ad valorem taxes on property
other than motor vehicles on July 1, the beginning of the fiscal year. The taxes are due on September 1 (lien date);
however, penalties and interest do not accrue until the following January 6. These taxes are based on the assessed

values as of January 1, 2007.

5. Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

All receivables that historically experience uncollectible accounts are shown net of an allowance for doubtful
accounts. The amount is estimated by analyzing the percentage of receivables that were written off in prior years.
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Onstow County, North Carolina
Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

6. Inventory and Prepaid ltems

The inventories of the County are valued using the average cost method, while the hospital, and the ABC Board are
valued at cost (firstin, first-out), which approximates market. The County's General Fund inventory consists of
expendable supplies that are recorded as expenditures when consumed. The inventory of the County’s enterprise
funds as well as those of the Hospital and the ABC Board consist of materials and supplies held for consumption.
The cost of the inventory carried in the County's enterprise funds and that of the Hospital and the ABC Board is
recorded as an expense as it is consumed of sold.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid
iterns in both the government-wide and fund financial statements.

7. Capital Assets

Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost. Donated capital assets are
recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. The County has established capitalization thresholds
of $1,500 for technological equipment and $5,000 for all other capital items. The cost of normal maintenance and
repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets' lives are not capitalized.

The County holds title to certain Onisow County Board of Education properties that have not been included in
capital assets, The properties have been deeded to the County to permit installment purchase financing of
acquisition and construction costs and to permit the County to receive refunds of sales tax paid for construction
costs. Agreements between the County and the Board of Education give the Beard of Education full use of the
facilities, full responsibility for maintenance of the facilities, and provide that the Ceunty will convey fitle to the
property back to the Board of Education, once all restrictions of the financing agreements and all sales tax
reimbursement requirements have been met. The properties are reflected as capital assets in the financial
statements of the Onslow County Board of Education.

Any interest incurred during the construction phase of proprietary fund type capital assets is reflected In the
capitalized value of the asset constructed. Capital assets of the County are depreciated on a straight-line basis over

the following estimated useful lives:

Useful Life
Furniture and office equipment 3-5 years
Maintenance and construction equipment 10 years
Building and improvements 15-30 years
Automobiles and trucks 4 years

_Property, plant, and equipment of the ABC. Board are depreciated over their useful lives on a straight-line basis as
follows:

Usefy| Life
Buildings 20 years
Furniture and equipment 10 years
Vehicles 3-5 years
10-20 years

Leasehold improvements

For the Hospital, depreciation is computed by the straight-line method over the estimated useful fives of the assets
as follows:

Useful Life
Buildings and improvements 10-40 years
Land improvements 10-40 years
5-15 years

Equipment
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Onslow County, North Carclina
Motes to the Financial Statements
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

B. Long-term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and in the proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements: long-
term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities,

business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets.

In the fund financial statements for governmental fund types, the face amount of debt issued is reported as an other
financing source.

9, Compensated Absences

The vacation policies of the County, the Hospital, and the ABC Board provide for the accumulation of up to thirty
" days earned vacation leave with such leave being fully vested when earned. For the County's government-wide and
proprietary funds, the Hospital, and the ABC Board, an expense and a liability for compensated absences and the
salary-related payments are recorded as the |eave is earnad.

The sick leave policies of the County, the Hospital, and the ABC Board provide for an unlimited accumulation of
earned sick leave. Sick leave does not vest, but any unused sick leave accumulated at the time of retirement may
be used in the determination of length of service for retirement benefit purposes. Since none of the entities have
any obligation for accumulated sick leave until it is actually taken, no accrual for sick leave has been made by the
County or its component units.

10. Net Assets/Fund Balances

Net Assets

Net assets in government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are classified as invested in capital assets,
net of related debt: restricted: and unrestricted. Restricted net assets represent constraints on resources that are
either externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or requlations of other governments or
imposed by law through state statute.

Fund Balances

In the governmental fund financial statements, reservations or restrictions of fund balance represent amounts that
are not appropriable or are legally segregated for a specific purpose. Designations of fund balance represent
tentative management plans that are subject to change.

State jaw [G.S. 159-13(k)(16)] restricts the appropriation of fund balance to an amount not to exceed the sum of
cash and investmants minus the sum of liabilities, encumbrances and defefred revenues arising from cash receipts
as those amounts stand at the close of the fiscal year preceding the budget year.

The governmental fund types classify fund balances as follows:

Reserved
Reserved for Workers' Compensation - pertion of total fund balance available for appropriation to pay claims.

Reserved for Encumbrances - portion of fund balance available for appropriation to pay for commitments related to
unperformed contracts.

Reserved by State statute - portion of fund balance, in addition to other reservations, which is not available for
appropriation, under state law [G.S. 159-8(a)). This amount is usually comprised of accounts receivable and
Interfund receivables that are not offset by deferred revenue.

Reserved for Drug Enforcement - portion of fund balance not available for appropriation because it represents the
year-end balance of cash from federal seizures.

Reserved for Prepaid Expenditures. - portion of fund balance not available for appropriation because it represents
assets not available as expendable financial resources.

Reserved for Register of Deeds — portion of fund balance constituting the Automation Enhancement and
Preservation Fund, funded by 10% of the fees collected and maintained by the Register of Deeds’ office. The funds
are available for appropriation but are legally restricted for computer and imaging technology in the Register of
Deeds’ office.
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Onslow County, North Carolina
Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Unreserved

Designated for subsequent year's expenditures - portion of total fund balance available for appropriationé that has
been designated for the adopted 2008-2009 budget ordinance or designated for future capital outlay.

'Designated for health- partion of total fund balance representing accumulated unexpended health reévenues.

Designated for heaith insurance- portion of total fund balance representing accumulated unexpended health
insurance premiums. '

Designated for special children adoptions - portion of total fund balance representing accumulated unexpended
special children adoptions.

Undesignated - portion of total fund balance available for appropriation, which is uncommitted at yeér—end.

E. Reconclliation of Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

1. Explanation of certain differences between the govermnmental fund balance sheet and the government-wide
staternent of net assets. :

' The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance - total governmental funds
and net assets - governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of net assets, The net
adjustment of $(88,666,332) consists of several elements as follows:

Description . Amount

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources ard are therefore not
reperted in the funds (fofal capital assets on government-wide statement in governmental activities

colunn) $ 50,377,796
Post-employment benefitobligation ’ ‘ (1,067,582}
Prepsd pension abligation 109,273
Liabilties for revenue deferred but eamed and therefore recorded in the furd statements but not the
governmental funds 3,662,734
Liabifties that, because they are nat due and payable ih the current period, do not require current
rescurces to pay and are therefore nat recorded in the fund statements:
Bongds, leases, and nstalimert financing (139,479,105)
Compensated absences (2,269,448)
Total adjustment ) $ (88,666,332}

2. Explanation of certain differences between the governmentaf fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balance and the government-wide statement of activities

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes a
reconciliation between net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds and changes in net assets of
governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of activities. There are several elements of
that total adjustment of $29,293,409 as follows: '

: Description : Amount
Capital outlay expenditures recorded in the fund statements but capitalized as assets in the
statement of activities § 14,548,930

Depreciation expense, the allocation of those assets over their useful lives, that is recorded on ‘
the statement of activities but not in the fund statements (3,700,093)

New debt issued during the year is recorded as a source of funds on the fund statements; it

has no effect on the statement of activities — it affects only the government wide statement of
net assets ‘ (43,825,000)

Prernium on debt issued (1,322,260)
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Onslow Ceounty, North Carclina
Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Principal payments on debt owed are recorded as a use of funds on the fund statements but

again affect only the statement of net assets in the government-wide statements 6,301,797

Basis in refired capital assets ' (56,965)
Increase in post employment benefit obligation (1,067,582)
Amortization of bond issuance costs (289,801)

Expenses reported in the statement of activities that do not require the use of current
resources to pay are not recorded as expenditures in the fund statements
Difference in compensated absences accrued in the government-wide statement but not in
The fund statement becausea they do not use current resources ) {117,073)

Increase in prepaid pension obligation 6,175

Revenues reported in the statement of activities that do not provide current resources are not
recorded as revenues in the fund statements

Reversal of deferred tax revenue recorded at 7/1/07 (3,434,871)
Recording of tax receipts deferred in the fund statements as of 6/30/08 ’ - 3,662,334
Total adjustment -$ (29,293,409)

11. Reclassifications
Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2007 comparative information to conform to the 2008 presentation.
Such reclassifications have no effect on net assets or fund balances.

12. Deficit Fund Balance or Net Assets of Individual Funds

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, the Capital Project Fund had a deficit fund balance due to preliminary work
on the administrative building project at year-end. This will be remedied during fiscal year 2009 and the County will
more closely review the budget reports to ensure compliance in future years.

Note Il. Detail Notes on All Funds

A. Asseats
1. Deposits

All of the County's, the Hospital's, and the ABC Board's deposits are either insured or collateralized by using one of
two methods. Under the Dedicated Method, all deposits exceeding the federal depository insurance coverage are
collateralized with securifies held by the County's, the Hospital's, or the ABC Board's narmes., Under the Pooling
Method, which is a collateral pool, all uninsured deposits are collateralized with securities held by the State
Treasurer’s agent in the name of the State Treasurer. Since the State Treasurer is acting in a fiduciary capacity for
the County, the Hospital, and the ABC Board, these deposits are considered to be held by their agents in the entities’
name. The amount of the pledged collateral is based on an approved averaging method for non-interest bearing
deposits and the actual current balance for inferest bearing deposits. Depositories using the Pooling Method report
to the State Treasurer the adequacy of their pooled collateral covering uninsured deposits. The State Treasurer
does not confirm this information with the County, the Hospital, or the ABC Board or the escrow agent. Because of
the inability to measure the exact amount of collateral pledged for the County, the Hospital, or the ABC Board under
the Pooling Method, the potential exists for under-collateralization, and this risk may increase in periods of high cash
flows, However, the State Treasurer of North Carolina enforces strict standards of financial stability for each
depository that collateralizes public deposits under the Pooling Method. The State Treasurer enforces standards of
minimum capitalization for all Pooling Methed financial institutions. The County, ABC Board, and the Hospital rely on
the State Treasurer to monitor those financial institutions. The County analyzes the financial soundness of any other
financial institution used by the County. The County complies with the provisions of G.S. 158-31 when designating
official depositories and verifying that deposits are properly secured. The County, ABC Board, and the Hospital do
not have policies regarding custodial credit risk for deposits.

At June 30, 2'008, the carrying amount of the County's deposits was $11,926,372 and the bank balance was
313,597,937. Of the bank balance, $939,867 was covered by federa| depository insurance and $12,658,064 was

covered by collateral held under the Pooling Method.
At June 30, 2008, the County had $5,037 cash on hand, and the ABC Board had $8,200 cash on hand.

At June 30, 2008, the carrying amount of deposits for Onslow County ABC Board was $1,884,682 and the bank
balance was $2,036,633. All of the bank balance was covered by federal depository insurance.
34

SJUSIUOD JO 3jgel 01 uiney



Onslow County, North Carolina

Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

At September 30, 2007, Vthe Hospital's deposits had a carrying amount of $3,434,814 and a bank balance of
$4,990,110. Of the bank balance, $100,000 was covered by federal depository insurance and $4,890,110 was
covered by collaterat held under the Pooling Method.

2. Investments

At June 30, 2008, the County had the following investments and maturities.

Investment Type Fair Value Less Than 6 Months 6-12 Months 1-3Years

Commercial Paper - RBC Wealth
Mgmt $ 4218%7 § 4218367 $ - $ -
Commercial Paper - Wachovia 16,614,501 16,614,591 - -
Certifi cate of Deposit - RBC ‘
Centura 9,070,833 9,070,833 - ‘ -
Escrow Account - BB&T 2,784,148 2,784148
NC Capital Management Trust -
Cash Portfolio 59,097 944 NA N/A N/A

$ 92685833 § 267X $ - $ -

Interest Rate Risk — As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising. interest rates, the
County's investment practice is to limit the County’s investment portfolio to maturities of less than one year. The
County's investment policy also requires staggered investments so that maturities will coincide with necessary cash
flows throughout the fiscal year.

Credit Risk — The County limits investments to the provisions of G.S. 150-30 and restricts the purchase of securities
to the highest possible ratings whenever particular types of securities are rated. State law limits investments in
commercial paper to the top rating Issued by a nationally recognized statistical rating organizations (NRSRO's),
however the County had no formal policy on managing credit risk. As of June 30, 2008, the County’s investments
in commercial paper were rated P —1 by Moody's Investors Service and A — 1+ by Standard & Poor’s. The County's
investments in the NC Capital Management Trust Cash Portfolio carried a rating of AAAm by Standard & Poor's as
of June 30, 2008,

Custodial Credit Risk — For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of the failure of the
counterparty, the County will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in
the possession of an outside party. The County had no policy on custodial credit risk. The County utilizes a third
party custodial agent for book entry transactions, all of which shall be a trust department authorized to do trust work
in North Carolina who has an account with the Federal Reserve. Certificated securities shall be In the custody of
the Director of Finance.

Concentration of Credit Risk — The County has no formal policy regarding the amount that may be invested in any
one issuer of investments. More than 5% of the County's investments are invested in each of the listed bank's
commercial paper.

At September 30, 2007, the Hospital had the following investments and maturities.

2007
Modified Allocation
Investment Type Fair Value Duration Percentage
Liquid Funds and interest Receivable
Investment Account Cash {Pending Reinvestment)
Short, noncurrent, and board designated investments $ 18,793,244 24 29%
Other trustee assets — bond related 33,817,120 - N/A 52%
52,610,364
North Carolina Capital Management Trust
Short, noncurrent, and board designated investments 1,516,964
1,516,964 2%
Subtotal of liquid funds and interest receivable 54,127,328
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2007
Modified Allocation
Fair Value Duration Percentage
Asset-Backed Securities (Mortgage Related)
Short, noncurrent, and board designated investments 28,940 N/A
28,940
Equities
Domestic
Other trusteed assets — bond related 9,073,727 N/A 14%
9,073,727
Foreign
Foreign other trusteed assets — bond related 2,197,221 N/A 3%
2,197,221
Subtotal of short, intermediate, and broad duration funds 11,259,688
Totat fair value § 65,427,216 100%

The Hospital's investment policy is subject to the Haospital Authorities Act North Carolina General Statute 15-30.
The Hospital may, for funds not required for immediate disbursement, make investments which are permissible for
trustees, executors, and other fiduciaries under North Carolina law. Funds designated by the Board of
commissioners are not needed for immediate operating needs and, as such are invested in a mix of eligible

investments, including cash equivalents.

Interest Rate Risk — The Hoépital's fixed-income portfolio, the asset class within the total pension plan that is most
susceptible to changes in interest rates, is bound with respect to duration (interest rate risk). The duration of the
fixed-income portfolio should not exceed 130%, nor should it be less than 70%, of the fixed-income benchmark, the

Lehman Brothers Aggregate Index.

Credit Risk — The following details the Hospital's policy regarding credit risk.

Allowable Instruments — The fixed-income manager must adhere to the following portfolio guidelines for
investments: (a) Instruments issued and fully guaranteed by the U.S. government or any of its agencies and
instrumentalities; (b) Mortgage-backed securities and collateralized mortgage obligation are acceptable, as long as
the manager can demonstrate that they meet the specific maturity guidetines outlined for the portfolio. Mortgages
are limited to 40% of the fixed-income portfalio; (c) Instruments issued by domestic corporations, including
corporate notes and floating rate notes. Commercial paper must be rated A1, P1 or F1; (d) Obligations of domestic
. banks, including banker's acceptances, certificates of deposit, time deposits, notes and other debt instruments; (e)
Instruments of foreign countries, foreign banks, or foreign corporations denominated in U.S. dollars. These
instruments are limited to 15% of the fixed-income portfolio; {f) The following types of Euro issues are permitted:
Euro CD's banker's acceptances, time deposits, bonds, and floating rate notes; (g) Yankee securities are permitted
subject to the quality constraints outlined below.

Credit Quality = This guideline is intended to give the investment manager sufficient latitude to periodically take
advantage of bond-quality yield spreads. The average guality shall be no less than 3.0 based on the following scale:

.S, government and agencies 5.0
AAA 4.0
AA 3.0
A 20
BRB 1.0

The minimum quality of any individual security is BBB. !f a security is downgraded to below BBB, the manager has
the latitude to hold the security if deemed prudent. No more than 10% of the portfolio can be held in bonds rated
below A-. The Authority was in compliance with credit quality guidelines as of September 30, 2007.

Custodial Credit Risk — All investments are uninsured and unregistered and are held by the broker's or dealer's trust
department or agent in the Hospital's name.
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Concentration of Credit Risk — Except for issues guaranteed directly or indirectly by the U.S. government, the
combined holdings of securities from one issuer shall not constitute more than 10% of the fixed-income allocation.
All letters of credit shall be part of the invested amount of the guarantor for purposes of the 10% rule.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 40, Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures — an amendment of GASB
Statement No. 3, the Authority’s investments are categorized by investment type. As of September 30, 2007, the
Authority had $1,516,964 of its Board designated assets, whose use is limited, invested in the North Caralina Capital
Management Trust. This investment is considered a cash and cash equivalent and carries & AAA rating. The
Authority also has $25,740,626 of its Board designated assets, limited as to use, invested in Vanguard, as a mix of
equity and fixed investment securities.

Investments with indicated modified duration of “N/A” in the table above are highty liquid investments available to the
Authority immediately. As of September 2007, substantially all of the Authority’s investments were held in the North
Carolina Capital Management Trust, which are highly liguid investments.

3. Property Tax - Use-Value Assessment on Certain Lands

In accordance with the general statutes, agriculture, horticulture, and forestland may be taxed by the County at the
present-use value as opposed to market value. When the property loses its eligibility for use-value taxation, the
property tax is recomputed at market value for the current year and the three preceding fiscal years, along with the
accrued interest from the original due date. This tax is immediately due and payable. The following are property
taxes that could become due if present use-value eligibility is fost. These amounts have not been recorded in the
financial statements.

Year Levied Tax Interast Total
2005 % 335,980 $ 79803 $ 415,783
2006 781,625 115,291 896,916
2007 805,754 46,331 852,085

$ 1,923,359 § 241!425 $ 2,164,784

4. Receivables

Receivables at the government-wide level at June 30, 2008, wera as follows:

Other Component
Accounts Taxes Governments Funds Total

Governmenta Adlivities:

General $ 15,057,840 § 4900493 § 362,888 $ 185,682 § 21407010

Other Governmental 235,052 - 1,025,346 - 1,260,398
Total receivables 16,192,901 4,900,493 1,388,332 185,682 22667408
Allowance for doubtful

accounts 2,224,312 1,238,158 - - 3462470
Total governmental activites $ 13,068,560 § 38623356 § 1,388332 [3 185,682 § 19,204,938
Business-type activities .

Solid Waste % 791,925 § - $ 65,623 $ - $ 857,548
Allowance for doubtful

accounts 125,427 - - - 125427
Total business-type activites § 666,498 _§$ - ] 65623 3§ - $ 732121

The due from other governments that is owed the County consists of the following:
Local option sales tax $ 1,388,332

The Hospital's accounts receivable are presented net of the allowance for uncollectible accounts of $12,853,000.
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5. Capitat Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2008, was as foliows:

Beginning Ending
Balances Increases Transfers Decreases Balances
Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 10,604,602 § 366,480 % - % 32,562 $ 10,940,519
Construction in process 6,577,107 13,049,436 - 3,206,503 16,420,040
Total capital assets not being
depreciated 17,181,708 13,417,915 - 3,239,065 27,360,559
Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings 30,418,830 56,950 - 146,913 30,328,867
Improvements 28,482 664 1,277,295 - 216,737 29,543,222
Equipment 8,136,151 652,010 - 244 397 8,543,764
Computer Equipment 2,448,574 918,740 - 35,758 3,329,656
Vehicles 8,693,163 1,635,523 - 1,019,735 9,208,951
Heavy Equipment 358,501 - - 5,420 353,081
Total capital assets being
depreciated 78,537,884 4,438,518 - 1,668,960 81,307,441
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings 23,804,025 577,818 - 108,348 24,363,495
Improvements 16,970,349 1,414,159 - 216,284 18,168,224
Equipment 6,427,682 557,842 - 241,877 6,743,647
Computer Equipment 1,753,949 349,093 - 30,344 2,072,698
Vehicles 6,769,451 796,815 - 942 283 6,623,983
Heavy Equipment 319,211 4,366 - 5,420 318,157
] 56,134,667 $ 3,700,093 $ - §& 1,544 556 58,290,204
Totat capital assets being
depreciated, net 22,403,219 23,017,237
Govemmental activity capital assets, net $ 39,584,925 $ 50,377,796

Primary Government
Depreciation expense was charged to function/programs of the primary government as foliows:

Governmental acfivities:

General government $ 1,116,205
Public Safety 1,057,990
TFransportation 663,117
Economic and physical development 84,637
Human Services 389,165
Cultural and recreational 388,979

Total depreciation expense — governmental activiies $ 3,700,093

Business-type activities

Solid waste $ 1,666,475
Total depreciation expense — business-type activities $ 1,666,475
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Beginning Ending
Balances Increases Transfers Decreases Balances
Business-type activities:
Solid Waste
Capital assets nat being depreciated:
Land $ 1494291 B it4 $ - $ 210324 $ 1,284,081
Construction in progress - 5,240,884 - - 5,240,684
Total capital assets not being .
depreciated 1,454 291 5,240,098 - T 210,324 6,524,965
Capital assels being depreciated:

_ Buidngs o 2az7 482 - S- - 2,127,482
Improvements 15,576,425 - - - 15,576,425
Equipmert 311,524 11,330 - - L2654
Computer equipmernt 4,698 - - - 4,698
Vehicles 506,548 30,703 - 42403 494,853
Heavy equipment 1,633,548 291,808 - 490,791 1,734,564

Total capital assets being
depreciated 20,460,225 333,841 533,184 20,260,876
Less accumulated depreciation for
Buildirgs 1,438,103 148,170 - - 1,584,272
Improvements 7,166,478 1,336,613 - - 8,503,085
Equipment 206,208 27816 - - 230,613
Computer equipment 3,410 533 - - 3943
Vehicles 391,450 34379 - 30,292 @554
Heavy equipment 1,229,481 120,964 - 188,983 1,151,463
Total accumulated depreciation 10,431,718 § 1666475 § - $ 229,275 11,868,917
Total capital assets being ]
depreciated, net 10,028,507 8,391,959
Solid waste capita! assels, net $ 11522788 - $ 14,916,924

The Hospital leases the Hospital's property and ptant from the County of Onslow. The real estate is leased to the
Hospital Authority under a long term lease that ends December 31, 2056, Under this lease agreement, the Hospital
Authority has the ability to grant a mortgage on the hospital’'s leasehold interest over the real estate to the holder of
the mortgage securing the hospital financing for the repaying of principal and interest on any of the bonds originally
issued to partially finance construction of the Hospital's expansion of its facilities..

Construction commitments

The County has active construction projects at June 30, 2008. These projects include airport upgrades,
recreational and tourism related facilities, economic development projects and general facility needs.

At year-end, the County’s commitments with contractors are as follows:

Relreining
Prded Budget Spentiocate Corrrritrrert

idraimVeteran Maorial $ 400000 $ - 5 400000
USMC Musam 300000 75677 24323
S Sation 3 50000 41543 8457
Disavery Cerdens 60000 - 60000
Richands Steed Park 260000 - 260000
VAhite Cak Padde ‘ ) 35000 - 25000
Caithurst Nature Park 70,000 70,000
JailDetention Falicky 55,000,000 5633925 236075
Rad o Tower : 1573704 1,3755%6 158,168
Snesads Fery Libary 7610 1571 74559
New Softvare-Frarce 200375 189258 1,417
New Software-Aocella 213786 213133 653
New Softare-Tax office ’ 1255000 605073 645027
Socrer Carnplex-Tabermacle 161212 1520921 291
Socoer Carvplex-Solttmest 42500 42313 187
AdmCffice Conrplex 23000000 2865028 20114972
School Construction projects 107834308 TR773595 25050713
Arport Irpovernent projects 6025389 4823337 1400052
Lanchl Coretruction prgiedt £710,000 475279 1,957,201

Totz! $ 203265404 § 50415709 § 103849695
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Discretely presented component units

Activity for the ABC Board for the year ended June 30, 2008, was as follows:

Accumulated

Depreciation Net Amount

$ 69,171 3 1,419,924
398,622 113,373

35,784 31,383

49,060 11,655

917,192

Useful Life Cost
Buildings 20yrs $ 1,989,085
Furniture/Equipment 10 yrs 511,995
Vehicles 3-5yrs 67,167
Leasehold improvements 10-20 yrs 60,715
Land - 817,192
Total - $ 3,546,164

3 1,052,637 3% 2,493,627

Activity for the Hospital for the year ended September 30, 2007, was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balances Increases Decreases Balances
Capital assets - being depreciated:
Land improvements : $ 457,229 % 8550 § “ 3 465,779
Buidings and improvements 31,859,118 140,491 - 31,999,609
Equipment 36,906,751 3,281,122 (647,561) 38,540,312
Total capital assets- being depreciated 69,223,098 3,430,163 (647,561) 72,005,700
Capital assets not being depreciated: .
Construction in process 3,367,441 - 14,402,421 ~ {383,447) 17,386,415
Land ' 4,839,926 - - 4,839,926
Total capital assets not being depreciated 8 207,367 14,402,421 (383,447) 22 226,341
Less accumulated depreclation (49,677,158) {4,437,219) 698,039 (53,416,338)
Totzl capitai assets $ 27,753,307 $ 40,815,703

B. Liabilities

1. Payables

Payables at June 30, 2008 were as follows :

Saariesand Custorner

Vendors Benefits Depesits Cther Tota
Govemmentd Adivifies:
Generd $ 2666027 § 1996257 § 5523 $ 894559 §$ 5562365
Other Govemmental 4,365 429 - - 495192 4,861,621
Tolal-govemmental adtivites § 7,031456 § 1996257 $ 5523 §$ 1390751 § 10,423,987
Business-type Activities
Solid Waste $ 1615811 % 45525 § - $ 657
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2. Pension Plan Obligations

a. Local Governmental Employee's Retirement System

Plan Description. Onslow County and the ABC Board contribute to the statewide Local Governmental Employees'
Retirement System (LGERS), a cost-sharing multi-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the State
of North Carolina. LGERS provides retirement and disability benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Article 3
of G.S. Chapter 128 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General
Assembly. The Local Government Employees' Retirement System is included in the Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report {(CAFR) for the State of North Carolina. The State's CAFR includes financial statements and
required supplementary information for LGERS. That report may be obtained by writing to the Office of the State
Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center Road, Raleigh Carolina 27699-1410, or by calling (919) 981-5454.

Funding Policy. Plan members are required to contribute six percent of their annual covered salary. The County
and the ABC Board are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. Far the County, the FY 2008 rate
for employees not engaged in law enforcement and for taw enforcement officers is 4.92% and 4.86%, respectively,
of annual covered payroll. For the ABC Board, the current rate for employees not engaged in law enforcement is
4.80% of annual covered payroll. The contribution requirements of members and of Onslow County and the ABC
Board are established and may be amended by the North Carolina General Assembly. " The County's contributions
to LGERS for the years ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006 were $1,794,728, $1,658,747 and $1,556,666,
respectively. The ABC Board's contributions to LGERS for the years ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006 were
$37,320, $28,520 and $27,141, respectively, The contributions made by the County and the ABC Board equaled
the required contributions for each year.

b. Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance
1. Plan Description

Onslow County administers a public employee retirement system (the "Separation Atlowance"), a single-employer
defined benefit pension plan that provides retirement benefits to the County's qualified sworn law enforcement
officers. The Separation Allowance is equal to .85 percent of the annual equivalent of the base rate of
compensation most recently applicable to the officer for each year of creditable service. The retirement benefits are
not subject to any increases in salary or retirement allowances that may be authorized by the General Assembly.
Article 12D of G.S. Chapter 143 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North
Carolina General Assembly. The Separation Allowance is reported in the County's report as a pension trust fund
and a separate audit report is not issued.

All fulltime County law enforcement officers are covered by the Separation Allowance. At December 31, 2007, the
Separation Allowance's membership consisted of:

Ratirees receiving benefits and terminated plan

Members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 12
Active plan members 120

132

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

Basis of Accounting. Financial statements for the Separation Allowance are prepared using the accrual basis of
accounting. Employer contributions to the plan are recognized when due and when the County has made a formal
commitment to provide the contributions. Benefits are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the

terms of the plan.

Method Used to Value Investments. Investments are reported at fair value. . Short-term money market debt
instruments, deposits, and repurchase agreements, are reported at cost or amortized cost, which approximatas fair
value. Certain longer term United States Government and United States Agency securities are valued at the last

reported sales price.

3. Contributions

The County is required by Article 12D of G.S. Chapter 143 to provide these retirement benefits and has chosen to
fund the amounts necessary to cover the benefits earned by making contributions based on actuarial valuations.
For the current year, the County contributed $114,391 or 2.61% of annual covered payroll. There were no
contributions made by employees. The County's obligation to contribute to this plan is established and may be
amended by the North Carolina General Assembly. Administration costs of the Separation Allowance are not
charged to the proceeds but are covered through normal operations.
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The annual required contribution for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 was determined as part of the December
31, 2007 actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions
included (a) 7.25% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses) and (b) projected salary increase
ranging from 4.5% to 12.3% per year. Both (a) and {b) inciuded an inflation component of 3.75%. The
assumptions did not include post-retirement benefit increases. The actuarial value of assets was market value,
The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage of pay on a closed basis. The
remaining amortization period at December 31, 2007 was 23 years.

Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation for Fiscal Year Ending 6/30/2008

Employer annual required contribution $ 108,356
interest on net pension obligation (7,475)
Adjustment to annual required contribution . 6,335
Annua pension cost 108,216
Employer contributions made for fiscal year ending 6/30/2008 114,391
increase (decrease) in net pension obligation {6,175)
Net pension obligation (prepaid) beginning of fiscal year {103,088)
Net pension cbligation (prepaid) end of fiscal year 3 {109,273)

The prepaid pension obligation is included in pension trust assets shown on Exhibit 9.

Three Year Trend Information

Fiscal Year Annual Pension Percentage of Net Pension Obligation
Ending ' Cost (APC) APC Contributed {Prepaid) End of Year
6/30/2006 $103,008 121.00% ($ 88,536)
6/30/2007 $ 97,305 114.97% {$103,098)
6/30/2008 $108,516 105.71% {$109,273)

4, Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of December 31, 2007, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was 21.59% funded. The actuarial
accrued liability for benefits was $1,186,845, and the actuarial value of assets was $256.243, resulting in an
unfunded actuarial acerued liabifity (UAAL) of $930,602. The covered payroli (annual payroll of active employees
covered by the plan) was $4,461,757 and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 20.86%.

The Schedule of funding progress, pfesented as required supplementary information following the notes to the
financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets are
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

¢. Supplemental Retirement Income Plan {401K) for Law Enforcement Officers

Plan Description. The County contributes to the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan (Plan), a defined
contribution pension plan administered by the Department of State Treasurer and a Board of Trustees. The Plan
provides retirement benefits to law enforcement officers employed by the County. Article 5 of G.5. Chapter 1356
assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. The
Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers is included in the Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of North Carolina. The State’s CAFR included the pension trust fund financial
statements for the Internal Revenus Code Section 401(k) plan that includes the Supplemental Retirement income
Plan for Law Enforcement Officers, That report may be obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller,
1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410, or by calling (919} 881-5454.

Funding Policy. Article 12E of G.S. Chapter 143 requires the County to contribute each month an amount equal to
five percent of each officer's salary, and all amounts contributed are vested immediately. Also, the law enforcement
officers may make voluntary contributions to the plan. Contributions for the year ended June 30, 2008 were
$326,832 which consisted of $219,861 from the County and $106,971 from the law enforcement officers.
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d. Supplemental Retirement Income Plan {401K) for Non Law Enforcement Officers

The County has chosen to extend the supplemental retirement income plan (401K) to non law enforcement
employees. The county contributes an amount egual to 1% of all gross earnings for all permanent full-time and
part-time employees. Contributions for the year ended June 30, 2008 were $2,068,212 which consisted of
$1,044,873 from the County and $1,041,339 from employees.

e. Deferred Compensation Plan

Thea County offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code
Section 457. The plan, which s available to all County employees, permits them to defer a portion of their salary
until future years. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death, or
unforeseeable emergency.

The County has complied with changes in the laws which govern the County's Deferred Compensation Plan,
requiring alt assets of the plan to be held in trust for the exclusive benefit of the participants and their beneficiaries.
Formerly, the undistributed amounts, which had been deferred by the plan participants, were required to be reported
as assets of the County. In accordance with GASB Statement 32, "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal
Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans,” the County's Deferred Compensation Plan is no longer
reported within the County’s Agency Funds. '

f. Registers of Deeds' Supplemental Pension Fund

Pian Description. Onslow County also contributes to the Registers of Deeds' Supplemental Pension Fund {Fund), a
noncontributory, defined cantribution plan administered by the North Carolina Department of State Treasurer. The
Fund provides supplemental pension benefits to any county register of deeds that is retired under the Local
Government Employees' Retirement System (LGERS) or an equivalent locally sponsored plan. Article 3 of G.S.
Chapter 161 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General
Assembly. The Registers of Deeds’ Supplemental Pension Fund is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report (CAFR) for the State of North Carolina. The State’s CAFR includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for the Resisters of Deeds’ Supplemental Pension Fund. That report may be obtained by
writing to the Office of the State Controlier, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410. or by
calling (849) 981-5454.

Funding Policy. On a monthly basis, the County remits to the Department of State Treasurer an amount equal to
one and one-haif percent (1.5%) of the monthly receipts collected pursuant to Article 1 of G.5. 161. Immediately
following January | of each year, the Department of State Treasurer divides ninety-three percent (93%) of the
amount in the Fund at the end of the preceding calendar year into equal shares to be disbursed as monthly
benefits. The remaining seven percent (7%) of the Fund's assets may be used by the State Treasurer in
administering the Fund. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, the County's required and actual contributions

were $15,828.

g. Other Post-employment Benefits (OPEB)

Healthcare benefits

Pian Description. Under the terms of a County resolution, Onslow County administers a single-employer defined
_benefit Healthcare Benefits Plan (the HCB Plan). This plan provides postemployment healthcare benefits to retirees
of the County, provided they participate in the North Carolina Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System
(System) and have at least ten years of creditable service with the County. The County pays the full cost of
coverage for these benefits through private insurers. Also, the county retirees can purchase coverage for their
dependents at the County’s group rates. The Board of Commissioners may amend the benefit provisions. A

separate report was not issued for the plan.

Membership of the HCB Plan consisted of the following at December 31, 2007, the date of the latest actuarial
valuation: '

General Law Enforcerment
Employees: Officers
Retirees and dependents receiving benefits 74 12
Active plan members 1,065 120
Total 1,129 132
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Funding Policy. The County pays the fuli cost of coverage for the healthcare benefits paid to qualified retirees under
a County resolution that can be amended by Board of Commissars. The county members pay an average of $430
per month for dependent coverage. The County has chosen to fund the healthcare benefits on a pay as you go

basis.

The current ARC rate is 3.78% of annual covered payroll. For the current year, the County contributed $1,282,142
or 3.43% of annual covered payroll. The County obtains healthcare coverage through private insurers. The County
required contribution, under a County resolution, for employees not engaged in law enfarcement and for law
enforcement officers represented 5.5% and 4.8% of covered payroll, respectively. There are no contributions made
by employees, except for dependent coverage in the amount of 415,048. The County’s obligation to contribute to
HCB Plan is established and may be amended by the Board of Commissioners.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. Postemployment expenditures are made from the General Fund, which
is maintained on the modified accrual basis of accounting. No funds are set aside to pay benefits and

administration costs. These expenditures are paid as they come due.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation. The County's annual OPEB cost (expense) is calculated based on
the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), and amount actuarially determined in accordance with the
parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis is
projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over &
period not to exceed thirty years. ’

Annual required contribution $ 2,349,724
Interest on net OPEB obligation ' -
Adjustment to annual required contribution

Annual OPEB cost (expense) 2,348,724
Contributions made 1,282,142
Increase in net OPEB obligation 1,067,582
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year -
Net OPEB obligation, end of year $ 1,067,582

The County’s annua! OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB
obligation for 2008 as follows: .

For Year Ended Annual Percentage of Annual Net OPEB -
June 30 QPEB Cost OPEB Cost Contributed Obligation
2008 $2,349,724 54.57% $1,067,582

Funded Status and Funding Progress. As of December 31, 2007, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan
was not funded. The actuarial accrued fiability for benefits and, thus, the unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL)
was $18,103,508. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $37,352,336,
and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 48.5%. Actuarial valuations of an ongoeing plan involve
estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into
the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortaiity, and heaithcare trends. Amounts
determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are
subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made
about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following the
notes to the financial statements, presents information about the actuarial value of plan assets and the actuarial
accrued liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions. Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the
substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits
provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between employer and
plan members at that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to
reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent
with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

In the December 31, 2007 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit actuarial cost method was used. The
actuarial assumptions include a 4.00% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses), which s the
expected long-term investment returns on the employer's own investments calculated based on the funded level of
the plan at the valuation date, and an annual medical cost trend increase of 11.00% and 5.00% annually. Both rates
included a 3.75% inflation assumption. The actuarial value of assets, of any, was determined using techniques that
spread the effects of short-term volatility in the market value of investments over a 5 year period. The UAAL is
being amortized as a level percentage of projected payrall on an open basis. The remaining amortization pericd at
Decernber 31, 2007, was 30 years.
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h. Other Employment Benefits

The County has slected to provide death benefits to employees through the Death Benefit Plan for members of the
Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System (Death Benefit Plan), a multiple-employer, State-administered,
cost-sharing plan funded on a one-year term cost basis. The beneficiaries of those employees who die in active
service after one year of contributing membership in the System, or who die within 180 days after retirement or
termination of service and have at least one year of contributing membership service in the System at the time of
death are eligible for death benefits. Lump sum death benefit payments to beneficiaries are equal to the employee’s
12 highest months salary in a row during the 24 months prior to the employee’s death, but the benefit will be a
minimum of $25,000 and will not exceed $ 50,000. All death benefit payments are made from the Death Benefit
Plan. The County has no liability beyend the payment of monthly contributions. The contributions to the Death
Benefit Plan cannot be separated between the post-employment benefit amount and the other benefit amount. The
County considers these contributions to be immaterial.

i. Healthcare Benefits- Onslow County ABC Board

Pian Description Under the terms of a Board resolution the Board administers a single-employer defined benefit,
Heaithcare Benefits Plan {the HCB Plan). As of February 19, 2007, this plan provides post employment healthcare
benefits to retiress of the Board, provided they participate in the North Carolina Local Governmental Employee’s
Retirement System (System) and have thirty continuous years of creditable service with the Board. The Board
contributes the full cost of premium payments for the remainder of their lives. At the age of sixty-five retirees must
secure their Medicare Part D prescription drug coverage. The Board will continue to pay 100% of the medical
supplement plan and prescription drug insurance premiums. Also, the Board's retirees cannot purchase spouse or
dependant coverage.

Membership of the HCB Plan consisted of the following at December 31, 2007, the date of the latest actuarial
valuation:

MEMBERSHIP
Active Members
General Empioyees
Number 44
Annual compensation 3 902,976
Retired Members
Number : 1

Funding Policy. The Board pays for the full cost of coverage for the heaithcare benefits paid to qualified retirees
under a Board resolution that can be amended by the Board. The Board has chosen to fund healthcare benefits on a
pay as you go basis.

The current ARC rate is 4.78% of annual covered payroll. For the current year, the Board contributed $1,692 or .02%
of annual covered payroll. The board obtains healthcarg coverage through private insurers. The Board's raquired
contributions under a Board resolution, for employees not engaged in law enforcement and for law enforcement
officers represented .02% and 0% of covered payroll respectively. There were no contributions made by employees.
The Board's obligation to contribute to HCB Pian is established and may be amended by the Board

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. Postemployment expenditures are made from the Enterprise Fund,
which is maintained on the modified accrual basis of accounting. No funds are set aside to pay benefits and
administration costs. These expenditures are paid as they come due. '

Annual OPEB Cost and Netf OPEB Obligation. The Board's annual OPEB cost (expense) is calculated based on the
annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially detenmined in accordance with the
parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis is
projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuariai liabifities (or funding excess) over a
period not to exceed thirty years. The following table shows the components of the Board’s annual OPEB cost for the
year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the Board's net OPEB obligation for the healthcare
benefits:
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Annual required contribution $ 22,356
Interest on net OPEB obligation 20,794
Adjustments to annual required contribution -
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 43,150
Contributions made : 1,692
Increase (decrease) in net OPEB obligation 41,458
Net OPEB obligation, begirning of year 602,570
Net OPEB obligation, end of year & 644,028

The Board's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB
obligation for 2008 were as foliow:

For Year Ended Annual Percentage of Annual Net OPEB
June30 OPEB Cost QPEB Cost Contributed Cbligation
2008 $43,150 4.78% $644,028

Funded Status and Funding Progress. As of December 31, 2007, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan
was not funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits and, thus, the unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL)
was $602,570. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $902,976 and the
ratio of the UAAL to the coverad payroll was 66.7%. Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the
value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future.
Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and healthcare trends. Amounts include
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and healthcare trends. Amounts determined regarding the funded
status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual
results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding
progress, presented as required supplemeantary information following the notes to the financial statements, presents
multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time
relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions. Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the
substantive plan (the pian as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits
provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattem of sharing of benefit costs between the employaer and
the plan members at that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed
to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value assets, consistent
with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

In the December 31, 2007 actuarial vafuation, the projected unit credit actuarial cost method was used. The actuarial
assumptions included a 4.00% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses), which is the expected long
term investment returns on the employer's own Investments calculated based on the funded level of the plan at the
valuation date, and an annual medical cost trend increase of 11.00% to 5.00% annually. Both rates included a
3.75% inflation assumption. The actuarial value of assets, if any was determined using techniques that spread the
effects of short-term volatility in the market value of investments over a 5 year perod. The UAAL is being amortized
as a level percentage of projected payroll on an open basis. The remaining amortization period at December 31,
2007, was 30 years.

J. Onslow County Hospital Authority Pension Plan

The Hospital is the administrator of a single-employer, defined benefit, public employee retirement system (the
"System”) established by the Hospital to provide special separation bensfits to its employees.

Employees are eligible to become participants in the plan on the first day of the pian year in which the employee has
completed one year of credited service and attained age 21. The plan provides pension benefits to vested
participants who have attained at least 5 years of service. The benefits are based on years of service, age, and the
employee's compensation. The Hospital's Board of Commissioners has the ability to amend benefit provisions.

The annual required contribution for 2007 was determined as part of the September 30, 2007 actuarial valuation.
Significant actuarial assumptions used in the valuation include {a) an annual rate of retum on the investment of
present and future assets of 7 1/2% compounded annually and (b) projected annual salary increases of 5%
compounded annually, including 3% attributable to inflation. The Plan's contribution expense for the year ended
September 30, 2007 amounted to $550,000. The over-funded actuarial pension asset is being amortized over the
average remaining service, weighted by salary on an open basis using the level-dollar method.
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The annual pension cost and net pension asset at September 30, 2007 are as follows:

Annual pension cost : ) 452 276
Contribution made 550,000
97,724
Prepaid pension asset at beginning of year (1,008,559)
Prepaid pension asset at end of year $ ( 908,835)
Three Year Trend Information
Annual Percent Net
Pension APC Pension
Cost (APC) Contributed Asset
2007 $ 452 276 82% $ ( 908,835)
2006 $ 597,598 95% $ { 1,006,559)
2005 3 949,419 22% $ ( 979,001)

k. Onslow County ABC Board Commitments

The ABC Board has elecied to pay direct costs of employment securities benefits in lieu of empioyment security
taxes on payroll. A liability for benefit payments could accrue in the year following discharge of employees.

3. Closure and Postclosure Care Costs - Onslow County Landfill Facility

State and federal laws and regulations require the County to place a final cover on its two landfill facifities when it
stops accepting waste and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the site for thirty years after
closure. Although closure and post-closure care costs will be paid only near or after the date that the landfill'stops
accepting waste, the County reports a portion of these closure and post-closure care costs as an operating expense
in each period based on landfill capacity used as of each balance sheet date. .

The $6,685,544 reported as landfill closure and post-closure care liabifity at June 30, 2008 represents a cumulative
amaunt reported to date based on the use of 100 percent of the total estimated capacity of both landfills. Onslow
County closed one facility in the fiscal year ended 1988, Total costs incurred to date on the final cover of this
landfill are $3,181,529. Final costs may be higher due to infiation, changes in technology, or changes in
regulations. The remaining estimated cost of closure and post-closure care on the second landfiil of $5 million was
recognized as the remaining capacity was filled. All of the above amounts are based on what it would cost to
perform all closure and post-closure care in 2008, During 2008, the County opened a new cell in the existing landfill
_ with current closure and post closure estimates in process. Actual costs may be higher due to inflation, changes In
technology, or changes in regulations.

The County has met the requirements of a local government financial test that is one option under State and federal
taws and regulations that helps determine if a unit is financlally able to meet closure and post-closure care
requirements. The County is not currently required to fund the estimated closure costs of this facility based upon its
present financial stability. As of June 30, 2008, the County has used approximately 10% of its landfill currently in

operation.

Deferred / Unearned Revenues

4,

The balance in deferred / unearned revenue at year-end is comprised of the following:

General Fund
Taxes recejvable (net) $ 3,662,734
Prepaid taxes not yet earned 329,531
Total ' $ 3,902 265

5. Risk Management

The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage o, and destruction of assets; error
and omissions, injuries to employees; and natural disasters. Onslow County is self-insured for worker's
compensation coverage, and contracts with Compensation Claims Solutions for the administration of the plan. The
County provides coverage up to the statutory limits, and acquires excess loss coverage from a third party provider.
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Employer's liahility coverage is provided up to $1,000,000 for bodily injury by accident or disease. Current year
operations are reported in the Worker's Compensations Fund.

for its employee health insurance. The plan is administered by Blue Cross Blue Shield of
NC. There is a specific stop loss of $1 00,000 per covered employee/dependent and an aggregate stop loss of
125% of expected net paid claims. Blue Cross Blue Shield underwrites the reinsurance policies for the specific and
aggregate stop-loss coverage. The County pays 100% of the premium for employees only coverage and the
employees pay 100%of the premium for dependent coverage. The plan is self-sustaining through premiums. The
estimated liability for claims is based on all known claims filed as of June 30, 2008, as determined by the plan

administrator.

The County is self-insured

The County is fully-insured for its employee dental insurance. The policy is provided by Shenandoah Life Insurance
Company of Roanoke, Va. The County pays 100% of the premium for employees only coverage and the
employees pay 100%of the premium for dependent coverage. The plan is self-sustaining thraugh premiums.

A summary of changes in the aggregate iiabilities for health claims are as follows.

Liability
{Overpayment) Liabifity
For Claims - {Overpayment)
Fiscal Year Beginning of Net Fees Paid Claimsand  ForClaims -End
Endirgiune 30 Year Credited Charges of Year
1998 $ 306,410 $ 4,067,132 $ 3,661,079 E (99,643)
2000 {99,673) 3,578,104 3,739,761 61,984
2001 62,014 4,018,573 4,085,055 108,496
2002 108,496 4,359,794 4,447 191 195,893
2003 185,893 2,336,595 2,306,736 166,034
2004 166,034 4,148,892 3,869,795 (113,063)
2005 {113,063) 4,738,535 4,070,375 (781,223)
2008 (781,223) 4,242 496 5477,719 454,000
2007 454,000 5,351,424 5,043,991 148,567
2008 146,567 5178,710 5,018,015 (13,128)

A summary of changes in the aggregate liahilities for workers compensation claims are as follows:

Liability For

Claims - Liability For
Fiscal Year Beginning of NetFees Pai Claims and Claims - End of
Ending June 30 Year Credited : Charges Year
2005 $ 60,740 $ 587,713 $ 626,228 ¥ 22,225
20086 22,225 1,082,602 1,005,201 99,626
2007 09,626 819,544 843,026 78,144
2008 76,144 736,282 761,620 101,502

The County carries commercial insurarnce for all other risks of loss such as general liability, buildings & contents,
flood, auto, and wind & hail. There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage from the previous
year and settled claims from these risks have not exceeded the total commercial insurance coverage in any of the

last three fiscal years.

In addition to the insurance above the County carries flood insurance through the National Flood Insurance Plan
(NFIP). Because the County is in an area of the State that has been mapped and designated an “A" area (an area
close to a river, lake or stream) by the Federal Emergency Management Agency, the County is efigible to purchase
coverage of $500,000 per structure through the NFIP. The County has purchased flood coverage for its beach
access site #2. The County was unable to purchase coverage for their other two beach access sites as they are in
a coastal Barrier Resources Area (CBRA).
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In accordance with G.S. 159-29, County employees that have access to $100 or more at any given time of the
County's funds are performance bonded through a commercial surety bond. The Finance Officer is individually
bonded for $250,000 and the tax collector is individually bonded for $100,000. The remaining employees that have
access to funds are bonded under a blanket bond for $1,000,000 with a deductible of $2,500.

Onslow County ABC Board is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The ABC Board has property, general
liability, auto liability, workmen's compensation and employee health coverage. The Board also has liquor legal
liability coverage. There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage from the prior year and settled
claims have not exceeded coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. '

6. Claims and Judgments

At June 30, 2008, the County was a defendant to various lawsuits. In the opinion of the County's management and
the County attorney, the ultimate effect of these legal matters will not have a material adverse effect on the County's
financial position.

The Hospital Authority is subject to legal proceedings and claims that arise in the course of providing health care
services. The Hospital Authority maintains malpractice insurance coverage (after self-insured retention limits) for
claims made during the policy year, up to the maximum amounts stated in the insurance policy. The Hospital also
carries excess malpractice coverage up to specified limits to cover claims in excess of the maximum amounts
stated in the basic policy. In the Hospital Authority's management's opinion, adequate provision has been made for
amounts expected to be paid under the policy's deductible limits for asserted an unasserted claims not covered by
the policy and any uninsured liability,

In addition, other various claims have been levied upon the Hbspital by various parties. In the opinion of

management, after consultation with legal counsel, the outcome of these actions will not have a significant adverse
effect on the financial position or the results of operations of the Hospital.

7. Long-Term Obligations

a. Installment Purchase

As authorized by State law (G.S. 160A-20 and 153A-158.1) the County has entered into installment purchase
contracts for the purchase of capital equipment needs of the County. The installment purchases were issued
pursuant to a deed of trust, which requires that legal title remain with the County as long as the debt is outstanding.
The lease term is the same as that of the installment purchase obligation. The capital assets associated with the
installment purchase obligation are recorded in the capital assets of the County. :

The County'é installment purchase obligations payable at June 30, 2008 are comprised of the following;

Industrial Park land executed on April 23, 1997 for a 15 years period, negotiated
rate reduction in October 2004 to 3.50% with quarterly installments of $26,293.63 $ 388,655

Telecommunication tower & equipment executed on December 28, 1999 for
a 15 year period at 5.57% interest with semi-annual principal payments
of $72,500 plus interest. 738,854

Industrial Park land executed on December 21, 2000 for a 15 years period, negotiated
rate reduction in October 2004 to 3.50% with quarterly installments of $35,539.01 921,982

County Building executed on December 21, 2000 for a 15 year period
at 5.41% with quarterly installments of principal of $ 107,566.67 plus
accrued interest 1,613,500

Industrial park improvements executed on November 20, 2002 for a 10 year
period at 0% interest with monthly payments of $2,083.33 beginning on
November 1, 2004 and ending October 1, 2012, 108,333
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Schools executed on November 22, 2002 for a 15 year period
at 3.96% with semi-annual payments of $300,000 principal plus interest

beginning November 1, 2003 through November 1, 2017 5,700,000
Library and EMS bay executed on December 10, 2002 for a 15 year period
at 4.27% with semi annual payments of $23,000 principal plus interest
beginning June 10, 2003 and ending December 10, 2017 437,000
Schools executed on February 13, 2004 for a 15 year period -
at 4.18% with quarterly payments of 41,666.67 principal plus interest
beginning May 1, 2004 through February 1, 2019 1,791,667
County Building executed on March 1, 2004 for a 15 year period
at 3.90% with quarterly installments of principal of $ 28,666.67 plus
accrued interest 1,204,000
Sheriff vehicles executed on May 11, 2005 for a 3 year period (should have matured)
at 3.52% with quarterly principal payment of § 23,676.33 plus accrued interest. 812,854
Energy management executed June 14, 2007 for a 12 year period
at 3.909% with quarterly principal payments plus accrued interest. 3,825,000
$ 17,541,845
Installment purchase debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:
Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest Amount
2009 $ 1,754,837 $ 716,536 $ 2,471,373
2010 1,766,359 647,793 2,414,152
2011 1,778,384 573,177 2,351,561
2012 1,788,243 501,184 " 2,289,427
2013 1,680,682 424,070 2,104,752
2014-201 6,574,489 1,260,733 7,835,222
2019-2023 1,242,601 322,464 1,565,065
2024-2028 956,250 112,288 1,068,538
Total Minimum lease payments $17,541,845 $ 4,558,244 $ 22,100,090
Amount representing interest 4,558,244
$ 17,641,845

Present value of net minimum lease payments

b. Operating Leases - Hospital

The Hospital Authority leases certain property and office and medical equipment under operating leases. The future
minimum payments due under non-cancelable operating lease agreements with terms of one year or more are as

follows.
Year Ending September 30, Operating Leases
2009 $ 583,318
2010 - 9,117
Total Minimum lease payments $ 592,495

50

Return to Table of Contents



Onslow County, North Carolina
Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

c. Certificates of Participation

In June 2006 the County through Onslow Facilities Company issued $15,500,000 in Certificates of Participation
Instaliment Contract to finance the construction of the Meadowview Elementary School to be located on Fire Tower
Road. Payments are due December and June with interest from 4.00% to 5.00%.

Debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:
Year Ending Juna 30

2008
2010

2011

2012

2013

2014-2018

2019-2023

2024-2028
Total

d. General Obligation Indebtedness

Principal Interest

3 775,000 642,281
775,000 611,281
775,000 580,281
775,000 549,281
775,000 516,344
3,875,000 2,068,281
3,875,000 1,123,750
2,325,000 213,125

$ 13,950,000 $ 6,304,625

All general obligation bonds serviced by the County’s general fund are collateralized by the full faith, credit and

taxing power of the County. The general obligation bonds issued to finance const

ruction of facilities utilized in the

operation of the water and sewer system, which are being retired by its resources, are reported as long-term debt in

the Water and Sewer Fund. Principal and interest requirement are appropriated when due.

The County's general obligation bonds payable at June 30, 2008 are comprised of the following individual issues:

Serviced by the County’s General Fund:

$2,300,000 Courthouse Bonds Series 2000
Payments are due May and Novemnber through 2018
with interest from 5.4% to 6.00%

$11,575,000 School Refunding Bonds Series 2004
Payments are due March and September through 2011
with interest from 3.00% to 4.00%

$50,000,000 School Bonds Series 2006
Payments are due December and June through 2025
with interest from 4.00% to 5.00%

$12,025,000 School Refunding Bonds Series 2008
Payments are due December and June through 2025
with interest from 4.00% to 5.25%

$620,000 Capital Improvement Refunding Bonds Series 2006
Payments are due December and June through 2025
with interest from 4.00% to 5.25%

$40,000,000 School Bonds Series 2008
Payments are due October and April through 2028
no principal payments the first two years
with interest from 3,00% to 5.00%
Premium on bonds issued

Carrying value of bonds
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Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the County's general obligation bonds are as follows:

Government Activities

Year Ending June 30 Principal interest
2009 $ 3,850,000 $ 4,877,838
2010 3,815,000 4,730,213
2011 5,800,000 4,565,813
2012 5,765,000 4,352,213
2013 5,745,000 4,094,863
2014-2018 28,890,000 16,562,900
2019-2023 29,750,000 8,535,000
2024-2028 23,050,000 2,856,000
- TOTAL $ 108,665,000 $ 51,574,838

At June 30, 2008, Onslow County had a legal debt margin of $759,164,830 and bonds authorized but uninsured of

$3,780,000.

e Sgeciél Obligation Bonds

in May of 2003 the County refinanced special obligation bonds which were originally
issued in October 1997, the County issued $7,000,000 of special obligation bonds at
'5.13% interest, for the purpose of construction a Subtitte D Landfill. These refunding
bonds have an interest rate of 3.33%. These bonds are authorized under the North
Carclina Solid Waste Managerment Loan Program, Chapter 1591, of the North Carolina
General Statutes in accordance with a bond resolution adopted by the County Board of
Commissioners. The bond is secured by a first lien on the net revenues of the Solid
Waste Fund. The interest on the bonds is payable semi-annually on November 1 and
May 1. The special obligation which matures November 1, 2012, will be reported on the
solid waste fund's financial statements,

In May 2003, the County issued $4,210,000 of special obligation bonds at 3.81%
interest, for the purpose of construction a Subtitte D landfill. These bonds are
authorized under the North Carclina Solid Waste management Loan Program, Chapter
1591, of the North Carolina General Statutes in accordance with a bond resolution
adopted by the County Board of Commissioners, The bond is secured by a first fien on
the net revenues of the Solid Waste Fund. The interest on the bonds is payable semi-
annually on May 1 and November 1. The special obligation which mature through May
1, 2013, will be reported on the solid waste fund’s financial statements.

in December 2007, the County issued $8,022,838.04 of special obligation bonds at
3.54% interest, for the purpose of construction a Subtitle D landfill. These bonds are
authorized under the North Carolina Solid Waste management Loan Program, Chapter
1591, of the North Carolina General Statutes in accordance with a bond resolution
adopted by the County Board of Commissioners. The bond is secured by a first lien on
the net revenues of the solid Waste Fund. The interest on the bonds is payable semi-
annually on June 1 and December 1. The special obligation which mature through June
1, 2018, will be reported on the solid waste fund's financial statements.
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Onslow County, North Carolina

Notes to the Financlal Statements
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Special obligation debt service requirements are as follows:

Year Ending Jupe 30 ' Principal Interest
2009 $ 2,045,753 § 427,855
2010 2,113,180 355,021
2011 ‘ 1,604,843 284,864
2012 ' 1,619,056 228,017
2013 1,379,961 169,530
2014-2018 3,669,833 396,480
Total ‘ $ 12,462,726 $ 1,861,767

f. Revenue Bonds

During 2006, the Hospital Authority issued a $58,100,000 FHA insured Mortgage Revenue Bond (“2006 HUD
Revenue Bond") to finance the cost of expanding and constructing the Hospital, and to redeem the existing 1998
Revenue Bond. The Authority plans to construct a new Emergency Department and Surgical Pavilion adjacent to
the existing hospital facility as Phase | of its long range plan to develop a replacement hospital. The 2008 HUD
Revenue Bond is secured by a first lien on the Authority's teasehold interest in the property and original buildings,
the improvements thereon and certain fidures, equipment, and personal property of the Authority. The associated
bond agreements require the Authority to maintain specific financial qualitative covenants. The Authority was in
compliance as of September 30. 2007.

The bonds wers Issued as fully registered bonds, whereby interest is payable at a fixed rate percentage, with rates
of 4.75% at a minimum and 5.13% at maximum. Principal payments will be made on April 1 and October 1
beginning Qctaber 2008.

The Hospital Authority debt éervice requirements to maturity are as follows (includes term debt - see item h for
further details). :

Year Ending September 3 Principal Interest
2008 3 1,220,000 $ 2,903,368
2009 i 1,115,000 2,829,294
2010 1,165,000 2,775,688
2011 1,225,000 2,718,844
2012 : 1,285,000 3,658,369
2013-2017 7,460,000 12,280,169
2018-2022 9,605,000 10,161,887
2023-2027 12,385,000 7,427,375
2028-2032 15,905,000 3,853,500
Thereafter 6,735,000 291,375
Total 3 58,100,000 % 47,999 879

—_————lee,

g. Component Unit Term Debt

Onslow County Industrial Facility and Pollution Control Authority has issued industrial revenue bonds to provide
financial assistance to private businesses for economic development purposes. These bonds are secured by the
properties financed as well as letters of credit and are payable solely from payments received from the private
businesses served by the bond issuance. Neither the County, the Authority, the State, nor any political subdivision
thereof is obligated in any manner for the repayment of bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reperted as liabilities
in the accompanying financial statements. As of June 30, 2008 there were two series of industrial revenue bonds
outstanding, with an aggregate principal amount payable of $4,000,000.
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h. Long-Term Obligation Activity

The following is a summary of changes in the County's long-term obligations for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008:

Current
Balance Balance Portion of
July 1, 2007 Increases Decreases June 30, 2008 Balances
Governmental activities:
General obligation debt $ 70555000 § 41,322,260 $ 3,800,000 §$ 107,987,260 § 3,850,000
Installment purchase 15,353,643 3,825,000 1,636,798 17,541,845 1,754,837
Certificates of Participation 14,725,000 - 775,000 13,850,000 775,000
Net OPEB cbligation - 2,349,724 1,282,142 1,067,582 -
Compensated absences 2,152 375 2,190,237 2,073,164 2,269,448 587,362

Total governmental activities _$ 102,786,018 $ 49687221 § 9657104 _§ 142816135 § 6,947,199

Business-type activities:

Special obligation bonds $ 7183041 $ 8022811 $ 2743126 $ 12462726 § 2,045753
Accrued landfill

closure costs 6,484,712 200,832 - 6,685,544 668,554
Compensated absences 61,853 49,674 48,552 62,975 15,744
Total business-type activities $ 13728606 § 8273317 $ 2791678 $ 19,211,245 § 2,730,051

Compensated absences typically have been fiquidated in the general fund and are accounted for on a LIFQ basis,
assuming that employees are taking leave time as it is eamed.

Current
Balance Baance Portion of
2007 Increases Decreases 2008 Balances

Discretely presented

component units:

Hospital:

Revenue bonds $ 58,100,000 & - $ - $ 58,100,000 § -
Notes payable §2,202 - 30,440 51,762 32,164

Total discretely presented

component unit $ 60,667,488 % - $ 30440 § 58,151,762 & 32,164
C. Interfund Balances and Activity
The composition of interfund balances as of June 30, 2008 for operating loans are as follows:

Interfund
Receivables Payable

General Fund

Capital Project Fund ' $ 5,748,723 $ -

Emergency 911 Fund 477,304 -
Capital Project Fund

General Fund - 5,748,723
Emergency 911 Fund

General Fund - 477,304

$ 6,226,027 $ 6,226,027

The purposes for the interfund balances above are as follows:

The General Fund has advanced funds to the Capital Project Fund to cover the preliminary cost of the jail

construction project. These monies will be reimbursed to the General Fund from the issuance of dabt for the
project.

The General Fund has advanced funds to the Emergency 911 Fund to cover advances of wire/line revenues
reverting back to the General Fund.
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Due toffrom primary gavernment and compenent units:

Receivable Entity Payable Entity Amount
Primary government: Component Unit:
General Fund Onslow County ABC Board
Required distributions $ 185,682

Transfers toffram other funds to supplement other funding sources:

Transfers
‘ From To
Transfers From/To Other Funds

General Fund

Capital Improvement Fund _ L] - 5 541,000

Capital Project Fund 474,908 1,821,086

E911Fund | . 473,165 -

Airport Fund - 177,500
Capital Improvement Fund

General Fund 541,000 -
Airport Fund

General Fund 177,500 -
Capital Project Fund

General Fund 1,821,986 474,906
E-911 Fund

General Fund - . 473,165

Total transfers-other Funds 5 3,488,557 $ 3,488,557

The purposes for the transfers above are as follows:

The General Fund has provided monies to the Capital Impravement Fund and to the Airpart Fund to cover
improvements, such as roofing replacements, HVAC replacement and other general improvements, ‘{o
facilities that are not of an operating fund nature.

The General Fund has provided monies to the Capital Project Fund to cover major capital projects. These
project consists of beach access repairs, construction of soccer complex, major software enhancement
projects and other improvernents. Additionally, any remaining funds available at the completion of the
project are returned to the General Fund, which results in the transfers from Capital Project to General.

The E911 Fund has provided monies to the General Fund to assist in covering the cost of debt incurred by
the E911 Fund, and to revert wireline funds back to the General Fund.

NOTE Ill. - Joint Ventures

The County in conjunction with the State of North Carolina and the Onslow County Board of Education, participates
in a joint venture to operate the Onslow County Community College. Each of the three participants appoints four
members of the thirteen-member board of trustees of the community college. The president of the community
college's student government serves as an ex officio nonvoting member of the community college's board of
trustees. The cormunity college is included as a component unit of the State.
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The County has the basic responsibility for providing funding for the facilities of the community college and also
provides some financial support for the community college's operations. In addition to providing annual
appropriations for the facilities, the County periodically issues general obligation bonds to provide financing for new
and restructured facilities. The County has an ongoing financial responsibility for the community college because of
the statutory responsibilities to provide funding for the community college's facilities. The County contributed
$2,716,231 and $477,000 to the community college for operating and capital purposes, respectively, during the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. The participating governments do not have any equity interest in the joint venture;
therefore, no equity interest has been reflected in the County's financial statements at June 30, 2008. Complete
financial statements for the community college may be obtained from the community college's administrative
offices at 444 Western Boulevard, Jacksonville, NC 28546,

The County in conjunction with the City of Jacksonvilie and the Town of Richlands, Swansbore, Holly Ridge, and
North Topsail Beach, participates in a joint venture to operate the Onslow County Water and Sewer Authority. The
County and the City each appoint two members of the nine-member board with each town appointing one member
gach. The participating governments do not have any equity interest in the joint venture, therefore no equity interest
has been reflected in the County's financial statements at June 30, 2008, Complete financial statements for the
Authority may be obtained from the Authority’s administrative offices at 232 Georgetown Road, Jacksonville, NC,
285486, ‘

NOTE IV. Jointly Governed Organization

The County, in conjunction with eight other counties and sixty-two municipalities, established the East Carolina
Council of Governments {Council). The participating governments established the Council to coordinate various
funding received from federal and State agencies. Each participating government appoints one member to the
Council's gaverning board. The County paid membership fees of $28,641 to the Council during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2008. The County was the sub recipient of various grants totaling $618,420 from the us.
Department of Health and Human Services and the U.S. Department of Agricuiture that was passed through the

Council,

NOTE V. Benefit payments Issued by the State

The amounts listed below were paid directly to individual recipients by the State from federal and state moneys.
Onslow County personnel are involved with certain functions, primarily eligibility determinations that cause benefit
payments to be issued by the state. These amounts disclose the additional aid to County recipients that do not
appear in the financial statements because they are not revenues and expenditures of the County.

Federal State
Special Supplemental Food Program for Women,
infants and Children $ 5,402,495 $ -
Medical Assistance 70,048,849 35,718,912
Food Stamp Program 13,229,174 -
IV-E Adoptions Subsidy Payments . 346,679 98,655
IV-E Foster Care , 156,856 43,805
IV-E Foster Care in excess 36,526 -
Energy Assistance 163,809 -
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 848,561 -
CWS Adoption Subsidy Payments - 440,094
Special Assistance to Adults (SCISA Domiciliaty Care) _ - ‘ 643,600
State Foster Home - 132,350

NOTE VI. Summary Disclosure of Significant Commitments and Contingencies

Federal and State Assisted Programs

The County has received proceeds from several federal and State grants. Periodic audits of these grants are
required and certain costs may be questioned as not being appropriate expenditures ugg‘,j[er the grant agreements.
Such audits could result in the refund of grant moneys to the grantor agencies. Management believes that any
required refunds will be immaterial. No provision has been made in the accompanying financial statements for the
refund of grant moneys.
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NOTE VIl. Special tems

Effective July 1, 2005, the County div
newly formed Onslow-Carteret Behavioral Health Care Services, an area Author
Carolina. In conjunction with this divestiture, the County maintained title to all

ested itself of menta! health services by tuming the operations over to the
ity approved by the State of North
real estate previously utilized by the

mental health department, and currently leases these facilities to the area Authority. The minimum lease payments

expected to be realized by the County under this operating jease are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014-2018
2019

Amount

114,667
114,667
114,667
114,667
114,687
573,333

57,333

$

1,204,000
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL
FINANCIAL DATA

This Section contains additional information required by
generally accepted accounting principles.

Schedule of Funding Progress for the Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance.

Schedule of Employer Contributions for the Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance.

Notes to the Required Schedules for the Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance.
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SCHEDULE 1

Onslow County, North Carolina
Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance
Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial Accrued

Liability (AAL)

Actuarial Value of  Projected Unit Unfunded AAL UAAL as a % of

Actuarial Valuation Assets Credit {UAAL) Funded Ratio Covered Payroll Covered Payroll
Date (a) (b) (b-a) (ab) (c) {{ b-a)/c)
12/31/1998 $ 146,256 $ 554,626 $ 408,370 26.37% % 2,822,555 14.47%
12/31/1999 159,549 601,371 441,822 26.53% 2,902,062 15.22%
12/31/2000 184,016 856,372 672,356 21.49% 2,916,980 23.05%
12/31/2001 195,901 909,840 713,939 21.53% 2,950,554 24.20%
1213172002 198,982 974,205 775,223 = 2043% 3,057,998 25.35%
12/31/2003 197,303 962,943 765,640 20.49% 3,079,375 24.86%
12/31/2004 189,169 1,055,739 866,570 17.92% 3,084,571 28.09%
12/31/2005 200,649 964,842 764,193 20.80% 3,586,500 21.31%
12/31/2006 235,597 1,032,229 796,632 22.82% 4,057,340 19.63%
12/31/2007 256,243 1,186,845 930,602 21.59% 4,461,757 20.86%

* Presented for the most recent ten year period
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SCHEDULE 2
Onslow County, North Carolina
Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance
Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Empioyer Contributions

Year Ended Annual Required Percentage
June 30, Contribution * Contributed *
1999 $ 52,544 123.11%
2000 65,274 110.04%
2001 70,068 98.04%
2002 88,673 . 96.08%
2003 94,395 94.88%
2004 96,937 94.98%
2005 104,014 95.75%
2006 08,426 126.63%
2007 109,356 102.30%
2008 109,356 104.60%

* Presented for the most recent ten year period

Notes to the Required Schedules:

The information presented in the required supplementary schedules was
determined as a part of the actuariai valuations at the dates indicated. Additional
information as of the latest actuarial valuations follows.

Valuation date 12/31/07

Actuarial cost method Projected unit credit
Amortization method Level percent of pay closed
Remaining amortization period 23 years

Asset vaiuation method Market value

Actuarial assumptions:

Invesment rate of retumn * 7.25%
Projected salary increases * 45-12.3%
* Includes inflation at 3.75%
Cost of living adjustments N/A
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SCHEDULE 2-A

Onslow County, North Carolina
Post-Employment Health Benefit Obligation -
Required Supplementary Infarmation

Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial

Accrued Liability

Actuarial Actuarial Value {AAL) Projected Unfunded AAL

UAAL as a % of
Funded Ratio Covered Payroll Cavered Payroll
{ab) {c) ({ b-a)/c)

Valuation of Assets Unit Credit (UAAL})
Date {a} (b) . {b-a)
12/31/2007  § - $ 18,103,508 $ 18,103,508

0.00% $ 37,352,336 48.47%

Schedule of Employer Contributions

Year Ended Annual Required

June 30, Contribution *
2008 $ 2,349,724

Notes to the Required Schedulss:

Percentage

Contributed *

54.57%

The information presented in the required supplementary schedules was determined as a part of the
actuarial valuations at the dates indicated. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows.

Valuation date

Actuarial cost method

Amua.rtizafion method

" Remaining amortization period

Asset valuation method

Actuarial ass.urnptions:
Invesment rate cf return *

Annual medical cost trend increase*
* Includes inflation at
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12/31/07

Projected unit credit

Level percent of projcted pay open .
30 years

Market valus

4.00%

11% and 5%
3.75%
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-

GENERAL FUND

The General Fund is used to account for resources traditionally
associated with government which are not required legally or by sound
financial management to be accounted for in another fund.
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SCHEDULE 3
Onslow County, North Carolina
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GENERAL FUND Page 10718
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
. For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008
(With Comparative Amounts For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007)
2008 2007
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual {Negative) Actual
Revenues:
Ad valorem taxes:
Taxes 56,055,590 53,243,258
Penalties and interest 311,679 324,082
Total 55,393,700 56,367,265 § 973,565 53,567,340
Local opfion sales taxes:
Article 39 one percent 12,937,026 11,082,057
Article 40 one-half of one percent 7,853,127 6,834,884
Article 42 one-half of one percent 7,788,483 7,198,207
Article 44 one-half of one percent 6,410,118 5,649,816
Medicaid Hold Harmless 70,021 -
Total 34,290,000 35,058,774 768,774 30,764,964
Other taxes and licenses:
Deed stamp excise tax 1,046,670 1,084,827
Motor vehicles taxes 192,808 163,844
Occupancy and tourism tax 1,540,765 1,340,086
Privilege licenses 28,191 24,325
Total 2,659,800 2,808,433 148,633 2,613,082
Unrestricted intergovernmental :
Beer and wine tax 377,214 359,178
Tax reimbursements 175,291 2,140,643
Total 340,000 552,505 212,505 2,499,821
Restricted intergovernmental:
Onslow County ABC Board:
Law enforcement 124,404 96,882
Profit distribution 543,153 492 348
Social service 16,646,321 16,076,242
Health department 3,003,255 7,046,549
Mental health 37,089 44,666
Council on Aging 646,472 1,626,031
Federal grants 219,544 173,469
State grants 2,326,048 2,588,014
Local grants 520,828 518,261
Court facility fees 412,553 391,565
Library 283,586 413,756
Youth services 462,215 560,276
Drug enforcement revenues 98,216 196,115
Cther reimbursements : 854,098 1,255,594
Total 26,703,533 26,177,782 (525,751) 31,480,669



SCHEDULE 3

Onslow County, North Carolina
GENEI;yAL FUND Page 2 of 16
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008
{(With Comparative Amounts For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007)

2008 2007
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
Permits and fees:
Cierk of Court fees 273,505 247,609
Inspection fees 1,330,939 1,226,593
Register of deeds 938,696 1,030,977
Elections fees 5,938 279
Other fees 140,524 205,694
Total 2,545,745 2,689,603 143,858 ) 2,711,153
Sales and services: )
Airport 1,346,409 1,190,734
Rescue Squad - 2,448,937 2,411,514
Cablevision fees 1,176,203 591,951
Rents and other 1,086,296 274,271
Sheriff's department fees 163,401 147,912
Health department fees 3,931,838 33,552
Recreation fees 75,707 92,809
Total 8,829,697 10,228,791 1,399,094 4,742,743
investment earnings 1,705,000 1,923,527 218,527 2,411,197
Miscellaneous:
Other revenues ' 436,181 676,517 240,336 675,791
Total revenues 132,903,656 136,483,197 3,579,541 131,466,760
Expenditures
General Government:
Governing body
Salaries and employee benefits 140,932 133,019
Other operating expenditures 167,528 122,521
Capital outiay - 7,580
Total 322,526 308,459 14,067 263,120
Administration:
Salaries and employee benefits 448,000 306,794
Other operating expenditures ‘ 61,816 42,801
Total 506,944 509,816 {(2,872) 349,585
Elections:
Salaries and employee benefits 290,815 160,406
Other operating expenditures 152,773 129,213
Capital outlay 6,510 49,710
Total 610,894 450,098 160,796 339,329
Finance:
Salaries and employee benefits 561,518 532,375
Other operating expenditures 59,945 40,151
Total 628,377 - 621,463 6,914 872,526
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Onslow County, North Carolina

SCHEDULE 3

GENERAL FUND Page 3 of 16
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008
(With Comparative Amounts For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007)
2008 2007
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual {Negative) Actual
Legal:
Salaries and employee benefits 89,082 -
Other operating expenditures 128,822 242,108
Total 230,000 227,804 2,096 242,108
Jury selection:
Other operating expenditures 19,900 14,521 5,379 10,217
Taxes: : :
Salaries and employee benefits 1,405,195 1,305,158
Other operating expenditures 349,632 314,715
Capital outlay 7,798 13,037
Total 1,873,620 1,762,625 110,995 1,632,910
Buildings and grounds:
Sataries and employes benefits 008,947 826,632
Other operating expenditures 213,868 205,396
Capital outlay 90,720 40,206
Total 1,264,659 1,213,705 50,954 1,072,234
Court facilities:
Other operating expenditures 282,600 250,541 32,059 245,447
Purchasing:
Salaries and empioyee benefits 211,610 188,636
Other operating expenditures 24,302 23,302
Total 285,868 235912 49,956 211,937
Register of Deeds: '
Salaries and employes benefits 296,524 340,413
Other operating expenditures 76,107 55,548
Total 442 411 372,631 69,780 385,962 .
Information Technology Systems:
Salaries and employee benefits 829,043 799,165
Other operating expenditures 771,302 873,897
G!S Capital outlay 694,352 369,262
Total 2,504,220 2,294,697 209,523 2,042,324
Revaluation:
Salaries and employee benefits 217,882 203,876
Other operating expenditures 32,090 40,447 .
Capital outfay 46,029 13,086
Total 318,384 296,000 22,384 257,409
District Attorney:
60,890 58,433 2,457 58,019

Other operating expenditures
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GENEI:yAL FUND Page 4 of 18
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008
(With Comparative Amounts For The Fiscai Year Ended June 30, 2007)

2008 2007
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual {Negative) Actuat
Probation Office: ]
Other operating expenditures 28,825 26,639 2,186 26,003
Public Works Garage:
Salaries and employee benefits 430,655 395,294
Other operating expenditures 39,414 35,648
Capital outlay - 10,534
Total 472,509 470,069 2,440 441,476
Planning:
Salaries and employee benefits 227465 205,301
Other operating expenditures 18,391 48,577
Capital outlay 15,722 8,779
Total ) 310,941 261,578 49,363 262,657
Human Resources:
Salaries and employee benefits 347,771 . 366,479
Other operating expenditures ' 70,053 58,946
Total 505,218 417,824 87,394 425,425
Workers' Compensation :
Other operating expenditures 928,000 761,620 166,380 843,026
Non-departmental:
Professional fees 208,326 209,658
Medical insurance © (117,763) 604,412
Unemployment expenses 83,264 56,729
Insurance 764,044 738,331
Contribution to municipalities 52,847 238,841
Other expenditures 133,505 92,325
Total 3,411,825 1,124 223 2,287,602 1,840,296
Total general government 15,008,611 11,678,761 3,419,850 11,632,018
Public Safety:
Sheriff:
Salaries and employee benefits 6,091,825 5,833,022
QOther operating expenditures 931,682 757,740
Capital outlay 390,068 24,736
Total 7,748,359 7,413,575 334,784 6,615,498
Sheriff NARC funds 175,000 55,027 119,973 154,639
Jail:
Salaries and employee benefits 1,200,594 1,245,053
Other operating expenditures 1,817,721 1,335,979
Capital ocutlay 40,367 -
Total 3,678,901 3,058,682 620,219 2,581,032
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Onslow County, North Carolina
GENEFteyAL FUND Page 5 of 16
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008
{With Comparative Amounts For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007)

2008 2007
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual {Negative) Actual
Communications:; .
Salaries and employee benefits 859,186 842,254
Other operating expenditures 166,789 167,719
Capital outlay 5,995 ' 10,044
Total 1,157,449 1,031,969 125,480 1,020,017
Emergency management:
Salaries and employee henefits 409,069 343,469
Cther operating expenditures 126,038 108,601
Capital outlay - 8,370
Total 582,453 535,107 47,346 460,439
Emergency services:
Assistance to volunteer fire departments 1,864,433 1,864,433
Operating expenses 12,653 18,982
Total 1,684,433 1,877,086 7.347 1,883,415
Code Enforcement:
Salaries and employee benefits 604,466 497,081
Other operating expenditures 96,879 87,283
Capital outlay 42,356 66,563
Total 752,800 ' 743,71 9,099 650,907

Emergency medical services:

Assistance to volunteer rescue units 288,000 286,280
Operating expenses 45,345 _ 47,682
Capital outlay - -
Total 367,500 334,345 33,455 333,962
Animal control:
Salaries and employee benefits 407,994 380,319
Other operating expenditures 164,523 130,526
Capital outlay _ 19,852 113,530
Total 645,173 592,369 52,804 624,376
Medical examiner:
Professional services 85,000 77,300 7,700 78,700
State homeland security grant.:
Other operating expenditures - - - 2,350
Community Emergency Response Team:
Other operating expenditures 5,558 4,202 1,356 6,731
Medical Reéerve Corp Grant:
Salaries and employee benefits 18,850 -
Other operating expenditures 11,815 24,560
Capital outlay 9,172 -
Tota! 42930 . 39,837 3,093 24,560
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GENERAL FUND agenoe
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008
{With Comparative Amounts For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007)
2008 2007
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual {Negative) Actual
SHSGP Equipment Grant
Capital outlay - 13,394
Total - - - 13,394
Onslow E.M.S.;
Salaries and employee benefits 4,630,482 4,216,659
Other operating expenditures 980,174 736,874
Capital outlay 225,762 254,552
Total 6,408,337 5,836,418 571,919 5,208,086
Total public safety 23,534,193 21,599,618 1,934,575 19,658,166
Transportation:
Airport:
Salaries and employee benefits 1,015,788 962,908
Other operating expenditures 414,503 362,158
Capital outlay 63,416 17,188
Total 1,535,734 1,493,708 42 026 1,342 256
Economic and Physical Development:
Community development division:
Salaries and employee benefits 50,208 28,917
Other operating expenditures 29,322 3,824
Total 79,846 79,530 316 32,742
Burton Industrial Park
Cther operating expenditures 682,500 287 467 395,033 124,719
Tourism;
Other operating expenditures 981,848 1,123,427
Total 1,087,197 981,848 105,349 1,123,427
Agriculture extension;
Salaries and employee benefits 15,774 8,688
Other operating expenditures 99,589 90,848
NCSU Trust Account 315,957 335,071
Capital cutlay 18,604 9,341
Total 545,899 449,923 95,976 443,847
Soil and water conservation:
Salaries and employee benefits 151,093 137,157
Other operating expenditures 17,075 11,131
Capital outlay 30,082 -
Total 186,840 198,230 (11,390} 148,288
Land use management;
Salaries and employee benefits 625,005 562,924
Other operating expenditures 119,854 87,878
Capital outlay 17,844 30,016
Total 828,034 762,703 66,231 680,819

68

Return to Table of Contents



SCHEDULE 3

Onslow County, North Carolina
GENEI;yAL FUND Page 7 of 18
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008
{With Comparative Amounts For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007)

2008 2007
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual {Negative) Actual
Totat economic and physical
development 3,411,216 2,759,700 651,516 2,553,841
Human Services:
Health:
Administration: .
Salaries and employee benefits 435,083 389,344
Other operating expenditures 107,421 135,476
Total 656,758 542,504 114,254 534 820
Partnership for Children
Salaries and employee benefits . 195 67
Other operating expenditures 8653 - 9,899
NCSU Trust Account 20,589 19,477
Total 34,422 28437 4,985 29,443
AlDS Education:
Salaries and employee benefits 19,383 13,747
Other operating expenditures 3,344 4,158
Total 24,283 22726 1,657 17,906
Healthy Lab:
COther operating expenditures 12,048 11,894 154 -
Communicable diseases:
Salaries and employee benefits 243,950 199,666
Other operating expenditures 16,281 16,463
Total 269,711 260,231 9,480 216,129
Immunization: .
Salaries and employee benefits 222730 230,277
Other operating expenditures 86,326 106,289
Capital outfay - 5,050
Total 346,877 309,055 37.822 341,615
W.1.C. breast feeding:
Salaries and employee benefits 28,717 26,875
Other operating expenditures 3,793 1,112
- Total - 34,782 32,510 2,272 28,087
W.I.C.:
Salaries and employee benefits 53,090 49,956
Other operating expenditures 13,295 12,981
Total 72414 £6,385 6,029 62,938
W.|.C. nutrition:
Salaries and employee benefits 115,636 _ 102,225
Other operating expenditures 28,583 28,675
Total 199,046 144,219 54,827 130,900
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GENEI;YAL FUND Page 8 of 16
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008
{With Comparative Amounts For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007)
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2008 2007
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
W.L.C. client services:
Salaries and employee benefits 663,741 588,260
Other operating expenditures 38,589 103,822
Total 766,147 702,331 63,816 692,082
Environmental health:
Salaries and employee benefits 933,678 761,419
Other operating expenditures 95,034 127,374
Capital outlay 25,934 133,313
Total 1,156,805 1,054,646 102,159 1,022,105
Bioterrorism:
Other operating expenditures 53,904 60,660
Capital outlay 3,495 3,958
Total 61,248 57,489 3,758 64,617
Tuberculosis:
Salaries and employee benefits 59,857 78,592
Other operating expenditures 6,504 5,677
_ Total 74,203 66,361 7,842 84,269
Tuberculosis CDC:
Salaries and employee benefits 20,660 20,760
Other operating expenditures : 9,986 13,757
Total 34,716 30,645 4,071 34,917
Home heaith:
Salaries and employes benefits 731,571 869,112
Other operating expenditures 643,327 678,547
Capital outlay 5,000 -
Total 1,880,272 1,379,898 500,374 1,547,659
Health promotions:
Salaries and employee benefits 435,987 334,703
Other operating expenditures 46,130 45,813
Total 540,151 482,117 58,034 380,517
"Child health:
Salaries and employee benefits 113,620 146,977
Other operating expenditures 14,507 17,273
Total 153,771 128,127 25,644 164,250
Woimen's preventive health:
Salaries and employee benefits 503,097 450,918
Other operating expenditures , 86,460 118,754
Total 636,369 589,557 46,812 566,672
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Onslow County, North Carolina

SCHEDULE 3

GENERAL FUND Page 3 of 16
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008
{With Comparative Amounts For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007)
2008 2007
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual {Negative) Actual
Child service coordination:
Salaries and employee benefits 488,785 414,138
Other operating expenditures 34,740 40,883
Capital outlay - 5,503
Total 579,821 523,526 56,295 460,614
Cancer - breast and cervical:
Salaries and employee benefits - 67,859
Other operating expenditures - 18,519
Total - - - 86,378
Maternal health:
Salaries and employee benefits 785,990 634,002
Other operating expenditures 97,080 103,367
Capital outlay - 7,593
Total 929,836 883,070 46,766 745,051
Hospice:
Salaries and employee benefits 325,189 319,520
Other operating expenditures 147,762 253,866
Capital outlay 5,000 -
Total 786,332 477,952 308,380 573,386
Smart Start childcare health:
Salaries and employee benefits 153,629 187,269
Cther operating expenditures 16,786 39,247
Capital outlay - 13,142
Total 179,191 170,415 8,776 239,658
Smart Start BIB:
Salaries and employee benefits 143,791 152,888
Other operating expenditures 16,270 41,073
Capital outlay - 9,995
Total 171,874 160,061 11,813 203,955
Smart Start Family Fit:
Salaries and employee benefits - 25,466
Other operating expenditures - 22236
Total : - - - 47,702
Smart Start Every Child Counts:
Salaries and employee benefits 114,069 84,162
Other operating expenditures 43,076 46,745
Total 162,393 157,145 5,248 130,907
Pandermnic Influenza:
Other operating expenditures 20,000 17,986 2,014 19,181
Total health 9,783,470 8,300,288 1,483,182 8,425 358
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008
(With Comparative Amounts For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007)

2008 2007
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
Social services:
Administration:
Salaries and employee benefits 1,677,528 1,534,290
Other operating expenditures 775,608 733,337
Capital outlay 31,810 81,681
Total 2,689,548 2,484,948 214,600 2,349,308
Applications:
Salaries and employee benefits 611,428 580,872
Other operating expenditures 23,310 27,503
Total . 724,838 634,738 90,100 608,375
Day care:
Salaries and employee henefits 120,327 115,596
Assistance payments 6,447,054 5,714,073
Other operating expenditures 32,514 31,772
Total 6,829,898 6,599,806 230,002 5,861,441

Smart Start parents as teachers:

Salaries and employee beneiits 137,133 112,295
Other operating expenditures 5,392 10,502
Total 185,910 142,525 43,385 122,797
Smart Start day care:
Salaries and employee benefits 195,901 187,297
Cther operating expenditures 906,486 1,204,074
Total . 1,152,181 1,102,388 49,795 1,391,372
Foster Care/Adoptions: .
Sataries and employee benefits 868,525 775,962
Other operating expenditures 1,121,754 892,735
Total ' 2,359,677 1,990,280 369,397 1,668,696
Public assistance:
Medical assistance payments 4,753,715 5,165,237
Income maintenance’ 705,189 693,777
Total 5,954,701 5,458,904 495,797 5,859,014
Medicaid unit;
Salaries and employee benefits 1,531,392 1,344,806
Other operating expenditures 370,330 340,691
Total 2,225,601 1,901,721 323,880 1,685,496
Food and Nutrition Services: '
Salaries and employee benefits ‘ 905,237 843,033
Other operating expenditures 56,827 ) 70,312
Total . 1,071,819 962,064 109,755 913,345
72
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CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
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{(with Comparative Amounts For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007)
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Work first employment services:
Salaries and employee benefits
Other operating expenditures

Total

Work First family assistance:
Salaries and employee benefits
Other operating expenditures

Total

Work First demonstration grant:
Other operating expenditures

Child support enforcement [V-D:
Other operating expenditures

Child protective services:
Salaries and employee benefits
Other operating expenditures

Total

Adult and family services:
Salaries and employee benefits
Other operating expenditures

Total

Family intervention and treatment:
Salaries and employee henefits
Other operating expenditures

Total

Smart Start adolescent parenting:
Salaries and employee benefits
Other operating expenditures

Total

PEERS program:
Salaries and employee benefits
Other operating expenditures
Total

DSS - Special Children Adoptions:
Other operating expenditures

Adoptions:
Salaries and employee benefits
Other operating expenditures
Total

2008 2007
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
506,270 504,823
224 416 222 496
804,822 730,686 74,136 727,318
377,411 388,277
26,219 23,000
472 232 403,630 68,602 411,276
- - - 39,895
1,565,840 1,403,303 162,537 1,414,150
3,376,336 1,545,843
262,484 106,851
3,875,579 3,638,820 236,759 1,652,695
384,537 347 867
69,339 69,559
483,058 453,876 29,182 417,428
- 1,394,193
- 112,965
- - - 1,507,158
127,591 116,815
6,159 12,486
140,742 133,750 6,992 129,401
179,457 172,975
6,521 4,584
203,236 185,978 17,258 177,559
84,738 31,227 53,511 67,351
357,231 322,741
332,772 302,281
737,827 690,003 47,824 625,022
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SCHEDULE 3
Onslow County, North Carolina
GENERAL FUND Page 12 of 16
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008
{with Comparative Amounts For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007)

2008 2007
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Actual

Crisis intervention:

Operating expenditures 234,991 141,389 93,602 122,861
Total social services 31,807,238 29,090,124 2,717,114 27,752,057
Senior Services:

Administration: _
Salaries and employee benefits 622,000 539,717
Other operating expenditures 84,726 - 85,371
Capital outlay 865 -

Total 725,416 707,590 17,826 . 625,088

Transportation - nutritional:

Other operating expenditures 119,248 -
Capital outlay ) 2,500 107,573
Total 124,108 121,748 2,361 107,573

Transportation - medical:

Other operating expenditures 10,834 -
Capital outlay 2,000 14,293
Total 13,100 12,834 266 14,293

Personal care:

Salaries and employee benefits 884,519 189,661

Other operating expenditures 28,221 9,381

Capital outlay 6,000 2,105
Total 1,050,809 918,740 132,069 201,147

In home chore {{IB):

Salaries and employee benefits 822,768 776,458

Other operating expenditures 54,155 60,066

Capital outlay 6,000 -
Total ' 914,407 882,923 31,484 836,524

CAP .- Chore:

Salaries and employee benefits 301,580 1,200,482
Other operating expenditures 63,165 83,381
Capital outlay - 10,525

Totat 391,056 364,745 26,311 1,294,388

Title NIF:

Other operating expenditures 7,507 5,418 2,089 7,399

Adult day care:

Salaries and employee benefits 109,377 105,352

Other operating expenditures 3,289 3,122

Total 118,258 112,665 5,583 108,474
74
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Onslow i
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GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008
{With Comparative Amounts For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007)

2008 2007
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
Congregate meals:
Salaries and employee bensfits 88,021 102,380
Other operating expenditures 102,035 108,740
Capital outlay 7,000 -
Total 231,483 197,057 34,427 212,120
Senior Center;
Other operating expenditures 21,785 21,583 202 5,813
Home delivered meals (IlIC):
Salaries and employee benefits 62,040 57,885
Other operating expenditures 65,385 59,875
Capital outlay 5,000 -
Total 144,401 132,425 11,976 117,761
Outreach Coordination:
Other operating expenditures 10,000 6,511 3,489 - 3,136
Total Senior Services 3,752,331 3,484,238 268,093 3,533,715
Youth Services:
Youth services:
Salaries and employee benefits 286,349 . 287,702
QOther operating expenditures 196,192 164,381
Total 481,173 484,542 6,631 432,083
Restitution program:
Salaries and employee benefits ' 51,076 47,826
Other operating expenditures 13,138 14,761
Total 66,311 64,214 2,097 62,587
Psychological assessment services:
Operating expenditures - - - 600
School Treatment Program:
Salaries and employee benefits 60,822 60,093
Cther operating expenditures 3,183 8,812
Capital outlay : - 1,052
Total 64,671 64,005 666 69,957
Day Services:
Salaries and employee benefits 43,815 41,418
Qther operating expenditures _ - 13,741 15,910
Capital outlay - - 1,053
Total 87,143 57,556 29,587 58,381
Youth and Family Skills:
Salaries and employee benefits 13,459 25,743
Other operating expenditures 873 1,500
Total 43,627 14,332 29,295 27,243
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Runaway shelter:
Salaries and employee benefits
Other operating expenditures

Total

Juvenile Crime Prevention Council:

QOperating expenditures
Total Youth Services

Veteran's Services:
Salaries and employee benefits
Cther operating expenditures
Total

Other Human Services:
Other contributions

Total human services

Environmental Protection:
Vector control:
Salaries and employee benefits
Other operating expenditures
Total

Mosquito control:
Salaries and employee benefits
Other operating expenditures
Total

Beaver management
Contribution to NC Forestry Service
Total environmental protection

Cultural and Recreational:
Recreation and parks:
Salaries and employee benefits
Other operating expenditures
Capital outlay
Total

Library:
Salaries and employee benefits
Cther operating expenditures
Capital outlay
Total
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2008 2007
Variance
Positive

Budget Actual {Negative) Actual
428,456 385,085
69,181 59,803
517,240 497,637 19,603 444 888
1,885 1,485 400 2,684
1,272,050 1,183,771 88,279 1,008,422
172,789 155,104
17,228 16,508
196,657 190,017 6,640 171,612
1,493 474 1,490,548 2,926 1,419,121
48,305,220 43,738,986 4,566,234 42 400,286
123,653 115,456
63,047 24,761
305,347 188,700 118,647 140,217
155,684 146,672
30,387 28,778
195,299 186,070 9,229 175,450
4,000 4,000 - 4,000
172,439 174,179 (1,740) 137,818
677,085 550,948 126,136 457,485
1,084,322 980,436
342,564 269,847
111,823 35,884
1,668,097 1,538,708 129,388 1,286,166
1,251,368 1,146,529
425,514 335,454
4,101 28,983
1,733,504 1,680,983 52,521 1,510,965
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(With Comparative Amounts For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007)

2008 2007
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual {Negative) Actual
Museurmn:
Salaries and employee benefits 248,081 246,653
Other operating expenditures 62,767 54,754
Capital cutlay - 17,277
Total 355,280 310,848 44 432 318,684
Law library:
Salaries and employee benefits 57,876 54,732
Other operating expenditures 38,102 41,204
Total 98,139 95,979 2,160 95,936
Swansboro library:
Salaries and employee benefits 116,687 111,857
Other operating expenditures 52,419 46,614
Total 177,938 169,106 8,632 158,471
Sneads Ferry library:
Salaries and employee benefits 109,851 102,389
Other operating expenditures 41,906 34,229
Total 157,181 151,857 5,324 136,618
Richlands library:
Salaries and employee benefits 83,378 123,854
Other operating expenditures 44,071 32,843
Total 179,911 127,449 52,462 156,697
Total cultural and recreational 4,370,050 4,074,930 295,120 3,663,538
Education: .
Public schools - current 28,836,250 25,736,250
Public schools - capital outlay 3,000,000 3,000,000
Community colleges - current 2,716,231 2,355,000
Community colleges - capital outlay 477,000 300,000
Save our students program - 75,450
Total education 35,029,481 35,028,481 - 31,466,700 -
Debt service:
Lease principal 293,339 1,639,885
Bond principal 6,008,458 4,750,001
Interast and fees 4,458,774 4,537,852
Total debt service 10,774,069 10,760,571 -13,498 10,927,738
Total expenditures 142,735,659 131,886,704 11,048,955 124,102,027
Revenues under expenditures (9,832,003} 4,796,493 14,628,496 7,364,733
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2008 2007
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers from (to) other funds:
Transfers from other funds 419,032 948,071 259,202
Transfers to other funds {2,845,204) (2,540,486) (4,108,177)
Total (2,426,172) (1,592,415) B33,757 (3,846,975)
Sale of fixed assets 332,500 324,661 (7,839) 49,291
Total other financing sources (2,093,672) (1,267,754) 825,917 {3,797,684)
Revenues and other financing sources
under expenditures and other
financing uses {11,925,675) 3,528,732 15,454 414 3,567,049
Appropriated fund balance 11,925,675 - {11,925,675) -
" Revenues, other financing sources,
and appropriated fund balance under
expenditures and other financing uses - 3528739 B 3,528,739 3,667,049
Fund balance, beginning 48,337,854 44,770,805
Fund balance, end of year 51,866,593 $ 48,337,854
78
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds account for the proceeds of special revenue
sources that are legaily restricted to expenditure for specific purposes.

Individual Fund Description:

Emergency 911 Fund - accounts for the operations of the County's
Emergency 911 system.

Register of Deeds Fund - accounts for the costs of automation and
enhancement of process for the register of deeds.

Community Development Fund - accounts for funds used in the
rehabilitation of low income housing and construction of water and
sewer lines for low income areas.

Grant Project Fund - accounts for funds received for various grant
projects

79
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Onslow County, North Carclina
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
CCMBINING BALANCE SHEETS
June 30, 2008 and 2007

SCHEDULE 4

ASSETS

Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Due from other governments

Totatl assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Due to other funds
Total liabitities

Fund balances:

Reserved for encumbrances
Reserved for register of deeds
Reserved by state statute
Unreserved

Designated for subsequent

years' expenditures
Undesignated
Total equity

Total liabilities and fund balances

2008

2007
Special Revenue Capital Project Special Revenue Capital Project
Funds Funds Totals Funds Funds Totals
1419982 § 6,213,529 $ 7633511 % 1,018,942 5,341,372 6,360,314
118,425 116,627 235,052 66,352 70,388 136,740
2,059 - 2,059 21,758 - 21,758
1540466 § 6,330,156 % 7,870,822 % 1,107,052 5,411,760 6,518,812
30§ 629,520 § 620,550 § 57 416,579 416,636
477,304 5,748,723 8,226,027 9,083 2,399,267 2,408,350
477,334 6,378,243 6,855,577 8,140 2,815 845 2,824,886
68,147 256,239 324,386 11,931 1,746,024 1,758,025
102,565 - 102,565 51,679 - 51,679
120,484 63,615 184,089 79,027 80,388 159,415
9,500 314,000 323,500 55,994 52,600 108,594
762,436 (681,941) 80,495 899,281 716,832 1,616,113
1,063,132 {48,087) 1,015,045 1,097,912 2,595,914 3,693,826
1,540,466 § 6,330,156 $ 7870622 § 1,107,052 5,411,760 6,518,812
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Onslow County, North Carolina
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008
(With Comparative Amounts For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007)

SCHEDULE 5

2008 2007
Special Revenue Capital Project Special Revenue Capital Project
Funds Funds Totals Funds Funds Totals
Revenues:
Restricted intergovernmental $ 177,579 § 4777217 § 4954796 § 239,767 % 279,168 518,935
Unrestricted intergovernmental - 362,985 362,985 - 262,200 262,200
E-211 fees 592,836 - 592,836 592,835 - 592,835
Investment eamings 52,724 135,309 188,033 52,771 109,203 161,974
Other revenues 102,564 25,460 128,024 108,018 10,195 118,213
Total revenues 925,703 5,300,971 6,226,674 993,392 660,766 1,654,158
Expenditures:
Professional services 2,487 - 2,487 3,536 “ 3,536
Operating expenditures 169,341 - 158,341 346,641 - 346,641
Equipment maintenance 100,498 - 100,498 88,231 - 88,231
Capital cutlay 224,992 13,835,552 14,060,544 246,676 4,158,264 4,404,940
Debt service:
Principal - - - 145,000 - 145,000
Interest and fees - - - 55,210 - 55,210
Total expenditures 487,318 13,835,552 14,322 870 885,204 4,158,264 5,043,558
Revenues under expenditures 438,385 (8,534,581) (8,096,197) 108,098 (3,497,498) (3,389,400)
Other financing sources:
Proceeds from issuance: of debt - 3,825,000 3,825,000 - 846,527 846,527
Transfers from other funds - 2,065,580 2,085,580 19,197 4,151,980 4171177
Transfers to other funds (473,165) - (473,165) - (324,202) {324,202)
Total other financing sources {473,165) 5,890,580 5417 415 19,197 4,674,305 4,693,502
Revenues and other financing sources
over {under) expenditures {34,780) (2,644,001} (2,678,781) 127,295 1,176,807 1,304,102
FUND BALANCES, beginning of year 1,087,912 2,595,914 3,693,826 970,617 1,419,107 2,389,724
FUND BALANCES, end of year 3 1,063,132 § (48,087) § 1015045 & 1,097,912 % 2,595,914 3,683,826
B1
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Onslow County, North Carolina
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
June 30, 2008

SCHEDULE 6

Emergency Register of Community
911 Deeds Development Totals
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 1,239,770 3% 150476 % 20,736 $ 1,419,982
Accounts receivable 107,447 - 10,978 118,425
Due from other governments - 2,059 - 2,059
Total assets $ 1347217 $ 161,635 § 31,714  § 1,540468
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities: .
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 30 % - 5 - $ 30
Due to other funds _ 477,304 - - 477,304
Total liabilities 477,334 - - 477,334
Fund balances: )
Reserved for encumbrances - 47 411 20,736 68,147
Reserved for register of deeds ) - 102,565 - 102,565
Reserved by state statute 107,447 2,059 10,978 120,484
Unreserved
Designated for subsequent
years' expenditures _ - 9,500 _— 9,500
Undesignated 762,436 - - 762,436
Total equity 869,883 161,535 31,714 1,063,132
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 1347217 § 161,535 § 31,714 % 1,540,468
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SCHEDULE 7
Onslow County, North Carolina
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE '
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Emergency Register of Community
. 911 Deeds Development  Grant Project Totals
Revenues:
E-911 fees $ 592836 § - $ - $ - $ 592,836
Grant revenue - - 66,859 110,720 177,579
Investment earnings 46,869 5,855 - - 52,724
Other revenues - 102,564 - - 102,564
Tolal revenues 639,705 108,419 66,859 110,720 925,703
Expenditures -
Professional services 2,487 - - - 2,487
Operating expenditures 128,847 30,494 - - 159,341
Equipment maintenance 100,498 - - - 100,498
Capital outlay _ 52,127 : - 62,145 110,720 224,992
Debt service:
Principal - - - - -
Interest and fees - - - - -
Total expenditures . 283,959 30,494 62,145 110,720 487,318
Revenues over (under} expenditures 355,746 77,925 4,714 - 438,385
Other financing sources: )
Transfers from (to} other funds (473,165) - - - (473,165)
Total other financing sources (473,165) - - - - {(473,165)
Revenues and other financing sources
over (under) expenditures (117.419) 77,925 4,714 - - (34,780)
FUND BALANCES, beginning of year 987,302 83,610 27,000 - 4,097,912
FUND BALANCES, end of year $ 869883 3§ 161,535 §$ 31,714  § - $ 1,083,132,
83
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SCHEDULE 8
Onslow County, North Carolina
EMERGENCY-911 FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

(With Comparative Amounts For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007)

2008 2007
Variance Positive
Budget Actual {Negative) Actual
Revenues:
Restricted intergovernmental:
911 system subscriber fees 141628 § 206623 § 64,995 388,366
Wireless E-911 fees 180,000 386,213 206,213 204,469
Investment earnings
Wireline - 14,932 14,932 16,538
Wireless 8,000 31,937 23,937 30,158
Total revenues 329,628 639,705 310,077 639,530
Expenditures:
Public Safety
E-311 fees
Professional services 2,357 2,115 242 3,497
Operating expenditures 32,564 32,564 (0) 74,834
Equipment maintenance 38,845 39,843 2 44,116
Capital outlay 61,872 - 61,872 734
Wireless E-911 fees
Professional services 3,643 372 3,271 39
Operating expenditures 158,536 96,283 62,253 91,575
Equipment maintenance 60,655 60,655 {0} 44,115
Capital outlay 7,650 52,127 (44.477) (734)
Debt service:
Principal - - - 145,000
Interest and fees - - - 55,210
Total expenditures 367,122 283,959 83,163 458,385
Revenues over (under) expenditures (37,494) 355,746 {393,240) 181,144
Other financing uses:

Transfers fo other funds (420,690) (473,165) (52,475) 19,197
Appropriated fund balance 458,184 - {(458,184) -
Revenues, other financing sources

and appropriated fund balance

aver (under) expenditures - (117,419) % (117,419) 200,341

Fund balance, beginning of year
E-911 fund 326,133 225,424
Wireless 911 funds 661,169 561,536
987,302 786,960

Fund balance, end of year
E-911 fund 0 326,133
Wireless 911 funds 869,883 661,169
$ 869,883 967,302
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Onstow County, North Carolina
REGISTER OF DEEDS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008
(With Comparative Amounts For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007)

SCHEDULE ¢

Revenues:
Fermits and fees
Investment earnings
Total revenues

Expenditures:
Automation expenditures
Capital outlay -
Total expenditures
Revenues over (under) expenditures

Appropriated fund balance

Revenues and appropriated fund balance
over (under) expenditures

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

2008 2007
Variance Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
$ 96000 % 102,564 $ 6,564 $ 108,018
2,000 5,855 3,855 6,076
98,000 108,420 10,420 114,094
116,500 30,494 86,006 180,233
- - - 4,425
116,500 30,494 86,006 184,658
{18,500) 77,925 96,425 (70,564}
18,500 - {18,500) -
$ - 77925 § 77,925 (70,564)
83,610 154,173
3 161,535 3 83,610
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SCHEDULE 10

Onslow County, North Carolina
) COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
From inception and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Actual
Project Variance Positive
Authorization Prior Years -Current Year Total to Date (Negative)
Revenues:
Restricted intergovernmental
Federal grants CDBG $ 1251300 % 386,052 § 66859 % 452911 $ (798,389)
Expenditures
Capital Projects )
2005 SSH 05-C-1369 430,000 348,583 10,377 358,960 71,040
2003 IDA 03-C-1141 40,000 25,216 2,865 28,081 11,919
2006 CB 06-C-1608 75,000 - 34,655 34,655 40,345
2007 CR 07-C-1693 775,000 - 9,200 9,200 765,800
Department of Labor IDA project 36,300 15,253 5,048 20,301 15,999
Total expenditures 1,356,300 389,052 62,145 451,197 905,103
Revenues over {(under) expenditures (105,000} (3,000) 4,714 1,714 106,714
Other financing sources:
Transfers from other funds 105,000 30,000 - 30,000 {(75,000)
Revenue and other financing
sources over {(under) expenditures
and financing uses $ - $ 27,000 4714 % 31,714  § 31,714
FUND BALANCES, beginning of year 27,000
FUND BALANCES, end of year $ 31,714
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Onslow County, North Carolina
GRANT PROJECT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -BUDGET AND ACTUAL
Frem Inception and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

SCHEDULE 11

Project
Authorization

Actual

Pricr Years

Current Year

Variance Positive

Total to Date (Negative)

Revenues:
Restricted intergovernmental
Federal grants
SHSGP Grant $ 250,000

Expenditures ‘
Stream/creek cleanup 250,000

$

110,720

110,720

$

110,720 & {139,280)

110,720 139,280

- Revenues under expenditures $ -

FUND BALANCES, beginning of year

FUND BALANCES, end of year

a7
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Capital Project Funds

Capital Project Funds account for funds to be used for the acquisition or
construction of major capital facilities, other than those financed by
proprietary funds.

Individual Fund Descriptions:

Capltal Improvements Fund - accounts for funds used in the
construction and rencvatien of various facilities throughout the County.

Airport Fund - accounts for funds used to renovate the existing County
airport.

School Construction Fund - accounts for funds used in the construction
of various schools throughout the County.

Capital Project Fund - accounts for funds used for industrial and
economic development,
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NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

Onslow County, North Carolina

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
June 30, 2008

SCHEDULE 12

ASSETS

Cash and investments

Accounts receivable

Due from other funds
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and
accrued liabilities
Due to other funds
Total liabilities

Fund balances:

Reserved by state statute
Reserved for encumbrances
Unreserved

Designated for subsequent

years' expenditures
Undesignated
Total equity

Total liabilities and fund balance

Capital
Improvements Airport Capital Project Totals

$ 385824 % 1,176,970 § 4650,735 § 6,213,529
13,390 50,225 53,012 116,627
$ 399214 % 1,227,195 § 4,703,747 § 6,330,156
$ 3005 § 17,054 % 609,461 % 629,520
- - 5,748,723 - 5,748,723
3,005 17,054 6,358,184 6,378,243
13,380 50,225 - 63,615
155 256,084 - 256,239
314,000 - - 314,000

68,664 903,832 {1,654 437) (681,941)

396,209 1,210,141 (1,654,437) (48,087)
$ 399214 § 1,227,195 § 4,703,747 § 6,330,156
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SCHEDULE 13
Onslow County, North Carolina
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Capital
improvements Airport Capital Project Totals
Revenues
Restricted intergovernmental $ 1483 § 4263577 § 498,804 % 4, 777217
Unrestricted intergovernmental - 362,985 - 362,985
Investment eamings 6,626 39,631 89,052 135,308
Insurance and miscellaneous 9,860 15,600 - 25460
Total revenues 31,322 4,681,793 587,856 5,300,971
Expenditures
Capital projects
Roofing 9,254 - - 9,254
General Improvements 344,016 - 9,050,691 9,394,706
Airport Improvements - 4,431,592 . - 4,431,592
Total expenditures 353,269 4,431,582 9,050,691 13,835,552
Revenues over (under) expenditures (321,947) 250,201 (8,462,835} (8,534 ,581)
Other financing sources: ‘
Proceeds from issuance of debt - “ 3,825,000 3,825,000
Transfers to other funds ' - - - -
Transfers from other funds 541,000 177,500 1,347,080 2,065,580
541,000 . 177,500 5,172,080 5,890,580
Revenues and other financing sources
over (under) expenditures 219,053 427,701 (3,290,755) (2,644,001)
FUND BALANCES, beginning-of year 177,156 782,440 1,636,318 2,595,914
FUND BALANCES, end of year $ 396,209 § 1,210,141 % (1,654,437) $ (48,087)
g0 .
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

Onslow County, North Carolina
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS FUND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008
{With Carnparative Amounts For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007)

SCHEDULE 14

Revenues:
Grant revenues
Investment eamings
Other revenues
Total revenues

Expenditures:
Capital projects
Roafing
General Improvermnents
Total expenditures

Revenues over {under) expenditures
Other financing sources {uses):
Transfer to other funds
Transfer from other funds

Total other financing sources (uses)

Revenues and other financing sources over
{under) expenditures and other financing uses

Appropriated fund balance
Revenues, other financing sources, and

appropriated fund balance over (under}
expenditures and other financing uses

FUND BALANCES, beginning of year

FUND BALANCES, end of year

2008 2007
Variance Positive
Budget Actual {Negative) Actual
$ 24603 % 24589 §$ {(14) % -
5,150 6,626 1,476 6,007
- 107 107 185
29,753 31,322 1,569 6,202
50,000 9.254 40,746 28,241
571,353 344,015 227,338 312,534
621,353 353,269 268,084 340,775
(591,600) (321,947} 269,653 (334,573}
(2,000) - 2,000 {65,000)
541,000 541,000 - 355,680
539,000 541,000 2,000 290,680
{52,600) 219,053 271,653 {43,893)
52,600 - {52,600) -
$ - 219,063 § 219,053 (43,893)
177,156 221,048
3 396,209 $ 177,156
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SCHEDULE 15
Onslow County, North Carolina
AIRPORT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES [N FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
From Inception and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Actual
Project Variance Positive
Authorization Prior Years Current Year Total to Date {Negative)
Revenues:
Restricted intergovernmental
State Subsidy - SCASD $ 100,000 $ - $ - $ - $ (100,000)
State AP 25 12,498 ' 12,498 - 12,498 -
State AIP 26 4,578 3,867 711 4578 -
State AIP 27 113,458 - 108,838 108,838 (4,621)
State AIP 28 4,486 - - - (4,486)
Total State Grants 235,021 16,365 109,549 125,914 (108,107)
Federal AIP 25 474,924 474,924 - 474,924 -
Federat AIP 26 174,542 171,217 3,325 174,542 -
Federal AIP 27 4,311,431 - 4,135,837 4,135,837 (175,584)
Federal AiP 28 170,468 - - - (170,468)
SCASD ‘ 500,000 42 157 14,866 57,023 (442,977)
Total Federal Grants 5,631,365 688,208 4,154,028 4,842,326 (789,039)
Total restricted
intergovernmental 5,866,386 704,663 4,263,577 4,968,240 (898,146}
Unrestricted intergovernmental
Sales tax refunds - 5,093 - 5,093 5,093
Sale of surplus property 15,600 - 15,600 15,600 -
PFC revenues 633,827 889,352 362,985 1,252,337 618,510
Investment earnings - 222,503 39,631 262,134 262,134
Total revenues 6,515,813 1,821,611 4,681,793 6,503,404 (12,409}
Expenditures:
Capital projects
AlP 25 763,695 763,606 - 763,696 (1)
AlP 26 183,729 - 180,230 3,500 183,730 (1)
AlP 27 4,538,349 74,007 4,279,506 4,353,513 184,836
AIP 28 195,040 - 19,365 19,365 175,675
SCASD 700,000 49,065 - 49,065 650,935
Parking Lot Expansion . 355,000 - 95,166 95,166 259,834
PFS application 2008 35,000 - 7,055 7,055 27,945
Master Plan Project 200,000 72,173 27,000 99,173 100,827
Total expenditures 6,970,813 1,138,171 . 4,431,592 5,570,763 1,400,050
Revenues over {under) expenditures {455,000} 682,440 250,201 932,641 1,387,641
Other financing sources:
Transfers from other funds 455,000 100,000 177,500 277,600 (177,500)
Total other financing sources 455,000 100,000 177,500 277,500 {177,500)
Revenues and other financing sources )
over (under) expenditures $ - $ 782,440 427701 $ 1210141 & 1,210,141
FUND BALANCES, beginning of year 782,440
FUND BALANCES, end of year $ 1,210,141
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Onslow County, North Carolina

CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
From Inception and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

SCHEDULE 16

Revenues:
Restricted intergovernmental
Federal grants
State grants
Total resfricted
intergovernmental
Unrestricted intergovernmentat
Other income
Investment earnings
Total revenues

Expenditures
Capital projects
Shell Rock Landing
Sneads Ferry Library
USMC Museum
Discovery Gardens
Richlands Steed Park
White Oak Paddle
Oakhurst Nature Park
Vietnam Veteran Memorial
Jail/detention facility
Living history farm
Health Dept. elevator ¢
EMS Station 6
EMS Station 3
Energy Performance Contract
New software
Soccer complexes
Radio tower project’
Deppe Park project
Government administration
Total expenditures

Revenues over {under) expenditures

Other financing sources {uses):
Proceeds from issuance of debt
Transfers from other funds

Total other financing sources (uses)

Revenues and other financing
sources over {under) expenditures

FUND BALANCES, beginning of year

FUND BALANCES, end of year

Actual
Project Variance Positive
Authorization Prior Years Cumrent Year Total to Date (Negative)
$ - - $ - $ - $ -
302,500 31,196 498,804 530,000 227,500
302,500 31,196 498,804 530,000 227,500
10,000 10,000 - 10,000 -
31,434 92,772 89,052 181,824 150,380
343,934 133,968 587,856 721,824 377,890
420,000 5,000 396,779 401,779 18,221
76,130 - 1,571 1,571 74,559
300,000 75,677 - 75,8677 . 224,323
60,000 - - - 60,000
260,000 - - - 260,000
35,000 - - - 35,000
70,000 - - - 70,000
400,000 - - - 400,000
55,000,000 3,394,589 2,289,336 5,683,925 49,316,075
18,000 18,000 - 18,000 -
250,000 47,000 182,511 239,511 10,489
94,600 77.817 3,317 81,134 13,466
50,000 - 41,543 41,543 8,457
860,961 - 860,961 860,961 -
1,669,161 378,732 628,732 1,007,464 661,697
203,712 95,353 99,881 195,234 8,478
1,573,704 - 1,375,536 1,375,536 198,168
671,100 64,015 596,425 660,440 10,660
23,000,000 308,507 2,564,099 - 2,872,606 20,127,394
85,012,368 4,464,690 9,050,691 13,515,381 71,496,987
(84,668,434) (4,330,722) (8,462,835) (12,793,557) 71,874,877
78,846,527 846,527 3,825,000 4,671,527 (74,175,000)
5,821,907 5,120,513 1,347,080 6,467,593 645,686
84,668,434 5,967,040 5,172,080 11,139,120 (73,529,314}
$ - . 1,636,318 (3,290,755) % {1,654,437) % {1,654,437)
1,636,318
$ (1,654,437)
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Onslow County, North Carclina
~ SCHOOL CONSTRUCTION FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
From Inception and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

SCHEDULE 17

Revenues:

Unrestricted intergovernmental
Investment eamings
Miscellaneous revenues

Total revenues

Expenditures
Capital projects
Firetower Road School - COPs
2006 School Bond project
Total expenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures
Other financing sources (uses):
Proceeds from issuance of debt
Total other financing sources
Revenues and other financing sources

over (under) expenditures
and other financing uses

FUND BALANCES, beginning of year

FUND BALANCES, end of year

Actual
Project Variance Positive
Authorization Prior Years Current Year Total to Date (Negative)
$ 2615954 § 2,733,687 §% 1,174,845 § 3008532 § 1,292,578
- 600 700 1,300 1,300
2,615,954 2,734,287 1,175,545 3,909,832 1,293,878
15,950,000 8,932,280 5,006,733 13,939,013 2,010,987
93,104,308 15,642,104 49,192,478 64,834,582 28,269,726
109,054,308 24,574,384 54,199,211 78,773,595 30,280,713
{106,438,354) (21,840,097) (53,023,666) (74,863,763) 31,574,591
106,438,354 66,438,716 41,322,280 107,760,976 1,322,622
106,438,354 66,438,716 41,322,260 107,760,976 1,322,622
$ - $ 44,508,619 {11,701,406) $ 32,897,213 § 32,897,213
44,588,619
$ 32,897,213
94
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Proprietary Funds account for operations that are financed and
operated in a manner similar o private business enterprises - where
the intent of the govemning body is that the costs of providing goods and
services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or
recovered primarily through user charges; or where the govemning body
has decided that the periodic determination of net income is appropriate
for accountability purposes. The County utilizes the following

proprietary funds

Solid Waste Fund - accounts for operations at the County landfill.
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SCHEDULE 18

Cnslow County, North Carolina
SOLID WASTE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL {(Non-GAAP)
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008
{With Comparative Amounts For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007)

Page 1 of 2
2008 2007
Variance Positive
Budget Actual {Negative) Actual
REVENUES:
Charges for services
Tipping fees $ 5,860,000 § 5822207 % (37.793) % 5,382,356
Site fees 140,000 150,793 10,793 145 685
Other operating revenues 616,600 557,492 {59,108) 339,385
Total operating revenues - 6,616,600 6,530,493 (86,107) 5,867,426
Nonoperating revenues
Restricted intergovernmentat 44,699 28,768 (15,931) 258,617
Investment eamings 500,000 868,001 368,001 879,928
Total nonoperating revenues 544 699 896,768 352,069 1,138,545
Total revenues 7,161,299 7,427 262 265,963 7,005,970
EXPENDITURES
Solid Waste Administration
Salaries and benefits 199,665 185,918
Contracted services 3,332 465
Other expenditures 28,451 26,452
Total 243,433 231,449 11,984 212,835
Landfill operations
Salaries and benefits 510,774 440,889
Contracted services 1,847 _ 2,337
Other expenditures 756,982 781,546
Tofal 3,307,311 1,269,603 2,037,708 1,224,772
Recycling
Salaries and benefits 46,625 42,584
Contracted services 184,873 174,680
Other expenditures 56,487 7,486
Total 289,510 - 287,984 1,526 224750
Refuse sites
Salaries and benefits . 253,767 234,588
Contracted services 176,941 . 144,441
Other expenditures 48,643 49,639
Total 507,964 479,351 28,613 428,668
Keep Onslow Beautiful
Salaries and benefits 88,781 62,788
Other expenditures 65,092 34,665
Total 165,547 153,873 11,674 97,452
White goods
Salaries and benefits 7,543 34,065
Other expenditures 29,849 21,121
Total 43,888 37,493 8,395 55,185
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Onslow County, Nerth Carolina
SOLID WASTE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Non-GAAP)
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

SCHEDULE 18

(With Comparative Amounts For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007)

Page 2 of 2
2008 2007
Variance Positive
Budget Actual {Negative) Actual
Capital outlays 561,350 333,955 227,385 . 507,364
Debt service
Bond principal 3,168,831 2,743,126 425,705 1,387,298
Interest and fees 505,339 370,740 134,595 330,654
Total 3,674,170 3,113,866 560,304 1,717,952
Total expenditures 8,793,173 5,907,575 2,885,598 4,468,977
Revenues over (under) expenditures {1,631,874) 1,519,686 3,151,560 : 2,536,991
Proceeds from issuance of debt - 1,312,838 1,312,838 - -
Appropriated fund balance 319,036 - (319,036) -
Revenues, other financing sources, and
appropriated fund balance over (under)
expenditures and cother financing uses - $ 2832524 § 2832524 § 2,536,991
Reconciliation from budgetary basis (modified
accrual) to full accrual basis:
Excess of revenues, other financing sources,
and appropriated fund balance over (under) $ 2,832,524 $ . 2,536,991
expenditures and other financing uses
Reconciling items:
Debt principal 2,743,126 1,387,298
Capital cutlay 333,855 507,364
Depreciation (1,666,475) (1,663,431)
Basis in retired assets (44,750) -
Proceeds from issuance of debt (1,312,838) -
Investment earnings from project 50,562 -
Increase in acerued landfill closure
and postclosure care costs (200,832) (182,754)
Total reconciling items {87,252) 48,477
MNet income $ 2,735,273 3 2,585,469
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SCHEDULE 19
Onslow County, North Carolina
LANDFILL CONSTRUCTION FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL {Non-GAAP)
From Inception and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Actual
Variance
Project Positive
Authorization Prior Years Current Year Total to Date (Negative)
Revenues:
Restricted intergovernmental
State grants B - $ - 3 - 3 - 3 -
Unrestricted intergovernmental
Investment eamings - - 50,562 50,562 50,562
Total revenues ' - - 50,562 50,562 50,562
Expenditures
Capital projects
Landfill Construction 6,710,000 210,320 4,542,479 4,752,799 1,957,201
Revenues over (under) expenditures (6,710,000} (210,320) (4,491,917} (4,702,237) 2,007,763
Other financing sources (uses):
Proceeds from isstrance of debt 6,710,000 - 6,710,000 6,710,000 -
Revenues and other financing sources
over (under) expendifures
and other financing uses $ - $ (210,320) $ 2218083 § 2007763 § 2,007,763
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS

F'iduciary funds consist of twa types: trust funds and agency funds.

Trust Funds are used to account for assets held by the County in a
trustee capacity. Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by
the County as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other
govermnments, and/or other funds. The County utilizes the following

agency funds:
Agency Funds

Social Services Fund - accounts for monéys deposited with the Social
Services Department for the benefit of certain individuals in the County.

Agriculture Fund - accounts for moneys deposited with the Agriculture
Department for the benefit of certain groups in the County.

Sheriff's Department Fund - accounts for moneys collected by the
Sheriff’'s Department on judgments and executions.

Fines and Forfeitures Fund - accounts for fines and forfeitures collacted
by the County that are required to be remitted to the Onslow.County

Board of Education.

Municipal Tax Fund - accounts for the proceeds of property taxes that
are collected by the County on behalf of the municipalities within the

County.

ONWASA Fund - accounts for funds collected on behalf of the Onslow
Water and Sewer Authority.

DMV Interest Fund — accounts for the 3% fee coliected on behalf of the
NC Department of Moter Vehicles.
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SCHEDULE 20

Onslow County, North Carclina
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN ASSETS
AND LIABILITIES - AGENCY FUNDS
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Balance Balance
July 1, : June 30,
2007 Additions Deductions 2008
Social Services:
Assets
Cash and investments $ 144,772 § 820,388 % 81731 § 147,249
Liahilites
Miscellaneous liabilities $ 144772  § 820,388 § 817911 § 147,249
Agriculture:
Assets
Cash and investments $ 27548 $ 101,282 § 97,070 $ 31,761
Liabilites
Miscellaneous liabilities $ 27549 § 101,282 % 97,070 3 31,761
Sheriff:
Assets
Cash and investments $ 43504 § 484321 % 461,758 § 66,067
Liabilites ]
Miscellansous liabilities $. 43504 % 484,321 $ 461758 % 66,067
Fines and Forfeitures:
Assets
Cash and invesiments 3 330 $ 10141926 $ 1014286 9 170
Liabilites
Intergovernmental payables 5 330 § 1014126 $ 1014286 $ 170
Municipal Tax:
Assels
Cash and investments $ 18804 $ 21888558 $§ 21860495 $ 46,867
Liabilites
Intergovernmental payables 3 18804 § 21888558 $ 21860495 % 46,867
Library Trust:
Assets .
Cash and investments . $ 20455 § 1205 § 880 % 20,870
Liabilites
Miscellaneous liabilities $ 20455 % 1295 § 880 $ 20,870
DMV Interest
Assets
Cash and investments $ 3892 § 66,678 3§ 67001 § 3,669
Liabilites
Intergovemmental payables ’ $ 3802 % 66,678 $ 67,001 % 3,569
Total - All Agency Funds:
Assets .
Cash and investments $ 250,306 .$ 24376648 $ 24319401 § 316,553
Liabilites
Miscellaneous liabilities $ -236,610 $ 2421412 § 2391905 % 266,117
Intergovernmental payables 22 696 21,855,236 21,927 496 50,436
Total 3 250306 $ 24376648 § 24,319,401 3 316,553
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GOVERNMENTAL CAPITAL ASSETS
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SCHEDULE 21

_ Onslow County, North Carolina
COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL ASSETS
BY SOURCE
June 30, 2008 and 2007

2608 2007
GOVERNMENTAL FIXED ASSETS

Land 5 10,940,518 % 10,604,603
Buildings 30,328,867 30,418,830
Improvements 29,543,222 28,482,664
Equipment 11,871,736 10,572,094
Automotive Equipment 8,210,535 8,705,794
Heavy Equipment 353,081 358,501
Construction in process 16,420,040 6,577,106

Total Governmental Fixed Assets . $ 108,668,000 § 95,719,592

INVESTMENT IN FIXED ASSETS BY SOURCE:

General Fund $ 25,263,575 § 26,528,336

Capital Project Funds 82,877,664 68,718,761
Donations 526,761 472,455
Total Investment in vaemmental Fixed Assets % 108,668,000 $ 95,719,582
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Onslow County, North Carolina
SCHEDULE OF GOVERNMENTAL CAPITAL ASSETS
BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Schedule 22, page 1

. Heavy Construction
Land Improvements Buildings Equipment Vehicles Equipment In Process Total
Function & Activity

General Govemment:
Governing Body $ - 5 5138 § - $ 45570 § - 5 - $ - 3 50,708
Administration - - - 3,592 - - - 3,582
Elections - - - 409,048 - - - 409,048
Finance - - - 66,278 - - - 66,278
Taxes - 11,500 - 1,721,565 13,879 - . - 1,746,944
Revaluation - - - - 93,612 109,412 - - - : 203,024
Human Resources : - - - 3,487 - - - 3,487
Register of Deeds - - - 33,996 - - - 33,996
Public Buildings 2,984,213 5,832,181 12,675,302 148,523 217,725 - - 21,757,944
Court Facilities - 121,664 - 9,322 - - - 130,986
Central Garage - 73,808 50,187 45,095 103,198 - - 272,288
ITS - - - 2,263,203 - . - - 2,263,203
GIS : - : - - 106,797 - - - 106,797
District Attorney - 74,910 - - - - - 74,910
Purchasing - - - 10,506 19,317 21,663 - 51,486
Non-departmental 4,709,811 1,066,888 - 105,224 - - - 5,881,923
Construction in progress - - - - - - 4,604,127 4,694,127

Total General Government 7,694,024 7,186,089 12,625,489 5,065,818 463,531 21,663 4,694,127 37,750,741

Public Safety:

Sheriff - 108,997 8,640 665,512 2,945,767 - - 3,730,916
Communications - 77,552 - 2,777,394 - - “ ' 2,854,946
Jail 42,000 152,364 4,530,123 11,455 40,367 - - 4,776,309
Emergency Mgt. - 32,650 2,186,962 303,131 146,045 - - 2,668,788
Bio preparedness - - - 42 675 - - - 42,675
Med reserve - - - 13,755 - - - 13,755
State Homeland Security - - - 13,435 - - - 13,435
SHSGP - - - 71,785 - - - 71,785
SHSGP emergency management - - - 16,325 - - - 16,325
Emergency Services - - - 15,401 - - - 15,401
Inspections - - - 141,484 187,449 - - 328,933
Emergency Med. Ser. - - 59,414 32,183 789,827 - - 881,404
Onslow EMS : - 68,795 68,017 466,226 . 1,908,957 - - 2,511,985
Animal Control - 6,770 669,021 113,666 129,253 - - 918,710
Construction in progress - - - - - - 7,101,004 7,101,004
Total Public Safaty 42,000 448,128 7,522,177 4,684,407 8,148,665 - 7,101,004 25,946,381
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Onslow County, North Caralina
SCHEDULE OF GOVERNMENTAL CAPITAL ASSETS
BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Schedule 22, page 2
Heavy Construction
Land Improverments Bulldings Equipment Vehicles Equipment in Process Total
Transportation;
Airport 275,415 14,238,016 4,058,248 244,687 1,220,405 166,479 - 20,203,250
Construction in progress - - - - - - 4,623,338 4,623,338
Total Transportation 275,415 14,238,016 4,058,248 244 687 1,220,405 166,479 4,623,338 24,826,588
Economic & Physical Dev.
Agriculture 129,886 1,011,800 - 38,510 78,951 - - 1,259,147
Planning - - - 49,722 36,843 - - 86,565
Comrnunity Development - - - - 20,177 - - 20,177
Soil Conservation - - - 20,950 63,872 - - 84,822
Seil Cons. Safe Comm. - - - 2,040 - - - 2,04¢
Building Inspections - - - 10,211 80,857 - - 101,068
Construction in progress - - - - - - -
Total Economic and
Physical Development 129,886 1,011,800 - 121,433 290,700 - - 1,553,819
Human Services:
Health - 219,403 - 570,046 - - - 789,449
Environmental Health - oo - 108,071 263,180 - - 371,251
Mental Heaith 211,272 62,843 2,730,759 - 144,152 - - 3,149,026
Social Services - 151,300 1,025,576 426,321 104,990 - - 1,708,187
Council on Aging 261,397 1,623,814 - 63,247 36,971 - - 1,985,429
Veterans Services - - - 2,995 - - - 2,995
Youth Services - 49708 145,621 33,689 15,602 - - 244,630
Ag Partnership for Children - - - 6,736 - - - 6,736
Total Human Services 472,669 2,107,068 3,901,966 1,211,105 564,895 - - 8,257,703
Culturat & Recreational:
Libraries 43,761 1,285,654 686,569 261,538 60,327 - - 2,337,850
Parks & Recreation 2,282,765 3,236,548 160,234 230,852 29?,493 13,000 - 6,222,892
Museum - 27,919 1,374,183 23,921 16,589 - - 1,442 612
Construction in progress - - - - - - 1,571 1,571
Total Cultural & Recreational 2,326,526 4,552,121 2,220,986 516,312 374,409 13,000 1,671 10,004,625
Environmental Protection:
Vector Control - - - 10,533 117,315 151,939 - 279,787
Masquito Control - - - 19,025 29,031 - - 48,056
Total Environmental Protection - - - 29,558 146,346 151,939 - 327,843
Total Governmental Capital Assets 3 10,840,520 29,543,2_2_2_ $ 30,328,866 $ 11,873,320 9,208,951 353,081 16,420,040 108,668,000
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Onslow County, North Carolina
SCHEDULE OF GOVERNMENTAL CAPITAL ASSETS
BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Schedule 23, page 1

Governmental Capital Governmentat Capital

Assets Reclassifications Assets
Function and Activity June 30, 2007 Additions Retirements and Adjustments June 3¢, 2008
Governing Bady 5 50,708 § - 5 - $ - $ 50,708
Administration ' 3,592 - - - 3,592
Elections - 402,536 6,510 - - 409,048
Finance 75,080 1,086 (9,888) - 66,278
Taxes 1,739,147 7,798 - - 1,746,945
Revaluation 190,096 46,029 (33,102) - 203,023
Register of Deeds 33,996 - - - 33,996
Public Buildings 21,094,211 978,056 (314,322) - 21,757,945
Court Facilities 130,987 - - - 130,887
Central Garage 237,704 ' 37,675 {3,000) - 272,289
ITS 1,718,509 859,768 (8,277) - 2,370,000
District Attorney's Qffice 74,910 - - - 74,910
Personnel 3,486 - - - 3,486
Purchasing ; 46,475 5,011 - - 51,486
Non-Departmental/Surplus 6,558,043 9,711 {685,831) - ' 5,881,923
Construction in progress 1,463,858 4,091,230 (860,961) - 4,694,127
Total General Government 33,823,338 5,842 874 (1,915,471} - 37,750,741
Public Safety; .
Sheriff 3,563,441 391,515 (224,041) - 3,730,915
Communications 2,796,824 58,122 - - 2,854,946
Jail 4,735,942 406 367 - - 4,776,309
Emergency Management 2,817,591 9,172 - - 2,826,763
Inspection/code enf. 298,720 42,356 (12,143) - 328,933
Emergency Medical Ser. 954,270 - (72,866) - 881,404
Emergency Services 2,430,760 405,916 {309,280) - 2,527,396
Animal Control 915,273 19,852 (16,415) - 918,710
Construction in progress 3,864,401 3,317,738 (81,134) - ‘ 7,101,005
Total Public Safety 22,377,222 4,285,038 (715,879) - 25,946,381
Transportation :
Airport 19,388,703 1,029,193 (214,646) - 20,203,250
Construction in progress 1,139,924 4,428,092 {944,678) - 4,623,338
Total Tranportation 20,528,627 5,457,285 (1,159,324) - 24,826,588
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Onslow County, North Carolina
SCHEDULE OF GOVERNMENTAL CAPITAL ASSETS
BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Schedule 23, page 2

Governmental Capital
Assets

Governmental Capital

Reclassifications Assels
Function and Activity June 30, 2007 Additions Retirements and Adjusiments June 30, 2008
Economic & Physical Dev,
Agricuiture Extension 1,242 687 16,460 - - 1,258,147
Planning 168,428 17,844 (13,361) 16,763 180,674
Community Development - 20,177 - - 20,177
Soil and Water Conservation 71,523 30,062 - {16,763) 84,822
Construction in progress - - - ~ -
Total Econ. & Phy. Develop. 1,482,638 84,543 (13,361} - 1,553,820
Human Services:
Health 1,045,606 178,652 (63,647) - 1,160,701
Mental Health 3,221,434 - (72,406) - 3,149,028
Social Services 1,705,861 25,398 (23,073) - 1,708,186
Senior Services 1,856,063 29,365 - - 1,985,428
Veteran Services 2,995 - - - 2,895
Youth Services 244,630 - - - 244,630
Ag Partnership for Children 6,735 - - - 6,735
Construction in progress 21,800 217,711 {239,511) - -
Total Human Services 8,205,214 451,126 (398,637) - 8,257,703
Cultural & Recreational:
Library - Main Branch 2,072,920 44,576 (51,259) - 2,066,237
Library - Snead Ferry 92,702 4,042 - - 96,744
Library - Swansboro 172,069 - - E 172,069
Library - Richlands 2,800 - - - 2,800
Parks & Recreation 5,109,601 1,225,961 {112,669} - 6,222,893
Museum 1,430,547 27,919 (24,855) - 1,442,611
Construction in progress 87,124 994,666 (1,080,219) - 1,571
Total Cultural & Recreation 8,976,763 2,297 164 {1,269,002) - 10,004,925
Environmental Protection:
Vector Conltrol 268,085 11,702 - - 279,787
Mosquito Controt 57,703 - (9,648) - 48,055
Total Environmental Protection 325,788 11,702 {9,648) - 327,842
Total Governmental Capital Assets 95,719,590 18,429,732 (5481,322) $ - 3 108,668,000
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ADDITIONAL FINANCIAL DATA

This section contains additional information on property taxes,
interfund and component unit transfers, and cash and investments.
Schedule of Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable

Analysis of Current Tax Levy - County-wide Levy

Analysis of Current Tax Levy - Secondary Market Disclosures
Schedule of Cash and Investment Balances

Schedule of Interfund Transactions

Calculation of Debt Service Coverage Ratio
in the Solid Waste Fund
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Onslow County, North Carolina
SCEHDULE OF AD VALOREM TAXES RECEIVABLE
June 30, 2008

SCHEDULE 24

108

Uncollected Uncollected
Balance Collections Balance
Fiscat Year - June 30, 2007 Additions and Credits June 30, 2008
2007-2008 3 - $ 56,728,138 $ 54,766,136 % 1,862,002
- 2008-2007 ' 1,714,236 1,162,462 551,774
2005-20086 715,214 95,581 - 619,633
2004-2005 484 463 43,416 441,047
2003-2004 © 320,703 35,527 285,176
2002-2003 277,380 15,638 261,742
2001-2002 234,110 8,717 225,393
2000-2001 188,232 5,904 192,328
1999-2000 205,196 5,023 200,173
1998-1999 163,854 2,729 161,225
1997-1998 159,326 - 169,326 -
$ 4,472,814 3 56,728,138 $ 56,300,459 4,900,493
Less allowance for uncollectible taxes
General Fund (1,238,168)
Ad varcrem taxes recelvable - net § 3,662,335
Reconcilement with revenues:
Ad valorem taxes - Gensral Fund $ 56,367,265
Reconciling items
Releases on prior years 87,751
Interest collected {311,875)
Amounts written off for prior years 157118
Total reconciling items (66,806}
Total Collections and Credits $ 56,300,459
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SCHEDULE 25

Onslow County, North Carolina
ANALYSIS OF CURRENT TAX LEVY-COUNTY-WIDE LEVY
June 30, 2008

Criginal Levy:
Property taxed at current
years rate
Penallies
Total
Diécoveﬁes:
Current year taxes

Prior year taxes
Total

Abaternents
Total property valuation
Net Levy
Uncollected taxes at June 30, 2008

Cumrent years taxes collected

Current levy collection percentage

County Wide Total Levy
Property
Excluding
Registered Registered
- Property Amount Motor Motor
Valuation Rate of Levy Vehicles Vehicles

$  11,263,770,931

11,263,770,931

11,263,770,931

(48,767,160)

$  11,215,003,771

0.503% § 56,656,768 § 52,233,964 § 4,422,803

92,309 92,310 -
56,749,077 52,326,274 4,422,803
224,359 207,738 16,621
56,073,436 52,534,012 4,439,424
0.503% (245,298) (245,298) -
56,728,138 52,288,714 4,439,424
1,962,002 1,242,607 719,395

$ 54,766,136 § 51,046,107 % 3,720,029

96.54% 97.62% 83.80%
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Onslow County, North Carolina
ANALYSIS OF CURRENT TAX LEVY
SECONDARY MARKET DISCLOSURES
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

SCHEDULE 28

Assessed Valuation:
Assessment Ratio*

. Real property
Personal property
Public service companies™

Total assessed valuation

Tax rate per $100
Levy (including discoveries, releases and abatements

)*ii'

*  Percentage of appraised value has been eslablished by statute
* Valuation of railroads, telephone companies and other utilities as determined by the

North Carolina Property Tax Commission
*** The levy includes interest and penalties

110

100%

$ 9,668,893,247
1,345,309,555
200,800,968

11,215,003,771
0.503
§ 58,728,138
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SCHEDULE 27

Onslow County, North Carolina
SCHEDULE OF CASH AND INVESTMENT BALANCES
June 30, 2008

Amounts .
Presented On Cost Market
Statements Value Value
Cash
On hand $ 5037 § 5037 § 5,037
In demand deposits 11,726,304 11,726,304 11,726,304
11,731,341 11,731,341 11,731,341

Other investments

Narth Carolina Capitai Management Trust 59,997,944 59,897,944 59,897,044
Commercial Paper (held by the dealer bank's
trust department in the name of the County):
RBC Wealth Management ' 4,252,000 4,252,000 4,252,000
Wachovia 16,781,000 16,781,000 16,781,000
Certificate of Deposit - RBC Centura 9,070,833 9,070,833 9,070,833
BB&T escrow account 2,784,148 2,784,148 2,784,148
Total other investments 92,885,025 02,885,925 92,885,925
Total cash and investments $ 104,617,266 § 104,617,266 § 104,617,266
Distribution by Funds: Carrying Value
General Fund . 3 36,656,404
Special Revenue Funds
Emergency 911 Fund 1,239,770
Register of Peeds Fund 169,476
Community Development Fund 20,736 1,419,982
Capital Project Funds
Capital Improvements Fund 385,824
Airport Fund 1,176,870
Capital Project Fund ) 4,650,735
School Construction Fund . 36,105,997 42,319,526
Enterprise Funds
Solid Waste Fund 23,647,721
Fiduciary Funds
Pension Trust Fund ] 257,106
Agency Funds 316,563 573,659
$ 104,617,292
111
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Onslow County, North Carolina
SCHEDUI.E OF INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

SCHEDULE 28

Transfers

From

To

Operating Transfer From/To Other Funds:
General Fund

Capital Improvement Fund 8

Capital Project Fund
Airport Fund
E911 Fund

Capital Impravement Fund
General Fund

Airport Fund
General Fund

Capital Project Fund
General Fund

E911 Fund
General Fund

474,806

473,165
541,000
177,500

1,821,986

541,000
1,821,886
177,500

474,908

473,165

Total operating transfers-other funds $

3,488,557

3,488,657

Operating Transfers From/To Component Units:
General Fund
Component Units - discretely presented

Onstow County ABC Board $

Component Units - discrelely presented
Onslow County ABC Board
General Fund

667,557

667,557

Total operating fransfers-component units $

667,557

667,557
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SCHEDULE 29
Onslow County, North Carolina
CALCULATION OF DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE RATIO
IN THE SOLID WASTE FUND
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2008 and 20067

2008 2007

Gross Revenue $ 6,559,261 L 6,126,043

Current Expense (1) 2,660,586 2,426,417
Net Operating Revenues 3.898,675 3,609,626
Non-Operating Revenues (2) 868,001 879,928
Net Revenues Available for Debt Service 4.766,676 4,579,554
Debt Service(4) 1,801,028 1,717,952
Balance after Debt Service $ 2,965,648 3 2,861,602
Debt Service Coverage Ratio (3) 2.65 2.67

(1) Not including depreciation and interest expense

{2) Non-operating revenues include interest earnings

(3} Ratio of Net Revenues Available for Debt Service to Debt Service
(4) Excluding early retirement of debt
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STATISTICAL SECTION
{UNAUDITED).

The information presented in this section is provided for additional
analysis purposes only and has not been subjected to audit verification

as presented.
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STATISTICAL SECTION

{Unaudited)
Table Page

Financial Trends:

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the district's

financial perfformance and well being have changed over time.
Net Assets by Componet - Last Five Fiscal Years 1 116
Changes in Net Assets - Last Five Fiscal Years 2 117118
Fund Balances of Govemmental Funds - Last Ten Fiscal Years 3 119120
Changes in Fund Balance, Governmental Funds - Last Ten Fiscal Years 4 121

Revenue Capacity:

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the district;s revenues.
Assessed Value and Actual Value of Taxable Property - Last Ten Fiscal Years 5 122
Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates 6 123
Principal Property Tax Payers - Current Year and Nine Years Ago 7 124
Property Tax Levies and Collections - Last Ten Fiscal Years 8 125

Debt Capacity:

Since the Board of Education has no tax-levying or debt issuing authority, the County of Cravan

provides significant funding to the school system. Fiscal data from the county of Craven have been

included to help the reader understand the school system
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type - Last Ten Fiscal Years 9 126
Ratios of Net General Bonded Debt Outstanding - Last Ten Fiscal Years 10 127
Legal Debt Margin information - Last Ten Fiscal Years 11 128
Computation of Direct and Overlapping Debt - Geneal Obiligation Bonds 12 129
Calculation of Debt Service Coverage - Solid Waste Fund - Last Ten Years 13 130

Demographic and Economic information:

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the

environment within which the district's financial activities take place. Information on the County

of Craven is included.
Demographic and Econaomic Statistics - Last Ten Fiscal Years 14 13t
Principal Employers - Current Year and Nine Years Ago 15 132
Full-time Equivalent County Government Employees by Function - Last Ten Fiscal Years 16 133

Operating Information:

These schedules contain service and capital asset data to help the rader understand how the

information in the Board's financial report relates to the services the Board provides and the activities

it performs.
Operating Indicators by Function/Program - Last Ten Fiscal Years 17 134
Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program - Last Ten Fiscal Years 18 135

Sources:

Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive annual financial reports

(CAFR) for GASB Statement 34 in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2008 and is provided for additional analysis

purposes only and has not been subjected to audit verification as presented.
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Governmental activiies
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total governmentat activities net assets
Business-lype activities
Invested in capital assets, net of reiated debt
Unrestricted
Total business-type activities net assets
Primary government
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total primary governmental net assets

Note: 10 years data not available.

Table 1
Onslow County, North Carolina

Net Assets by Component
Last Six Fiscal Years
{accrual basis of accounting)
03 04 05 2008 2007 08
25,698,416 25,832,419 $ 24,774,508 27,460,374 30,332,129 $ 38,329,706
579,066 367,728 695,635 1,266,678 1,569,093 2,035,393
(3,392,504} {1,469,036) 9,416,825 14,161,419 5,356,154 (43,252,580)
22,884 978 24,731 111 $ 34,886,968 42,088,471 37,257,376 (2,887,481)
23,845,103 30,828,157 $ 4,218,600 3,862,036 4,339,757 $ 2,454,198
22,020,137 10,503,745 8,678,377 9,254,838 11,362,586 15,983,417
45,866,240 41,331,902 $ 12,896,977 13,116,874 15,702 343 18,437,615
49 544.519 56,660,576 $ 28,993,108 31,322,410 34,671,886 $ 40,783,904
579,066 367,728 695,635 1,266,678 1,569,093 2,035,393
18,627,633 9,034,709 18,095,202 23,416 257 16,718,740 (27,269,163)
68,751,218 66,063,013 & 47,783 945 56,005,345 52,959 719 $ 15,660,134
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Table 2
Onslow County, North Carolina
Changes In Net Assots,
Last Six Fiscal Years
{accrual basls of accounting)

Expaniws

Govesrrmental activities:
Genyral government
Pubic safety
Traneportation
Economic and physical development
Huiman services
Erwrgnmental protection
Cuiltural and récreation
Ecluation
Interest on debt

Total gevernmental activities

Business-type activities:
Sold waste
Watsr and sewer

" Total pimary government expenses

Prog ram Revenues
Governmantal activites
Charges for gervices:
Gerral governmaent
Public safety
Transportation
Economic.and physical development
Human sarvices
Cultural and recrestion
Education

Operating grants and contributions:
Gerneral government
Public safety
Trarsporiation
Economic and physical development
Human services
Environmental protection
Cuitural and recreation
Education

Capital grants and contributions:
General government
Public safety
Transportation
Economic and physical developmert
Cultyral and recraation
Education
Total governmental activities program revenues

2003 2004 200§ 2008 2007 005

11,068,742 11,271,120 § 10,048,810 § 14411221 $ 12,800,363 § 12885050
14,812,511 15,216,789 17,624,881 18,080,868 18,577,706 24,191,727
1,217,028 2,458,860 1,388,303 1,618.949 2,053,878 2,158,825
1,660,852 1,960,480 1,236,664 1,871,680 2,601,171 2,912,482
42,850,870 45,016,250 48,293,040 40,545,428 42,412,075 43,677,026
388,550 375,558 388,587 434,101 457 485 550,048
2,666,610 2,875,397 3,198,328 3,424,483 3,800,832 4,483,000
27,823,209 31,808,128 27,048,011 27,785,745 62,851,200 89,228,802
2,380,738 2,663,572 2,216,091 2,162,450 4,503,083 4,458,772
105,966,810 113,867,172 112,353,525 111,224,808 141,048,483 184,525,431
4,257,914 4,257,980 4,153,801 4,368,263 4,384,331 4,667,800

§,485,087 7,731,848 7,377,728 - - -
116,700,811 125,658,887 § 123,884,855 $ 115,583,058 $  145430,704 $ 189,223,231
2,450,225 2,030,613 § 1942508 § 2,180,457 $ 3,577,378 $ 2,203,932
3,237,181 2,803,568 3,821,078 4,470,016 3,152,260 4,035,674
412,717 570,73@ 814,723 684,754 1,180,734 1,348,400
21,750 42,828 - - - 233,910
8,425,841 9,522,803 - 37,742 33,562 4,705,082
143,650 145,336 61,561 80,450 02,800 180,704

53,142 40,480 48,404 - . -
102,264 258,403 - 360,207 461,122 1,338,683
86,648 181,570 793,243 940,282 1,264,461 764, T84
- - - - 8,191 380,211
224,608 88,753 142,785 24,828 274,854 122,368
22,148,402 24,006,252 35,848,355 23,820,400 25,843,805 20,804,074
313,451 - - 83,568 - 154,763
7258631 300,625 345,880 388,867 413,756 493,686

- 814,191 1,286,238 1,287 508 1,135,270 -
154,263 §30,000 - 255,017 31474 24,545

- - 110,783 - - -
1,468,878 1,033,334 1,848,045 720,441 280,985 4,576,608

1,635,287 847,132 164,888 264,880 - -
- . - - 283,804
3,804 37,398 - - 2,088,608 2,198,571
41,613,761 44,654,023 47,227,306 35,018,322 38,047,234 44,380,826
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2003 2004 20038 2008 2007 e
Busirves-type activities:
Chargebr sefvices - Solid waste : 4,536,505 5,125,881 5,470,832 8,084 481 6,080,872 6,530,402
Chargieior sarvices - Water and sewer 7,880,234 8,836,180 2,048 . - -
Operathy grants and contributions 28,768
Total buiness-type activities program revenues 12,225,738 13,082,070 5,473,578 6,084,461 6,089,872 8,660,260
Total prinary government program revenues $ 53,839.400 $ 58,616,003 $ 52700973 $ 41,983,783 § 46037108 § 61,440,088
Net { Exansal/Revanus
Governnental activities $ (684353080) § (80,013,148) § (B5126130) § (75305484} § (101,080,228} § (136,844,805)
Bugines-type activities 1,482,738 1,972,255 {8,057,752) 1,706,208 1,705,541 1,861,480
Total prinary governmant net (expense)/revenue $ !62,370.321) 3 (61.040.894; § (71,183,882 § (73.599,276! $ (00,393,688) § (137,783.145)
GeneraRevenuas and Other Changes in Net Assets
Governnental activities:

Propirly taxes 38,803,548 39,524,011 41,712,769 44,584,792 £3,850,841 56,684,728

Locd option sales tax 19,554,491 24,264,018 28,314,550 26,802,387 30,764,084 34,088,763

Other taxes and licanses 2,031,188 3,887,492 2,131,473 2,542,583 2,613,082 1,761,763

Investment samings 384,795 324,355 703,927 1,082,466 5,068,147 3,288,408

Miscilanecus 1,028,043 916,485 4,357,271 5704719 3,332,088 2,868,100

Tranfers 1,702,464 - 62,000 - - -
Totel governmental activities: 83,504,560 88,398,389 75,281,989 $3,508,027 65,468,132 99,490,780
Businast-type activities:

Imvegment samings 407,515 207,400 404,952 660,314 A75,028 918,563

Miscilaneous 19,192 195,860 24,051 - - {44,750)

Spadal tem (7.000,000) (22,744,178} {2,075,625) -

Tramfers (1,702,484) - (62,000} - e e ————
Tolal business-type activities ‘ {1,275.787) (8,508,562) (22,377,173) (1,486,311) 879.928 873.813
Total prinary government $ 82,228,773 § 62,880,777 $ 52,904,818 $ 82110818 $ 96,348,000 $ 100,373,563
Change in Not Assats
Govarnmental activities (848,460} 383,220 10,155,850 8,291,443 (5,831,087) (40,144,865)
Busines-typa activities 208,851 (4,534,337) {28,434,925) 219,897 2,585,468 2,735,273
Total primary governiment $ (841548) $  (4151,117) § (18.279.008) § 8511340 § __ (3,045028) §  (37.400,582)

Note: Accrual-basis financlal information for the county govermmant as a whoie Is avallable back to 2003 only,

tha year GASB Statoment 34 was Implementad.

Note: 10 years data not avaliable.

118

Return to Table of Contents



Table 3
Onslow County, North Carolina
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(modified accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal Year
1998 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2008 2007 2008
3eneral Fund _
Reserwed 8,580,401 9,654,252 10,935,690 10,851,872 13,233,766 13,901,774 14,431,038 11,334,672 17,758,286 23,680,966
Unreserved designated 6,677,195 8,222,105 9,578,529 9,913,775 6,673,213 7.802,388 11,914,900 10,813,666 15,448,394 20,667,118
Unreserved undesignated 11,128,675 10,566,644 7,856,633 £,901,650 6,290,979 9,440,689 13,787,017 22,622,467 15,131,174 7,648,508
lotal general fund $ 26,386,271 $ 28,342,901 $ 28370852 $ 26,657,298 § 26,197,958 § 31,144,851 $ 40,132,955 $ 44,770,805 $ 48,337.8564 $ 51.866,692
All Gther Governmental Funds
Resenmed
Spacial revenue funds $ 618,157 $ 417,730 $ 322,710 $ 454,316 3 458,411 $ 524,278 § 887,445 $ 258,261 % 142,637 3 291,196
Capitat project funds 2,286,360 1,226,785 2,893,945 637,864 631,649 1,151,541 801,308 ) 705,484 1,826,482 319,854
School Construction 0 a 0 0 5,696,719 0 o] 731,456 18,356,991 1.023,287
Unreserved designated
Special revenue funds D 1,330,978 168,997 Q o 89,910 95,550 34225 55,994 9,600
Capital project funds 331,000 261,000 0 0 o - 1,134,286 101,302 55,000 52,600 314,000
School Construction 0 1] 0 0 1] 0 o 62,526,777 26,241,628 31,873,926
Unreserved undesignated reported in:
Special revenue funds 1,751,644 1,974,733 536,271 595,060 896,280 393,660 472,897 677,131 899,281 762,436
Capital project funds 1,689,251 {29.557) 649,030 (381,026) (878,917) 104,458 78,872 648,623 716,832 (681,941)
School Construction Q 4] +] 0 o 0 3] 0 0 0
Tolat all cther govwemmental funds $ 6676412 $ 5181669 $ 4,569,953 $ 1,406,214 $ 6804,152 $ 3,398,133 $ 2,437,374 $ 65647967 § 48292445 $ 33,912,258
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Table 3a
Onslow County, North Carolina
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds as % of Expenditures
Last Ten Fiscal Yoars
{modified accrual basis of accounting)

_ Fisonl Yoar
1689 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 05 2006 2007 2008
General Fund .

Evpenditures $ 83,356,180 % 86,225,535 $ 93,257,365 $ 97,709,565 § 09,954,049 $ 115232775 $ 109,367,733 $ 109,299,618 $ 124,102,027 $ 131,686,704
Resarved 10.29% 11.08% 11.73% 11.11% 13.24% 12.06% 13.19% 10.37% 14.31% 17.96%
Unreserved designated B.01% 9.54% ©1027% 10.15% 5.68% 6.77% 10.89% 9.89% 12.45% 15.60%
Unressrved undesignated 13.35% 12.25% 8.42% . 6.04% 6.20% B8.19% 12.61% 20.70% 12.19% 5.73%

Total general fund - 31.56% 32.87% . 3042% 27.29% 26 21% 27.03% 36.70% 40.96% 38.95% 39.39%
All Other Gowemmental Funds . :
Expenditures $ 14,373,462 $ 25968290 $ 21,635,832 $ 19,287,125 $ 10,213,552 $ 15120036 % 5528,710 $ 6,321,786 $ 26,228,148 $ 58,522,081
Reserved
Special revenue funds 4,30% 161% 1.49% 2.36% 4.49% A.47% 16.05% 4.10% 0.54% 0.42%
Capital project funds ' 15.91% 4.72% 13.38% 3.31% 6.18% 7.62% 14.49% 11,16% 6.96% 0.47%
School Construction 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 55.78% 0.00% 0.00% 11.57% 69.99% 1.49%
Unreserved designated
Special revenus funds 0.00% 5.13% 0.78% 0.00% 0.00% 0.59% 1.73% 0.54% 0.21% 0.01%
Capital project funds 2.30% 1.01% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 7.50% 1.83% 1.03% 0.20% 0.46%
Schaool Construction 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 989.07% 100.05% 46.52%
Unreserved undesignaled reported in:
Special revenue funds 12.19% 7.60% 247T% 3.60% 8.78% 2.60% 8.55% 10.71% 3.43% 1.11%
Capital project funds 11.75% 0.11% 3.00% -1.98% 8.61% 0.69% 1.43% 10.26% 2.73% -1.00%
School Construction 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Total alt other govemmental funds 456.45% 19.95% 21.12% 7.29% 66.62% 22.47% 44.09% 1038.44% 184.12% 49.49%
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Table 4
Onsiow County, North Carolina
Changes in Fund Bal, Gavernmental Funds
Last Ten Fiscal Years
{modified accrual basis of accounting)

Figcal Year
1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2008 2007 2008

Revenues
Taxes:
Property tax $ 27,421,758 $ 28,594,206 $ 33,054,208 $ 37,876,012 $ 38,482,631 $ 39,917,765 $ 41,562,890 $ 44,189,585 § 53,567,340 $ 56,367,265
Sales lax 16,216,029 17,116,852 17,619,612 17,897,030 19,554 491 24,264,016 26,314,553 28,802,387 30,764,964 35,008,774
Cther tax 1,304,741 1,276,858 1,368,792 1,038,630 1,212,542 1,675,331 2,131,473 2,542 563 2,613,082 2,808,433
Total taxes 44,942,528 46,988,016 51,942,612 56,811,672 59,246 664 65,857,112 70,008,922 75,534,535 86,945,386 94,234 472
intergovemmantal 46,244 480 53,237 507 50,203,859 49,452,266 37,531,988 41,787,857 43,803 479 32,318,199 34,761,625 32,048,067
Charges for Services 2,163,800 2,425,222 2,298,561 2030006 2,751,718 2.979,181 3,571,086 4,310,121 4,742,743 10,228,791
Intarest 1,839,722 1,744,787 1,794,275 639,018 384,795 324,355 703,927 1,862 466 5,098,148 3,286,406
Miscallaneous 1,318,480 1,549,188 1,252,623 2,760,665 3,156,263 2,993,644 3817177 4,312,888 4,097,991 4,087,680
Total Revenues 96,209,010 105,944,730 107 491,930 111,693,627 103,074,438 113,942,149 121,704,601 148,439,209 135,645,893 143,885,416
Expendilures
General Govemment 5,508,225 6,804,327 7,082,776 7,492,612 8,074,044 7,732,693 7,270,051 12,271,673 11,632,019 11,678,761
Public Safety 11,227,274 13,509,358 15,618,488 14,431,534 14,008,239 14,945,327 16,267,173 17,606,811 19,838,399 21,630,113
Transportatin 722,632 769,398 690,013 689,919 674,388 747,513 924,701 1,115,853 1,342,256 1,493,708
Economic Development 1,685,235 2,204,795 2374486 1,328,252 1,406,074 1,078,125 1,228,651 1,803,583 2,564,358 2,932,565
Human Services 36,158,875 37,331,554 40,353,880 41,992,442 43,146,607 44,961,773 47,952,941 39,054,209 42,400,286 43,738,986
Environmental Protection 325,148 489,580 465,931 423,333 383,698 371,192 386,587 434,101 457,485 550,949
Culture and Recreation 2467 678 2,555,084 2,862,821 2,801,922 2,858,600 3,125,847 2,913,646 3,187,323 3,663,538 4,074,830
Nen-departmental 204,964 461,476 504,138 663,630 569,201 710,254 536,752 9,347 - -
E-911 - - - - - - - 320476 258,175 283,969
Education 19,798,395 ‘19,747.260 21,605,67¢ 23,774,985 24,258,317 25,282 960 26,441,854 27,765,745 31,466,700 35,029,481
Capltal Qutiay 13,400,506 23,043,618 17,680,995 17,886,144 8,992,232 13,264,007 4,452,536 5,712,086 25,579,013 88,034,762
Debt Servica:

Principal 4,008,747 3,061,165 3,238,876 3,245,018 3,435,472 15,579,968 4,305,461 4,177,746 6,534,886 6,301,797

Interest and Fees 2,320,958 2,216,210 2,378,123 2,356,510 2,360,738 2,563,572 2,216,091 2,162,450 4,593,063 4,468,774
Total Expenditures 97,728,642 112,183,826 114,894,198 117,076,201 110,167,601 130,352,811 114,896,443 115,621,403 150,330,178 200,208,785
Excess of revenues over (under)

axpenditures {1,519,632) (6.248,095) (7.402,268) {5,382,574) (7.083,163) {16,410,662) 6,808,158 2,817 806 (14,684,285) (56,323,389)
Other Financing Sources (LUseas) ’
Transfers in 7,082,635 6,223.204 3,201,808 1,719,809 2,896,728 4,158,544 1,764,378 1,545,608 4,430,379 3,013,651
Transfers out (5,495,635) {4,336,401) {1,514,807) {1,667 B08B) (1,194,233) {4,1508,544) (1,702,378) {3,498,728) (4.430,379) {3,013,651)
Proceeds from issuance of dabt 1,083,204 4,797 546 5,105,927 325,007 10,237,624 16,282,243 284,116 79,271,652 846,627 45,147,260
Proceeds fram sale of capital assets 450,996 26,633 25,556 128272 81,647 206,374 878,030 493,847 49,291 324,661
Transter to ascrow agent - - - - - - - (12,761,750} - -
Total other financing sources {uses) 3,121,300 5,710,982 6,818,604 515,280 12,021,766 16,488,617 1,224,148 65,030,627 895,818 45,471,921
Net change in fund balances 1,601,668 461,087 (583,764) (4.867,294) 4,928,603 77,955 8,032,304 67,848,433 (13,78B,467) {10,851 448)
Deb! service as a percentage of noncapital

expenditures 1.51% 5.92% 578% 5.75% 5.73% 15.49% 5.90% 5.80% 7.99% 5.68%
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Table 5
Onslow County, Noerth Carolina
Assessed Value and Actual Value of Taxable Property
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Total Estimatad Assessed
Year Real Property Total Taxable Direct Actual Value as a
Ended Residential Commercial Industial Present-use Personal Public Service Assessed Tax Taxahle Percentage of
30-Jun Property Property Property Value * Property Companies ? Exemptions Value Rate * Value Actual Value
1999 $ 2485247466 § 499991705 % 19,617,805 § 91,513,374 § 773,926,209 % 123,130,382 § 18,763,376 § 3,956,653,575 § 0,694 $ 4,725502,896 84.08%
2000 2,556,192,024 528,738,922 19,132,898 89,804 405 854,372,619 117,561,263 23,641,556 4,142,260,575 0.684 5,081,274,060 B1,82%
2001 3,232,846,565 778,697,138 15,566,670 103,873,648 947,918,718 145,977,916 24,216,583 5,198,363,262 0830 6,190,362,262 100.47%
2002 3,504,475,369 753,545,075 15,585,870 102,486,251 1,003,551,547 153,869,260 26,240,267 5,508,253,094 0.680 5,605,223,460 96.72%
2003 3,823,773,690 774,280,743 15,589,858 102,698,565 1,020,746,450 153,652,207 32,196,123 5,658,521,190 0.680 5,820,326,260 97.77%
2004 3,690,926,003 907,215,747 15,551,566 101,856,784 1,074,000,975 165,361,775 35,151,088 §,909,661,762 0,670 6,353,791,809 93.56%
2005 3,865,901,186 950,881,418 15,651,566 100,508,756 1,101,713,194 162,597,762 35,207,514 6,161,946,368 0.870 8,834,456,930 90.68%
2006 4,110,064,998 965,711,436 16,662,864 96,658,196 1,245,776,737 176,170,423 34,733,081 6,575,311,573 0.670 7,834,280,440 84.37%
2007 7.843,414,513 1,131,823,062 23,760,243 125,624,716 1,254,504,154 495,587,024 48,821,245 10,525,892,537 0.503 10,525,892,537 100.46%
2008 8,343,895,371 1,215,632,400 23,276,253 126,078,608 1,353,819,680 200,800,969 48,590,408 14,215,003,771 0.503 13,561,068,647 B3.06%

Source: Annual County Report of Valuation and Property Tax Levies

Nates:
' Present use value property is agricultural, horticuttural and forestiand for which the owner has applied for the property to be taxed at its present use.
The differsnce In laxes on the present use basls and the taxes that would have been payable are a lien on the property and are deferred. The taxes
begome dua if the property ceases to qualify for present use valua. The preceding three fiscal years taxes are then required to be paid.
2 Public servica companies valuations are provided to the Counly by the North Carolina Department of Revenue. Thesa amounts include both
real and parsonal property.
* Por $100 of value.
* The estimated market value is calculated by dividing the assessed value by an assessment-to-sales ratic determined by the State Department of
Rovenus. The ratio is based an actual property saies which took place during the fiscal year.
® Property in Onsiow Counly s reassessed avery six to elght years. The last reassessment was on January 1, 2006 and will be the basis for fiscal 2006 taxes.
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Table 6
Onslow County, North Carclina
Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Year Taxes Are Payable

1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

Onslow County $  0.6940 $ 0.6840 $ 0.6300 $ 0.8900 $ 0.6800 $ 0.6700 $ 0.6700 $ 0.6700 % 0.5030 $ 0.5030
Municipality Rates:

Holly Ridge 0.5000 0.5000 0.5000 0.5000 0.5000 0.5000 0.5000 0.5000 D.3800 0.3800

Jacksonvilie 0.6230 0.6230 0.5900 0.5900 0.5900 0.5800 0.5900 0.5900 0.5316 0.6260

North Topsail Beach 0.4500 0.4500 0.4500 0.4500 0.4500 0.4500 0.4500 0.4500 0,1300 0.1600

Richlands 0.4500 0.4500 0.4500 0.4500 0.4500 0.4500 0.4500 0.4500 0.3800 0.3800

Surf City (1) $.3500 0.3500 0.3700 (0.3700 0.3500 0.3500 0.3500 0.3500 0.3100 0.3100

Swansboro 0.5000 0.5000 0.3800 0.3800 0.3800 0.3800 0.3800 0.3800 0.3130 0.3530

! This municipality became a multi-county town through annexation in 1988.

Notes:
A Property was revalued in 2006.
¥ Foreach govemment, certain motor vehicles were taxed at the preceding year's rates.

Source: Onstow County Tax Administration
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Table 7
Onslow County, North Carolina
Principal Property Tax Payers
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2008 1999
Percentage Percentage
of Total County of Total County
Taxable Taxable Taxable Taxable
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed
Taxpayer Value ' Rank Value Value Rank Value
Jones Onslow EMC 93,413,176 i 0.83% 47,093,000 1 1.19%
RA, North Development 1 Inc 83,428,932 2 0.74%
Carolina Telephone ' 55,379,084 3 0.49% 42,039,000 2 1.06%
Progress Energy Carolinas 37,338,837 4 0.33% 22,427,000 3 0.57%
Crown America Acquisition Assoc Il LP 37,043,405 5 0.33% 19,738,000 4 0.50%
Brunswick Timber LLC 30,630,712 B 0.27%
Robert J Finlay 23,917,050 7 0.21%
Rogers Bay Campground Co 21,500,000 8 0.18%
Pufier Place LLC 15,453,737 9 0.14%
Marine Federal Credit Union ‘ 15,346,601 10 0.14%
John Hancock Mutua! Life Ins. Co. 12,098,000 5 0.31%
Liberty Crossing Apartmenis 10,907,000 6 0.28%
Stanadyne Automotive Corp -10,185,000 7 0.26%
Bailey & Associates 9,262,000 8 0.23%
Carl Beacham & Associates 8,720,000 9 0.22%
Wal-Mart Stores, inc 8,439,000 10 0.21%
Total 413,451,624 3.69% 190,808,000 4.82%
Source: County Tax Administration
Total Valuation 11,215,003,771 3,956,663,575
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Collections within the

Table 8
Onslow County, North Carolina
Property Tax Levies and Collections
Last Ten Fiscal Years
Expressed in Thousands

Fiscal Fiscal Year of the Levy Total Collections to Date
Year Taxes levied Percent Collections Percent
Ended for the of Levy in Subsequent of Levy

30-Jun Fiscal Year Amount Collected Years Amount Collected
1899 27.557 26,535 96.29% 795 27,330 99.18%
2000 28,911 27,667 95.70% 976 28,643 99.07%
2001 33,117 31,821 96.09% 1,032 32,853 99.20%
2002 38,054 36,554 96.06% 1,176 37,730 99.15%
2003 38,751 37,106 95.75% 1,302 38,408 99.11%
2004 39,898 38,277 95.94% 1,215 38,492 98.98%
2005 41,706 40,052 96.03% 1,145 41,197 98.78%
2006 44,529 42,631 95.74% 1,205 43,836 98.44%
2007 53,654 51,940 96.81% 1,103 53,043 98.86%
2008 56,728 54,766 96.54% - 54,766 96.54%

Source: Onslow County Tax Administration
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Table 9
QOnslow County, North Carolina
Ratlos of Outstanding Debt by Type
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Governmental Activities Business-typa Activitles
General Instaliment Bond _ Certificates General Special Total Percentage
Fiscal Obligation Purchase Anticipation of Obligation Revenue Obligation Primary Per of Personal
 Year Bonds Obligations Notes Participation Bonds Bonds Bonds Government Capita {1) Income (1)
1999 37,550,000 2,741,259 0 0 2,433,000 9,785,000 6,516,789 59,036,048 266 1.79%
2000 37,700,000 4,327,317 0 0 1,808,800 9,395,000 10,506,958 63,838,075 265 1.86%
2001 35,450,000 B,444,367 0 ¢ 1,332,200 8,977,970 9,807,538 64,012,075 245 1.77%
2002 33,200,000 7,676,745 0 ] 697,900 8,535,000 9,066,788 59,176,433 226 1.65%
2003 30,950,000 16,728,897 0 [ 0 8,075,000 12,483,896 68,237,793 203 1.76%
2004 29,275,000 19,614,018 0 0 0 0 11,221,996 160,108,014 187 1.38%
2005 26,755,000 18,109,675 [+] 0 0 ] 9,815,303 54,779,978 168 1.12%
2006 74,530,000 16,262,000 0 15,500,000 o , 0 8,570,338 114,892,338 472 2.22%
2007 70,555,000 15,353,644 0 14,725,000 0 0 7,183,041 107,816,685 438 NIA
2008 106,665,000 17,541,845 0 13,850,000 [ 0 12,482,726 150,619,571 629 NIA

Notes: Details regarding the county's outstanding debt can be found In the notes to the financial statements.
(1) See Schedule 14 for personal Income and population data.
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Table 10

Onslow County, North Carolina
Ratios of Net General Bonded Deht Outstanding,
Last Ten Fiscal Years

General Bonded Debt Outstanding

Less: Amounts Percentage
General Restricted Percentage of Actual
Fiscal Obligation to Repaying of Personal Taxable Value Per

Year Bonds Principal Total Income(1) of Property(2) Caplta(1)

1999 39,983,000 0 39,883,000 1.21% 1.02% 266
2000 39,608,800 0 39,608,800 1.15% 0.96% 265
2001 36,782,200 0 36,782,200 1.02% 0.71% 246
2002 33,897,900 0 33,897,900 0.95% 0.62% 226
2003 30,950,000 0 30,950,000 0.80% 0.55% 203
2004 29,275,000 ¢ 29,275,000 0.67% 0.50% 187
2005 26,755,000 4] 26,755,000 0.55% 0.43% 168
2008 74,530,000 [H] 74,530,000 1.44% 1.13% 472
2007 70,555,000 0 70,555,000 N/A R 0.67% 438
2008 106,665,000 o 106,665,000 N/A 0.95% 629

Notes: Details regarding the County's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the Financia! Statements.
(1) See Schedule 14 for personal income and population data.
{2) See schedule 5 for property value data.
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Table 11
Onslow Cunty , North Carolina
Legal Debt Margin Information,
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(dollars in thousands)

Fiscal Year
1089 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
Assessed Value of Property 3,956,663 4,142,260 5,198,363 5,508,253 5,656,521 5,909,661 6,161,946 6,575,312 10,525,892 11,263,771
Debt Limit, 8% of Assessed Value (Statutory Limitation) 316,533 331,381 415,869 440,660 452,682 472,773 492,956 526,025 842,071 801,102
Amount of Debt Applicable to Limit
General obligation bonds 39,083 39,6809 38,782 33,998 30,950 29,275 26,755 74,530 70,585 106,665
Bonds authorized but not issued 0 [ 0 o 0 16,425 16,425 43,780 43,780 3,780
{nstallment purchase agreements 2,741 4,327 8,444 7,677 16,729 18,611 18,110 16,282 15,354 17,542
Bond anticipaion bonds o 4] o 0 0 o 4] [} 0 0
Cerlificates of participation o l] [« 0 0 o [+] 15,500 14,725 13,950
Revenue bonds 9,785 9,305 8,879 8,535 8,075 Q 0 D [+} o)
Special obligation bonds 6,517 10,507 9,808 9,067 12,484 11,222 9,818 8,570 7,184 12,463
Gross Debt 58,036 63,838 64,013 59177 68,238 78,533 71,205 168,672 151,698 154,400
Less:
Debt cutstanding for water and sewer purposes 2,433 1,909 1,332 698 g 0 1] +] a D
Revenue bonds §,7a5 0,305 8,978 8,535 8,075 1] 4] 0 1] ]
Special Cbligation Bonds 8,517 10,507 0,808 9,067 12,484 11,222 8,915 B,570 7,184 12,463
Total net debt applicable to limit 40,291 42,027 43,885 40,877 47,679 65,311 81,290 150,102 144,414 141,937
Legal Debt Margin $ 278,242 § 280,354 § 371,974 § 399,783 § 405,003 $ 407,462 % 431,666 § 376,923 § 897657 $ 759,165
Total net debt applicable to the limit as a percentage of debt limit 12.73% 12.68% 10.56% 9.28% 10.53% 13.81% 12.43% 28.54% 17.15% 15.75%

Nate: NC Statute G5159-55 limits the county’s outstanding debt to 8% of the appraised value of property subject to taxation. The following deductions ars made from gross debt lo amive at net debt applicable to the limit:
money held for payment of principal; debt incurred for water, sewer, gas, or electric power purposes; uncollected special assessmeants, funding and refunding bonds not yet issued; and revenue bonds.
The legai debt margin is the difference between the debt limit and the county’s net debt outstanding applicable to the limit, and represents the county's legal borrowing authority.
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Table 12
Onslow County, North Carolina
Computation of Direct and Overlapping Dabt
General Obligation Bonds
June 30, 2008

{unaudited}
Estimated
General Obligation Bonded Share of
Debt Qutstanding Estimated Direct and
Governmental Business-type Percentage Overlapping
Governmental Unit Activities Activities Applicable Debt
Direct Debt: .
Onslow County $ 106,665,000 Q 100.00% $ 106,665,000
Overlapping Debt:
Jacksonville $ 0 0 100.00% Q
Holly Ridge 251,000 4} 100.00% 291,000
North Topsail Beach 0 0 100.00% 0
Richlands 0 0 100.00% 0
Surf City * 0 0 42.82% 0
Swansboro ] 0 F00.00% 0
Total direct and overlapping debt 3 106,956,000

* Municipality is split between Onslow and Pender County this percent represents share of property tax from Onslow County
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Table 13
Onslow County, North Carclina
Calculation of Debt Service Coverage
Solid Waste Fund

Last Ten Years
{amounts expressed in thousands)
{unaudited)
Net
Revenue
Fiscal Year Gross Direct Non Available
Ended Operating Operating Operating for Debt Debt Service Requirements
June 30 Revenue Expenses Revenues Service Principal Interest Total Coverage
1989 N/A M/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
2000 4,705 256456 % 514 § 2573 % 470 3n 841 3.08
2001 4,285 2,106 1,231 3410 rak! 549 1,260 2.71
2002 4,347 2167 181 2,361 733 516 1,249 1.89
2003 4,537 1,836 142 2,843 793 420 1,213 2.34
2004 5,126 2,020 85 3,201 1,262 472 1,734 1.85
2005 5,471 2,276 280 3,475 1,307 443 1,750 1.99
2006 6,064 2,350 588 4,303 1,345 388 1,733 248
2007 6,126 2,426 B8O 4,580 1,387 331 1,718 2.67
2008 6,559 2,661 919 4,817 1,801 331 2,132 2.26
Source: Onslow County Audits
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- Table 14

Onslow County, North Carolina
Demographic and Economic Statistics

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Personal Per

income (2) Capita Public

(thousands Personal Median School Unemployment
Year Population(1) of dollars) Income (2) Age (2) Enroliment{3) Rate(4)
1999 180,176 3,293,434 22,011 24.95 20,912 3.70%
2000 149,591 3,437,230 22,820 25.00 20,844 4.B0%
2001 149,462 3,607,640 23,970 24.59 20,595 5.40%
2002 149,608 3,580,321 23,225 25.00 20,979 6.80%
2003 152,205 3,874,134 24,670 24.04 21,367 7.40%
2004 156,646 4,344,447 26,752 23.86 21,567 6.20%
2005 159,674 4,894,559 30,619 23.78 22,042 6.20%
2006 157,760 5,173,724 31,942 23.85 22,770 4.80%
2007 161,212 N/A N/A 24.80 23,3 4.70%
2008 169,466 N/A, N/A 2520 23,414 6.00%

Notes:

(1) state demographics website. www.demog.state.nc.us. Figures is as of July of previous year

previous reports used a different website, preceding years have been changed to current website figures

{2) www.bea.gov

{3) N.C. Department of Public Instruction, First Month Average Daily Membership, www.dpi.state.nc.us/fbs/resources/data/esas

{4) N. C. Employment Security Commission,www.ncesc.com, June figures
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Table 15
Onslow County, North Carolina
Princlpal Employers
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2008
Percentage
of Total County
Employer Employees Rank Employment
USMC Base, Camp Lejeune (2) 46,000 1 43.91 %
Camp Lejeune Civil Service (2) 5,392 2 5.15
Onslow County Board of Education 3,800 3 3.63
Onslow Memorial Hospital 1,100 4 1.02
Onslow County Government 1,073 5 1.05
Wal-Mart Associates, Inc. (1} 900 6 0.86
Convergys Markeling 520 7 0.50
Camp Lejeune Dependent Schools 501 8 0.48
City of Jacksonville 485 8 0.46
Food Lion LLC 447 10 0.43
Navatl Hospital
Thorn Apple Vailey Inc
Gibralter Publishing
Stanadyne
Total 60,218 57.48 %
Source: NC Employment Security Commission
(1) New Walmart open during FY 07-08
(2) Appproximate
fotal county workforce 104758
132

Percentage
of Total County

Employees Employment

42147 1 4492 %
4,631 2 4.94
2,650 3 2.82
1,603 4 1.71
1,200 5 1.28
800 7 0.35
1,098 6 117
522 8 0.56
450 9 0.48
400 10 0.43

55,501 59.15 %

93827
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Table 16
Onslow County, North Carolina
Full-time Equivalent County Government Employees by Function,
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Full-time Equivalent Budgeted Employees as of June 30

Function/Program 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
General government 125 131 130 129 129 133 127 124 125 123
Public safety 238 254 257 235 252 257 297 305 287 281
Transportation 19 22 15 15 15 15 18 23 23 23
Economic & physical development 20 22 22 23 23 16 29 30 38 38
Human Services * 739 799 813 787 808 750 545 556 557 526
Environmental protection 7 7 7 7 7 T 6 7 7 7
Cultural and recreational 53 56 64 61 64 61 86 a0 71 5
Enterprise Fund - Solid Waste 34 34 35 34 24 34 a4 32 27 27
Enterprise Fund - Public Utilities ** 55 58 58 58 58 59

Total 1290 1383 1401 1349 1390 1332 1142 1167 1135 1100

Source: County Human Resources Department

Note: This schedule represents number of employees budgeted per fiscal year rounded to the nearest whole number
* Mental health no longer a county dept as of 2005
Water Dept no longer a county dept as of 2005

L]
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Table 17

Onslow County, North Carolina

Operating Indicators by Function/fProgram,

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Function/Program 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
General government
Number of registered voters 47,081 42,732 53,881 60,012 62,365 66,427 71,431 73,616 72,353 79,247
Marriage licenses issued 2,086 1,997 2,215 2,348 2421 2,550 2,509 1,780¢ 2,762 2,697
Deeds recorded n/a n/a nia nia nfa 6,703 8,603 5,568 8,584 7,195
Public Safety
# of warrants served n/a na na nfa n/a nfa 8,079 10903 5,775 5,626
# of E911 EMS calls 17,063 9,672 9,744 10,226 10,555 14,276 12,396 7610° 14,623 13,878
# of E911 Fire calls 1,838 2,200 2,109 2,389 2,044 2,296 3,455 1,660° 3,084 3,505
# of E911 law enforcement calls 33,202 36,693 35,276 38,122 40,621 40,743 48,314 28,486° 54,158 52,213
Animal Complaints 8,999 8,129 7.871 8,770 8,908 9,087 9,839 4,204" 8,531 9,374
Animals sheltered 7,263 7,530 7,053 7473 7,651 7,589 8,272 3,361 7.711 7.270
Transportation
Enplanements 54,974 36,939 29,500 30,587 41,047 72,743 92,698 89373 99,027 124,598
Economic & Physical Development
# of building parmits 1,693 1,450 1,54% 1,685 1,609 1,765 1,951 2,752 2,341 2,922
# of building inspections nfa nfa 5421 11,792 13,216 17171 20,726 20,870 21,445 21,260
Human Services
Health Dept
# of Food & Lodging inspections 1,756 1,761 1,822 1,827 1,866 1,851 1,579 1,456 1,797 1,235
# of patients contacts nfa nfa na 17,051 nfa 16,518 17,950 30,066 32,600 32,600
Social Services -
# of clients served 13,560 14,740 15,795 17,528 20,915 19,304 22,877 20,737 46,763* 57853
Senior Services
# of clients served 37,676 38,382 37,513 37,952 37,298 37,430 40,498 39,492 2.162° 3353
Veterans Services
# clients served n/a 6,898 6,356 12,833 12,673 12,972 11,528 12,136 10,847 11,258
Environmetal Protection
feet on waterways cleared of debris 72,043 31,946 43,730 39,670 12,065 56,726 24 861 83,922 89,760 22,878
# of citizen mosquito complaints & _
respornses 272 752 549 186 1,123 316 262 601 835 517
Cultural & recreational
# of fibrary visits 229,729 225,854 225977 205,566 197,006 229,344 263,629 263,537 289,507 348,256
# of museum visits na nia nia 15,000 15,000* 15,000* 18,532 15,000° 15000 13500°
Enterprise Fund-Solid Waste
Landfill & Convenience site transactions nfa n/a 119,535 119,515 123,122 132,230 128,230 130,458 141,940 137,869
Tonnage at sites nfa n/a 1968.88 1929.21 173119 1884.43 1664.62 2506.23 2,017 1721
Recyclables tonnage from sites na nfa nia 164.84 418.68 351.25 400.72 367.34 564 751
White goods tonnage nfa n‘a 677 750 829 a75 1048 964 1.063 517
Source: Onslow County departments
! thru May 2006
? thru 8/23/06
* estimate
“prior years were main building only
® pricr years had duplicated statistics 134
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Table 18

Onslow County, North Carolina
Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program,
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Function/Program 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
Public Safety
Number of patrol vehicles N/A N/A N/A N/A NA N/A 150 151 148 148
Volunteer Fire Depts 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20
Number of EMS slations 13 13 13 13 13 6 6 7 T 7
Number of ambulances NIA N/A NIA N/A N/A, N/A 20 19 23 29
Number of Rescue Squads g9 9 4] 9 9
Number of jall beds 118 118 118 118 118 118 118 118 118 118
Cultural & Recreational
Number of Parks 9 10 10 " 12 13 13 i3 13 13
Acreage 367 370 370 B2 765 1,050 1,050 1,050 1050 1050
Number of libraries 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5
Enteprise fund
Solid Waste
Number of convenience sites na wa 11 11 11 11 11 i0 10 10
Yrs of estimated life of Landfill nfa n/a wa n/a n/a 17 15 14 11 11
Education
Number of Public Schools 32 3z az 33 33 33 34 34 34 35

Source: Onslow County departments
Onslow County Board of Education
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<)) Perry &
Crone,nc.

Certified Public Accountants and Consultants ‘ Ideas...Strategics Results

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and On Compliance and Other Matters
Based on An Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

To the Board of Directors
Onslow County
Jacksonville, North Carolina

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
Onslow County, North Carolina as of and for the year ended June 30 2008, which collectively comprises Onslow County's
basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 31, 2008. We did not audit the financial
statements of Onslow County ABC Board and the Onslow County Hospital Authority. Those financial statements were
audited by other auditors whose reports thereon have been furnished to us, and in our opinion, insofar as it relates to the
amounts included for the Onslow County ABC Board and the Onslow County Hospital Authority is based solely on the
reports of the other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. The financial statements of the Onslow County ABC Board and
the Onslow County Hospital Authority were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

Internal Control Over Financial Repoding :

in planning and performing our audit, we considered Onslow County's internal control over financial reporting as a basis
for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Onslow County’s internal control over financial reporting.

Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Onslow County's internal control over financial
reporting. .

Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that
might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. However, as discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies
in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be significant deficiencies.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the
normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect misstatements on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects Onsiow County’s ability to
initiate, authorize, record, process, or report financial data refiably in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of Onslow County’s financial statements
that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by Onslow County's internal control. We consider the
deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs to be significant deficiencies in
internal control over financial reporting. [Finding 08-1)

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more than a
remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be prevented or detected by the Onslow
County's internal control.

Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in the internal control that might be significant
deficiencies and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all significant deficiencies that are also considered to be
material weaknesses. However, we believe none of the significant deficiencies described above is a material weakness.

Member: North Carolina Association of Certified Public Accountants

and American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
Return to Table of Contents
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Compiiance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Onslow County’s financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations contracts and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which couid have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and,
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or
other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

The County's respense to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs. We did not audit the County's response, and accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit committee, management, others within the
organization, members of the Governing Board, and federal and State awarding agencies and pass-through entities and
is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specific parties.

La Grange, North Carolina ‘
October 31, 2008
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Report On Compliance With Requirements Applicable To Each Major Federal
Program And Internal Control Over Compliance In Accordance With OMB
Circular A-133 and the State Single Audit Implementation Act

To the Board of Directors
Onslow County
Jacksonville, North Carolina

Compliance
We have audited the compliance of Onslow County with the types of compliance requirements described in the U.S.

Office_of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement and the Audit Manual for
Governmental Auditors in North Carolina, issued by the Local Government Commission, that are applicable to each of its
major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2008. Onslow County's major federal programs are identified in the
summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with
the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the
responsibility of Onslow County's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on Onslow County’s
compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America: the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act. Those standards, OMB Circular A-133, and the State
Single Audit Implementation Act require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material
effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Onslow
County’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures, as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal
determination of Onslow County's compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, Onslow County complied, in ali material respects, with the requirements referred to above that are
applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2008.

Internal Control Over Compliance
The management of Onslow County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over

compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and
performing our audit, we considered Onslow County's internal control over compliance with requirements that could have
a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on compliance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Onsiow County's internal
control over compliance.

A control deficiency in an entity's internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control does
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies that adversely affects the entity's ability to administer a federal
program such that there is more than a remote likelihood that noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by Onslow County's internal control.

Member: North Carolina Association of Certified Public Accountants

and American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
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A material \fveakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more than a
remote likelihood that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented or detected by Onslow County's internal control.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and would not necessarily Identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be significant deficiencies or
material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be
material weaknesses, as defined above.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of manageﬁ'\ent. federal and State awarding agencies and pass-
through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

fitres Poviy ¢ Cuonty Vne

La Grange, North Carolina
Qctober 31, 2008
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Report On Compliance With Requirements Applicable To Each Major State
Program And Internal Control Over Compliance In Accordance With Applicable Sections
of OMB Circular A-133 and the State Single Audit Implementation Act

To the Board of Directors
Onslow County
Jacksonville, Narth Carolina

Compliance . ‘
We have audited the compliance of Onslow County, with the types of compliance requirements described in the Audit

Manual for Governmental Auditors in North Carolina, issued by the Local Government Commission, that are applicable to
each of its major State programs for the year ended June 30, 2008. Onslow County’s major State programs are identified
in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance
with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major State programs is the
responsibility of Onslow County’s management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on Onslow County's
compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America: the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; applicable sections of OMB Circular A-133, as described in the Audit Manual
for Governmental Auditors in North Carolina, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act. Those standards, applicable
sections of OMB Circular A-133, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act requires that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred
to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major State program occurred. An audit includes examining, on
a test basis, evidence about Onslow County’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures
as we consider necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
Qur audit does not provide a legal determination on Onslow County's compliance with those requirements.

In our apinion, Onslow County complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that are
applicable to each of its major State programs for the year ended June 30, 2008. However, the results of our auditing
procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance with those requirements that are required to be reported in accordance
with applicable sections of OMB Circular A-133 and the State Single Audit Implementation Act and which are described in
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 08-1.

Internal Control Over Compliance ‘
The management of Onslow County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over

compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to State programs. In planning and
performing our audit, we considered Onslow County's internal control over compliance with requirements that could have
a direct and material effect on a major State program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on compliance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance, Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Onslow County's internal
control over compliance. .

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the preceding
paragraph and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be significant deficiencies or
material weaknesses as defined below. However, as we discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in internai
control over compliance that we consider to be significant deficiencies. :

Member: North Carolina Association of Certified Public Accountants

and American iInstitute of Certified Public Accountants
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A control deficiency in an entity’s internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control does
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a State program on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies that adversely affects the entity’s ability to administer a State
program such that there is more that a remote likelihood that noncompliance with a type of a compliance requirement of a
State program that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by Onslow County's internal control.
We consider the deficiencies in internal control over compliance described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs as item 08-1 to be significant deficiencies.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that resuits in more that a
remote likelihood that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a State program will not be
prevented or detected by Onslow County's internal control. We did not consider any of the deficiencies described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs to be material weaknesses.

Onslow County’s response to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs. We did not audit the County’s response and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, federal and State awarding agencies and pass-
through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

La Grange, North Carolina |
October 31, 2008
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Onslow County, North Carolina

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Section I. Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued: Unqualified

Internal control over financial reporting:

- Material weaknesses identified? yes X _no

- Significant deficiencies identified
that are not considered to be
material weaknesses yes X __none reported

Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted yes X no

Federal Awards
Internal control over major federal programs:

- Material weaknesses identified? ves X no

- Significant deficiencies identified
that are not considered to be
material weaknesses yes X__none reported

Noncompliance material to federal awards yes X no
Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major federal programs: Unqualified.

Any audit findings disclosed that are
required to be reported in accordance
with Section 510(a) of Circular A-133 ves X _no

Identification of major federal programs;

CFDA Numbers  Names of Federal Program or Cluster

10.557 Special Supplemental Food Program for Women, Infants, and Children
93.778 _  Title XIX Medicaid
93.558 Temporary Assistance for Needy Families
93.568 Low-Income Home Energy Assistance
93.658 Foster Care and Adoption Cluster
93.659 ,
20.106 Airport Improvement Plan
Dollar threshold used to distinguish
between Type A and Type B Programs $3,288,245
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? yes X no
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Onslow County, North Carolina
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Section |. Summary of Auditor's Results (Continued)

State Awards

Internat control over major State programs:

- Material weaknesses identified? yes X _no
~  Significant deficiencies identified

that are not considered to be

material weaknesses X  vyes none reported
Noncompliance material to State awards yes X _no

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major State programs: Unqualified.

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with the State

Single Audit implementation Act X __ _yes no

ldentification of major State programs:

Program Names

State/County Special Assistance for Adults
TANF - MOE

Adoption Subsidy

DCD Smart Start

Section Il - Financial Statement Findings

None reported
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Onslow County, North Carolina
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Section Ill - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None reported

Saction [V - State Award Findings and Questioned Costs

State/County Special Assistance for Adults
Finding: 08-1

IMMATERIAL WEAKNESS
IMMATERIAL NONCOMPLIANCE

Criteria: All applicants are required to have a current FL-2/MR-2 that is signed and dated by a physician
indicating the need for domiciliary level of care in order to be eligible for Special Assistance.

Condition: Two case files were deemed to be ineligible because the County failed to obtain current FI-2/
MR-2 for the pericd being tested.

Questined Costs;  $5,960, This amount was determined by totaling the amount of benefits received during
the time period in which a current FL-2/MR-2 was not on file.

Context:  We examined 25 case files and determined that two applicants received benefits without
proper eligibility documentation being updated,

Effect: Two applicants received benefits who were not eligible due to failure to request a current FL-2/MR-2
from the physician.

Cause: Human error in obtaining required information. Also, the department failed {o review files to ensure
proper procedures were being followed,

Recommendation: Review files regularly to ensure that all FL-2/MR-2 forms are up to date. Develop alog
that lists when FL-2/MR-2 should be updated and review the log on a regular basis.

Views of responslble officials and plannced con‘ec:tlve actions: Current practice has been to flag each case
withing the Eligibility Information System as fo the date and month the current FL-2 should
be acquired. The FI-2's were then verbally requested. These two cases resulted in
ineligibitity due to failure to follow up on the verbal request. Going forward FL-2's will be
obtained at each review to ensure compliance with the policy regarding FL-2/MR-2 forms.
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Onslow County, North Carolina
- Corrective Action Plan
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Section Il - Financial Statement Findings

None reported

Section |ll- Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None reported

Section {V - State Award Findings and Questioned Costs

Finding: 08-1
Name of Contact Person: Connie Melville, Medicaid Program Manager
Corrective Action Plan: Obtain FL-2/MR-2 forms at each case review.

Proposed Completion Date: July 10, 2008
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Onslow County, North Carolina
Summary Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

None reported
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ONSLOW COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS
Year Ended June 30, 2008

Page 1 of 8
Federal
Federal (Direct and
Grantor/Pass-through CFDA Pass-through Slate Local
Grantor/Program Title Number Expeditures) Expenditures Expenditures
Federal Awards:
U.S. Department of Agriculture:
Food and Nutrition Service
Passed through N.C. Department of Health and Human Services:
Division of Social Services- Administration:
Eood Stamp Cluster:
Food Stamp Program - Noncash 10.551 & 13,229,174 $ - -
AFDC payments and Penalties 93.560 {120) (33) (33)
Food stamp admin,e&t & depend care, fraud admin 10.561 757,082 - 757,082
Total Foed Stamp Cluster 13,986,136 (33) 757,049
Division of Public Health-Administration:
Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants and Children 10.557 961,546 - -
Direct Benefit Payments: .
Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants and Children : 10.557 5,402,495 - -
Division of Public Health;
AGRI-SFP Food Program Meal 10.559 605 - -
N.C. Division of Aging
Fassed through Eastemn Carolina COG
USDA Supplement Title C1,C2 93.053 20,456 - -
Solid Waste Management Grant 10.762 16,705 - -
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 20,387,943 (33) 757,049
U.S. Department of Environmentat and Natura] Resources
Passed through N.C. Department of Environmental and Natural Resources
CAMA Land Use Plan 1,990 ass -
Land Use Plan 506045 13,025 - -
NC Public Beach and Coastal waterfront access program 11.419 14,836 - 4,945
Total US Dept of Environmental and Natural Resources 29,851 385 4,945
U.S. Department of Commerce:
Passed through N.C. Department of Commerce:
Community Development Btock Grant - SSH grant 14,228 8,001 - -
Community Development Block Grant - CB grant 14,228 31,832 - -
Community Development Block Grant - CR grant 14,228 9,200 - -
Community Development Block Grant - |DA grant 14.228 2,866 - -
Total U.S. Department of Commerce 51,899 - -
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ONSLOW COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS

Year Ended June 30, 2008 Page 2 of 8
Federal
Federat {Direct and
Granior/Pass-through CFDA Pass-through State Local
Grantor/Program Title Number Expeditures) Expenditures Expenditures
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development:
Passed through N.C. Depariment of Commerce:
Community Development Block Grant - AFIA grant 14.252 8,048 - 3 -
NC Housing Finance agency - 1,000 -
Total Dept of Housing and Urban Development 8,048 1,000 -
U.S. Dept of Justice
Bureau of Justice Agsistance
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance grant 2207-DJ-BX-0753 16.738 14,430 - -
Bulletproof Vest Parntership Grant 16.607 8,514 - -
Total Dept of Justice 22,944 - -
U.S. Dept of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention
Passed thru N.C. Office of Juvenile Justice
Inmate confinement reimbursement N/A - 7,529 -
Emergency/Runaway Shelter 16.540 - 295,513 -
Restitution 16.540 - 50,198 -
School treatment Program 16.540 - 39,240 -
Parent/Family Skill Building 16.540 - 10,693 -
Day Services - Demo Project 16.540 - 57,557 -
Youth Court Diversion Program 16.540 - 17,634 -
Onslow County Juvenile Program 16.540 - 1,485 -
Total Dept of Juvenile Justice - 479,849 -
U.S. Department of Transportation
Small Community Air Service Development Program (SCASD) 20.930 14,866 - -
Airport Improvement Program 20.106 4,139,162 109,549 -
Total Dept of Transportation 4,154,028 108,549 -
U.S. Department of Homeland Security/Office of Grants & fraining
Passed-through NC Department of Crime Contro! and Public Safety:
Division of Emergency Management
State Homeland Security Grant 2006-GE-T6-0010-5040 97.053 5,680 - -
State Homeland Security Grant 2006-GE-T6-0010-5041 97.053 4,202 - .
Emergency Management Performance Grant 97.042 12,252 12,252 -
Passed thru Transportation Securify Administration
Law Enforcement 97.090 139,853 - -
Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security 161,987 12,252 -
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ONSLOW COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS
Year Ended June 30, 2008

Page 3 of 8
Federal
Faderal {Direct and
Grantor/Pass-through CFDA Pass-through State Local
Grantor/Program Tille Number Expeditures) Expenditures Expenditures
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:
Passed through NC Department of health and Human Services
Fassed through Eastem Carolina Council of Governments
Aging Cluster
HCCBG-home delivered meals 93.045 31,706 27,928 6,626
HCCBG-Congregate meals 93.045 70,498 8,577 8,786
HCCBG-Access 93.044 22,050 39,098 5,794
HCCBG-In home/Supp Srv 93.667 22,421 641 2,562
HCCBG-In home/Supp Srv 93.044 238,492 84,193 35,854
Title lil-D 93.043 4,838 285 569
Operation Fan N/A - 400 -
Family Caregiver Support Title III-E 93.052 31,436 - 2,096
Senior Center Development N/A - 16,405 5,468
Total Aging Cluster 421,441 177,527 68,755
Division of Social Services:
Foster Care and Adoption Cluster
Title IV-E Foster Care (CPS) 93.658 626,025 143,714 482 311
Title IV-E Foster Care Trn& Qff Trn 93,658 232,462 - 228,119
Title IV-E Foster Care Public Assistance& in excess 93.658 193,382 43,805 64,248
Title [V-E Admin county paid to CCI 93.658 87 - a7
Title IV-E Adopt tm & optional Adopt Trn 50% 93.659 25,843 - 25,085
Title IV-E Adopt subsidy & vendor public assistance 93.659 346,679 98,656 98,656
Adoplion/Foster Care MN/A 269,261 - 2,709
Total Foster Care and Adoption Cluster 1,693,740 286,175 501,214
Refugee Assistance Payment 93.566 4,257 - -
Work First- Admin 93.558 262,035 - 203,622
Work First/TANF - Direct Benefit Payments 93.558 1,397,768 - 1,325,211
IV-D Administration & offset fees 93.563 761,323 - 392,197
Crists-Intervention payments ©3.568 135,652 - -
Energy Assistance Payments 93.568 163,899 - -
Low Income Energy Admin 93.568 20,417 - -
Permanency Planning - Reg 93.645 34,991 11,663 -
Permanency Planning - Spec 93.645 10,387 - 3,462
Adolescent Parenting 03.845 41,062 - -
55BG ather Scvs & training 93.667 441,302 47 491 162,931
in Home Services 93.667 13,787 - 1,970
Links,transitional funds, indep living 93.674 16,128 3,532 -
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ONSLOW COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS

Year Ended June 30, 2008 Page 4 of 8
Federal
Federal {Direct and
Grantor/Pass-through CFDA Pass-through State Local
Grantor/Program Title Number Expeditures) Expenditures Expenditures
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (continued):
Passed-through NC Department of Health and Human Services
Child Care Development Fund Cluster
Division of Social Services:
Childcare Development Fund (CCDF) - Administration 93.596 5 195,467 $ - % -
Division of Child Development:
Child Care and Development Fund - Discretionary 93.575 1,852,234 - -
Child Care and Development Fund - Mandatory 93.596 977,527 - -
Child Care and Development Fund - Match 93.596 1,025,309 571,971 -
Total Child Care Fund Ciuster 3,855,070 571,971 -
Social Services Block Grant (SSBG) 93.667 22,777 - -
Temporary Assistance for Needy Familles 93.558 1,335,977 - -
TANF-Domaestic Violenca 88.558 16,398 - -
TANF-Fubiic Assistance 93.558 948,561 {34) 6,300
Family Preservation 93.556 28,261 - _ -
Smart Start NIA - 224,073 -
TANF-MQE NIA - 1,184,731 -
State Funding N/A - 152,430 -
Total Subsidized Child Care Cluster 6,207,044 2,133,171 5,300
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention
Passed through NC Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Public Health:
Tuberculosis Control Program 93.116 33,992 - -
Family Planning Title X 93.217 78,006 - -
Immunization Program/Aid to County Funding 93,268 78,848 - -
Breast and Cervical Cancer 93,283 2,100 - -
Bioterroism Grant 93.283 56,304 - -
Emergency Preparedness (Pandemic Influenza) 93.283 17,986 - -
TANFWomens Preventive Health 893.558 15,564 - -
Risk Reduction/Healthy Promotion 893.991 15,556 8,288 -
Total Disease Control and Prevention 298,456 8,288 -
Health Resources and Service Administration
Passed through NC Depariment of Health and Human Setvices
Division of Public Mealth:
Maternal and Child Health Services Block Grant 93.994 451,472 - -
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ONSLOW COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS

Year Ended June 30, 2008 Page 5 of 8
Federal
Federal {Direct and
Grantar/Pass-through’ CFDA Pass-through State Local
Grantor/Program Title Number Expeditures) Expenditures Expenditures
Health Care Financing Administration
Passed through NC Department of Health and Human Services
Direct Pay benefits
Medical Assistance Program 93.778 §$ 70,048,649 $ 35,718,912 3 4,753,715
Division of Social Services
Administration
Medical Assistance Program 93.778 1,254,268 - 1,254,268
Medical Transp Admin 93.778 50,887 - 50,887
MA Expansion 93.778 17,936 17.936 -
ADT CR HM CS MGT/SPEC 93,778 30,743 18,557 12,185
NC Health Choice 93.767 89,687 5,433 24,496
Total Administration 1,443,522 41,926 1,341,837
Passed thru National Association of County and City Health Officials {NAACHO) 93.008 5,000 - -
Total U.S Department of Health and Human Services 84,067,798 38,428,684 9,161,213
Elections Assistance Commission
Passed through NC Board of Elections
TITLE | HAVA Grant 90.401 24,545 - -
USGS National Geospatial Programs
Passed through Dept of Environmental and Natural Resources
Cost Share Contract for Orthophotography 15.808 32,460 - -
TOTAL FEDERAL AWARDS 5 108,941,502 b 39,031,686 $ 9,923,207
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ONSLOW COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA |
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS
Year Ended June 30, 2008

Page 6 of 8
Federal
Federal (Direct and
Grantor/Pass-through CFDA Pass-through State Locai
Grantor/Program Titte Number Expeditures) Expenditures Expenditures
State Awards:
N.C. Department of Health and Human Services:
Division of Social Services: ;
State/County Specia! Assistance to Adulis - Administration $ - - § 70,761
State/County Special Assistance io Adults - Domiciliary Care Pymt - 643,600 643,600
Adoption Subsidy & vendor - 440,094 133,908
Energy Assist Private Grants - 6,968 -
DCD Smart Start - 428,775 -
State Adult Protective Service - 73,775 -
TANF/AFDC Incent/Prog Integrity - 857 -
State Aid to Counties - 57,641 -
Foster Care At Risk Maximization - 18,699 10,447
County Funded Programs - - 474 495
Non-Allocating County Cost - - 751,330
Work First Mon-reimbursable - - 1,598,375
State Foster Home - Direct Benefit Payments - 132,350 132,350
Total Division of Social Services - 1,802,758 3,815,266
Division of Public Health:
General - 103,498 -
Healthy Carolinas Partnership Support - 11,894 -
Communicable Disease - 11,954 -
Tuberculosis - 35,537 -
Women's Preventative Health - 8,895 -
AlIDS-State - 12,500 -
TB Medical Services - 2,024 -
Risk Reduction/Health Promotion - 8,288 -
Total Division of Public Health - 194,580 -
Total N.C, Department of Health and Human Services - 1,897,348 3.615.266
N.C. Department of Transportation:
Public Trangportation Division:
Onsiow United Transit System (OUTS) Grant - 225,492 -
Rural Operating Assistance program (ROAP)}-EDTAP - 9,091 -
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ONSLOW COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS

Year Ended June 30, 2008 Page7 of 8
Federal
Federal (Direct and
Grantor/Pass-through CFDA Pass-through State Local
Grantor/Program Title Number Expeditures) Expenditures Expenditures
N.C. Department of Environment and Natural Resources:
Division of Environmental Health: -
Mosquito Control 3 - $ 15,085 $ -
Division of Pollution Prevention and Environmental Asslstance:
Community Waste Reduction and Recyeling Grant (CWRARG) - 12,063 -
Division of Water Resources
Water Resources Development Froject Grant - 110,720 -
Shell Rock Landing Project Grant - 210,000 -
Division of Parks and Recreation;
Parks And Recrecreation Trust Fund Grant (PARTF) - 218,804 -
Division of Soil and Water Conservation:
Soil and Water Conservation - 29,835 -
Total N.C. Department of Environment and Natural Resources - 597,407 -
N.C. Department of Administration:
Division of Veterans Affairs:
Administered by County Veterans Services:
Veterans Services - 2,000 -
N.C. Admin Office of the Courts
Civil License revocation - 19,438 -
N.C. Department of Cultural Resources
Arts Council Grant : - 3,963 -
State Aid to Libraries - 263,283 -
Total Cultural Resources - 267,246 -
N.C. Department of Corrections:
Division of Community Corrections:
Criminal Justice Partnership Program - 151,608
N.C. Department of Insurance
SHIP grant - 15,000 -
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ONSLOW COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS

Year Ended June 30, 2008 Page 8 of 8
Federal
Federal {Direct and
Grantor/Pass-through CFDA Pass-through State Local
Grantor/Program Title Number Expeditures) Expenditures Expenditures
e-NC Authority
Passd through t the Rural Economic Development Center Inc

PEG channel grant $ - 3 0,753 3 -
Smart Start

N.C. Partnership for Children - 34,557 -

Childcare Health Net - 178,173 -

Every Child Counts - 157,002 -

Breastfeeding |s Best - 166,495 -

Adolencent Parenting - 137,467 -

Parents as Teachers - 148,565 -
TOTAL STATE AWARDS - 4,115,542 3,815,266

“Total expenditures of faderal and State awards
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Onslow County, North Carolina
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS
Year Ended June 30, 2008

Basis of Presentation .
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards includes the federal and State grant activity of

Lenoir County and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The information In this schedule is presented
in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations and the State Single Audit Implementation Act. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may
differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of the basic financial statements. Benefit payments are paid
directly to recipients and are not included in the county's basic financial statements. However, due to the county’s
involvement in determining eligibility, they are considered federal awards to the county and are included on this schedule.

. The following are clustered by the NC Department of Health and Human Services and are treated separately for state audit
requirement purposes: Subsidized Child Care, Foster Care and Adoption, Mental Health Services, Developmental
Disability Waiting List Services, Substance Abuse Services, and Infants and Toddlers with Disabilities.

156
Return to Table of Contents



	Cover
	Title Page
	Table of Contents
	Introductory Section
	County Officials
	Organizational Chart
	Certificate of Achievement
	Letter of Transmittal

	Financial Section
	Independent Auditor's Report
	Management's Discussion and Analysis

	Basic Financial Statements
	Government Wide
	Statement of Activities
	Government Funds
	Proprietary Funds
	Enterprise Funds
	Fiduciary Funds
	Notes to the Financial Statements

	Supplementary Information
	Required Supplemental Financial Data
	General Fund
	General Fund

	Special Revenue Funds
	Non-Major Governmental Funds
	Emergency 911 Fund
	Register of Deeds Fund
	Community Development Fund
	Grant Project Fund

	Capital Project Funds
	Non-Major Governmental Funds
	Capital Improvement Fund
	Airport Fund
	Capital Project Fund
	School Construction Fund

	Proprietary Funds
	Solid Waste Fund
	Landfill Construction Fund

	Fiduciary Funds
	Governmental Capital Assets
	Additional Financial Data
	Statistical Section
	Compliance Section
	Schedule of Expenditures of Federal & State Awards

	Button2: 
	Button3: 


